




 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  

FROM:  MIKE TOTH, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: PETITION 22-05: WOODMANS WAREHOUSE ADDITION 

AGENDA: NOVEMBER 21, 2022 PUBLIC HEARING: WILLARD’S CORNER ANNEXATION 
AGREEMENT FIRST AMENDMENT  

 

DISCUSSION 

The Village of North Aurora entered into an Annexation Agreement with Woodman’s Food 
Market, Inc., now known as the “Willard’s Corner Development,” that was approved for 
annexation by Ordinance No. 04-08-30-01. Willard’s Corner was annexed pursuant Ordinance 
No. 04-08-30-01, dated August 23, 2004, and Zoned B-2 General Community Business District 
subject as part of a Planned Unit Development by Ordinance No. 04-08-30-02. An application for 
the First Amendment to the Annexation Agreement and amendment to the Special Use/ B-2 
General Community Business District PUD has been submitted relative to a warehouse addition 
to be constructed on the northern portion of the existing Woodman’s food store building. 
 
Woodman’s is classified as a permitted use in the Zoning Ordinance and the Willard’s Corner 
PUD. The Zoning Ordinance classifies the use as a ‘Food Store.’ The Willard’s Corner PUD 
more specifically defines the use as: Grocery Stores primarily engaged in the sale of packaged 
foods and food preparation for sale on premises and any accessory use under the same roof, 
which is generally in conjunction with the permitted use. As the warehouse addition would be an 
‘accessory use under the same roof which is generally in conjunction with the permitted use,’ it is 
also considered part of the permitted use. 
 
Staff has reviewed various PUD and Zoning Ordinance requirements and found the following 
items need approval from the Village:  
 

 Special Use - Planned Unit Development deviations 
o Lot 8 Parking Deviation 
o Exterior Lighting Deviation 

 Site Plan Approval 

 Resubdivision of Lot 6 & Lot 8 of Willard’s Corner 
 
A public hearing was conducted on the items listed above before the Plan Commission at their 
November 1, 2022 meeting.  The Plan Commission unanimously recommended approval of 
Petition #22-05 subject to two additional conditions.  
 
The Village Board discussed Petition #22-05 at the November 7, 2022 Committee of the Whole 
meeting. The Village Board was supportive of Petition #22-05.  
 
A draft of the First Amendment to the Annexation Agreement between Village of North Aurora 
and Woodman’s Food Market, Inc. is hereby attached for any public comment.  



NOTICE
of

Annual Impact Fee Accounting
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR PROGRAM YEAR JULY 1, 2021 - JUNE 30, 2022
Central Area Road Western Area Road

Improvements Improvements

Fund Balance July 1, 2021 $194,924.68 $71,404.30

Additions
Interest Income 39.04 9.57
Road Usage Fees - 344.25
Escrows:
Microsoft Data Center 43,780.32 -
BP Redevelopment 17,025.68 -
VEQUITY 79,633.57 -
Brennan Investments 87,077.24 -

(warehouse) __________ _________

Total Additions $227,555.85 $353.82

Deductions
Paddock Publications - 162.00
Escrow: Devonshire Woods - 344.25

Total Deductions - $ 506.25

Fund Balance June 30, 2022 $422,480.53 $71,251.87

A copy of the accounting report is available to the public
for inspection from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.,

Monday through Friday at the Village of Hoffman Estates:
Rachel Musiala

Director of Finance
Village of Hoffman Estates

1900 Hassell Road
Hoffman Estates, IL 60169

(847)843-4802
Published in Daily Herald Oct 27, Nov 3, 10, 2022 (4590382)

DON’T NEED IT?
SELL IT FAST

IN THE DAILY HERALD
CLASSIFIED SECTION

CALL
847-427-4444 OR

630-955-0008
TODAY TO PLACE AN AD

8)?/8 42A:-), A2 08/-) / 8)?/8 /+>).A:,)6)4A* )6/:8 8)?/8,5+/:8<=)./8+'-26 2. -/889";("$;("!;% =2@.,71 ( 3 97#& /'6' ( "7#&

NOTICE OF PUBLIC SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY
METRO SELF STORAGE

Notice is hereby given that the undersigned self storage
units will be sold at a public sale by competitive bidding, in
their entirety to the highest bidder to satisfy the lien of the
Lessor, with Metro Storage LLC as managing agent for
Lessor, for rental and other charges due from the under-
signed. The said property has been stored and is located at
the respective address below. The sale will be conducted
under the guidance of Christopher Rosa (441.002059) on be-
half of the facility’s management. Units will be available
for viewing and bidding five (5) days prior to the sale on
www.StorageTreasures.com. The bidding will close on No-
vember 22, 2022 at 9:30 AM. The terms of the sale will be
cash only to the highest bidder. A 10% buyer’s premium
will be charged per unit. All sales are final. Metro Self Stor-
age LLC reserves the right to withdraw any or all units,
partial or entire, from the sale at any time before the sale
or to refuse any bids. The property to be sold is described
as “general household items” unless otherwise noted. All
contents must be removed completely from the property
within 48 hours or sooner.
Metro Self Storage – 39406 N. Lewis Avenue, Beach Park,
IL 60099, 847-746-1955
Unit 429 Jesse Brown, Unit 638 Denise Acevedo-Asadino,
Unit 1082 Sharde Peasand.
Metro Self Storage – 880 E. Rollins Road, Round Lake
Beach, IL 60073, 847-223-7755
Unit 402 Jose Chavez.
Metro Self Storage – 673 North Route 83, Grayslake, IL
60030, 847-223-5550
Unit 291 Richard Greene, Unit 576 Richard Greene, Unit 608
Alice Kumm, Unit 381 Colleen Murphy.
Metro Self Storage – 13000 Rockland Road, Lake Bluff, IL
60044, 847-295-8840
Unit 337 Latasha Edwards.
Metro Self Storage – 520 West Colfax, Palatine, IL 60067,
847-359-7322
Unit 2305 Enrika Karvelyte, Unit 2140 Andrew James, Unit
2140 Andrew Robert James, Unit 2277 Manuel Vega, Unit
2277 Manuel A Vega, Unit 119 Kim Nale, Unit 119 Kimberly
A Nale, Unit 119 Kimberly Nale, Unit 2259 David Ruiz, Unit
2259 David Ruiz Gama.
Metro Self Storage – 1205 South Neltnor Blvd, West Chi-
cago, IL 60185, 630-231-3300
Unit 2103 Araceli Rios, Unit 3207 Jerome York, Unit 1016
Charles D Cowan, Unit 1016 Charles Douglas Cowan II,
Unit 2054 Jonathan Perdue, Unit 2054 Jonathan C Perdue,
Unit 1177 Erik Perez.
Metro Self Storage – 0 S 680 Route 83, Oak Brook Terrace,
IL 60181, 630-279-7300
Unit B76 John C. Miller, 1930 Chevy Truck, VIN:
5TD065650, Lien Amount $688, Unit B76 John Miller, 1930
Chevy Truck, VIN: 5TD065650, Lien Amount $688, Unit B58
Gary D. Chaplin, Unit B58 Gary Chaplin.
Metro Self Storage – 1800 Busse Hwy, DesPlaines, IL 60016,
847-827-8888
Unit 1014 Andrea Velazquez, Unit 6025 Shaun P Vergara,
Unit 2001 Matthew A Olen.
Metro Self Storage – 2021 Waukegan Road, Bannockburn,
IL 60015, 847-485-0012
Unit 126 Winter Thomas, Unit 154 Winter Thomas, Unit 162
Winter Thomas, Unit 620 Lisa Carlson, Unit 627 Lisa Carl-
son, Unit 720 Lisa Carlson.
Metro Self Storage – 2623 Lincoln Highway, St. Charles, IL
60175, 224-228-8400
Unit 2028 David Lopez, Unit 1106 Sue Fatigato.
Metro Self Storage - 1360 S Butterfield Road, Mundelein, IL
60060, 847-265-3800
Unit 3239 William Handley, Unit 3239 William Lee, Unit 3022
Arthur Abbott, Unit 3022 G Arthur Abbott, Unit 3022 Guy
Arthur Abbott, Unit 3280 Kendall Wilson, Unit 2021 Chris-
tian Hoffman, Unit 3109 Marek Modrzanski, Unit 2322
Marta Modrzanska.
Metro Self Storage - 1951 W Lake St Addison, IL 60101, 630-
592-8343
Unit 0109 Ellen Heinz, Unit 2300 Lakeisha Kelly, Unit 2158
Frances Casiano.

Published in Daily Herald Oct 27, Nov 3, 2022 (4590242)

Public Hearings
& Notices

If you’re saving things
for a rainy day...

STOP!
You can expect sunshine and fast re-
sults when you place ad in the Daily
Herald Classified. To place an ad or
for more information call today...

847-427-4444 or
630-955-0008

DON’T NEED IT?
SELL IT FAST

IN THE DAILY HERALD
CLASSIFIED SECTION

CALL
847-427-4444 OR

630-955-0008
TODAY TO PLACE AN AD

Public Hearings
& Notices

LOOKING
TO HIRE??!!
TAKE ADVANTAGE OF
THE DAILY HERALD

CLASSIFIEDS

FIRST TIME
ADVERTISERS
RECEIVE 25%
DISCOUNT

CALL KEVIN THOMSON
@ 847-427-4780

FOR YOUR
RECRUITMENT NEEDS

Treasurer Reports

LEGAL NOTICE:
VILLAGE OF
DOWNERS GROVE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC
HEARING – Pursuant to
Chapter 65, Section 5/8- 2-9.9
of the Illinois Municipal
Code and Section 2.43(c) of
the Downers Grove Munici-
pal Code, notice is hereby
given that a public hearing
will be held to consider the
proposed Village of Down-
ers Grove 2023 Budget dur-
ing a meeting of the Down-
ers Grove Village Council on
Tuesday, November 15, 2022
commencing at 7:00 p.m., at
the Downers Grove Village
Hall, 801 Burlington Avenue,
Downers Grove, Illinois. At
this time, any interested
person will be given the op-
portunity to comment and
make statements on the pro-
posed budget. The Proposed
2023 Budget is on file and is
available for inspection at
the office of the Village
Clerk and at the Village Li-
brary as well as being avail-
able on-line at www.down-
ers.us. The hearing may be
continued from time to time
without further public no-
tice.
Rosa Berardi, Village Clerk
Published in Daily Herald
(October 27, 2022) 4590263

LEGAL NOTICE
VILLAGE OF

LONG GROVE, ILLINOIS
NOTICE OF A HEARING
BEFORE THE ARCHITEC-
TURAL COMMISSION OF
LONG GROVE FOR CON-
SIDERATION OF EXTE-
RIOR SIGNAGE ON THE
PROPERTY LOCATED AT
243 ROBERT PARKER
COFFIN ROAD, LONG
GROVE, ILLINOIS AND
WITHIN THE B-1 HIS-
TORIC BUSINESS ZONING
DISTRICT.
PUBLIC NOTICE IS
HEREBY GIVEN that on
Monday, November 21, 2022
at 7:00 p.m., a hearing will
be held at the Architectural
Commission meeting of the
Village of Long Grove, Lake
County, Illinois, at the Long
Grove Village Hall, 3110 Old
McHenry Road, Long
Grove, Illinois 60047, in con-
nection with an application
for exterior signage for Vin-
tage Charm (retail store) on
the property located at 243
Robert Parker Coffin Road,
Long Grove, Illinois, and lo-
cated within the B-1 Historic
Business Zoning District.
Commonly known as 243
Robert Parker Coffin Road,
Long Grove, Illinois and
consisting of approximately
0.16 acres.

PINs: 15-30-100-033
Persons attending the hear-
ing shall have the opportu-
nity to provide written and
oral comments and ques-
tions concerning the propo-
sal. The above information,
together with the plans for
the property, will be avail-
able for inspection at the
Long Grove Village Hall,
3110 Old McHenry Road,
Long Grove, Illinois during
regular business hours.
The Architectural Commis-
sion reserves the rights to
continue the hearing to a
later date and time should
that become necessary.
Architectural Commission
Village of Long Grove
Published in Daily Herald
October 27, 2022 (4590442)

Public Hearings
& Notices

If you’re saving things
for a rainy day...

STOP!
You can expect sunshine and fast re-
sults when you place ad in the Daily
Herald Classified. To place an ad or
for more information call today...

847-427-4444 or
630-955-0008

Public Hearings
& Notices

LEGAL NOTICE
WILDWOOD PARK DISTRICT

Notice of Posting of Tentative Tax Levy for
Public Inspection

Notice is hereby given by the Board of Commissioners of
the Wildwood Park District that a Tentative Tax Levy for
the Wildwood Park District, Lake County, Illinois for the
tax year 2022 is available for public inspection outside the
administrative office of the Wildwood Park District, 33325
N Sears Blvd, Wildwood, Illinois 60030, every day, Monday
through Sunday, during park hours on the outside bulletin
board and on our website at www.wildwoodparkdistrict.
com under Forms and Financials. Said Tentative
Ordinance, notice having been made by publication in the
Daily Herald, being the newspaper published within this
District; will be posted for at least 20 days prior to the
public hearing held on, November 21, 2022, Regular Board
Meeting at 7:00 PM, located at Rule House, 33335 N Sears
Blvd, Wildwood, Illinois 60030, in which said ordinance will
be voted upon. For further information, please email
the Park District Manager, Brandon Magnini, at
bmagnini@wildwoodparkdistrict.com or call 847-223-7275.

Published in Daily Herald October 27, 2022 (4590447)

LEGAL NOTICE, IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
NlNETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, LAKE COUNTY, IL-
LINOIS, COUNTY OF LAKE a body politic and corporate
of Illinois, Plaintiff, vs. CHICAGO TITLE LAND TRUST
COMPANY, as SUCCESSOR TO BANK OF WAUKEGAN,
as TRUSTEE UNDER A TRUST AGREEMENT DA TED
THE 12th DAY OF MARCH, 1991 and KNOWN AS TRUST
NUMBER 3656; and UNKNOWN OWNERS and
NONRECORD CLAIMANTS, Defendants,
General No. 22 ED 17, filed: September 28, 2022.
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO UNKNOWN OWNERS
and NONRECORD CLAIMANTS, that an action is now
pending in the court as shown above to fix the compensa-
tion for certain property located in Lake County, Illinois,
for the reconstruction and improvement of the intersection
of Steams School Road (County Highway 74) at U.S. Route
41, and as more particularly described in the Complaint for
Condemnation above referred to and now on file in the Of-
fice of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Lake County. The en-
tire legal description of said property is as follows:
Parcel 1NP0003:
That part of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter
of Section 10, Township 45 North, Range 11 East of the
Third Principal Meridian, in Lake County, Illinois, bear-
ings and distances based on the Illinois State Plane Coordi-
nate System, East Zone, NAD83 (2011 Adjustment), with a
combined factor of 0.999975, described as follows:
Beginning at the intersection of the North line of the South-
east quarter of Section 10 and the West line of the Southeast
quarter of the Northeast quarter of said Section 10; thence
on an Illinois Coordinate System NAD 83 (2011) East Zone
along the North line of the Southeast quarter, bearing of
South 89 degrees 54 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of
533.41 feet to the intersection with the Westerly line of U.S.
Route 41 (as per Doc. 408181, Rec. January 11, 1935);
thence North 30 degrees 09 minutes 49 seconds West along
said Westerly line, a distance of 120.00 feet; thence South 51
degrees 14 minutes 59 seconds West, a distance of 58.43
feet; thence North 89 degrees 54 minutes 14 seconds West, a
distance of 426.93 feet to a point on the West line of the
Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter of said Section
10; thence South 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds West
along said West line of the Southeast quarter of the North-
east quarter, a distance of 67.00 feet to the point of begin-
ning, in Lake County, Illinois.
Said parcel containing 0.818 Acres, more or less (of which,
0.572 Acres, more or less, was previously dedicated or used
for highway purposes).
P.I.N.: 07-10-200-013
Parcel 1NP0003TE-A:
That part of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter
of Section 10, Township 45 North, Range 11 East of the
Third Principal Meridian, in Lake County, Illinois, bear-
ings and distances based on the Illinois State Plane Coordi-
nate System, East Zone, NAD83 (2011 Adjustment), with a
combined factor of 0.999975, described as follows:
Commencing at the intersection of the North line of Stearns
School Road ( as per Doc. 33 73031, Rec. July 28, 1993) and
the West line of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast
quarter of said Section 10; thence on an Illinois Coordinate
System NAD 83 (2011) East Zone along said West line of the
Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter, bearing of
North 00 degrees 31 minutes i2 seconds East, a distance of
20.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing North
00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East along said West line,
a distance of 15.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 54 minutes
14 seconds East, a distance of 106.37 feet; thence North 00
degrees 05 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 40.00
feet; thence South 89 degrees 54 minutes 14 seconds East, a
distance of 55.00 feet; thence South 00 degrees 05 minutes 46
seconds West, a distance of 20.00 feet; thence South 89 de-
grees 54 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 120.00 feet;
thence South 48 degrees 43 minutes 05 seconds East, a dis-
tance of 45.56 feet; thence South 89 degrees 54 minutes 14
seconds East, a distance of 88.14 feet; thence North 76 de-
grees 35 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 42.82 feet;
thence South 51 degrees 14 minutes 59 seconds West, a dis-
tance of23.91 feet; thence North 89 degrees 54 minutes 14
seconds West, a distance of 426.93 feet to the point of begin-
ning, in Lake County, Illinois.
Said parcel containing 0.235 Acres, more or less.
P.I.N.: 07-10-200-013
Parcel 1NP0003TE-B:
That part of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter
of Section 10, Township 45 North, Range 11 East of the
Third Principal Meridian, in Lake County, Illinois, bear-
ings and distances based on the Illinois State Plane Coordi-
nate System, East Zone, NAD83 (2011 Adjustment), with a
combined factor of 0.999975, described as follows:
Commencing at the intersection of the North line of Stearns
School Road (as per Doc. 3373031, Rec. July 28, 1993) and
the Westerly line of U.S. Route 41 (as per Doc. 408181, Rec.
January 11, 1935); thence on an Illinois Coordinate System
NAD 83 (2011) East Zone along said Westerly line of U.S.
Route 41, bearing of North 30 degrees 09 minutes 49 seconds
West, a distance of 165.69 feet to the point of beginning;
thence North 39 degrees 14 minutes 49 seconds West along
the Westerly line of U.S. Route 41, a distance of 126.56 feet;
thence South 50 degrees 45 minutes 11 seconds West, a dis-
tance of 5.00 feet; thence South 39 degrees 14 minutes 49
seconds East, a distance of 126.56 feet; thence North 50 de-
grees 45 minutes 11 seconds East, a distance of 5.00 feet to
the point of beginning, in Lake County, Illinois.
Said parcel containing 0.015 Acres, more or less.
P.I.N.: 07-10-200-013
Parcel 1NP0003TE-C:
That part of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter
of Section 10, Township 45 North, Range 11 East of the
Third Principal Meridian, in Lake County, Illinois, bear-
ings and distances based on the Illinois State Plane Coordi-
nate System, East Zone, NAD83 (2011 Adjustment), with a
combined factor of 0.999975, described as follows:
Commencing at the intersection of the North line of Steams
School Road (as per Doc. 3373031, Rec. July 28, 1993) and
the Westerly line of U.S. Route 41 (as per Doc. 408181, Rec.
January 11, 1935); thence on an Illinois Coordinate System
NAD 83 (2011) East Zone along said Westerly line of U.S.
Route 41, bearing of North 30 degrees 09 minutes 49 seconds
West, a distance of 165.69 feet; thence North 39 degrees 14
minutes 49 seconds West along the Westerly line of U.S.
Route 41, a distance of 126.56 feet; thence North 08 degrees
21 minutes 49 seconds West along the Westerly line of U.S.
Route 41, a distance of 53.80 feet to the point of beginning;
thence North 30 degrees 09 minutes 49 seconds West along
the Westerly line of U.S. Route 41, a distance of 80.00 feet;
thence South 59 degrees 50 minutes 11 seconds West, a dis-
tance of 5.00 feet; thence South 30 degrees 09 minutes 49
seconds East, a distance of 80.00 feet; thence North 59 de-
grees 50 minutes 11 seconds East, a distance of 5.00 feet to
the point of beginning, in Lake County, Illinois.
Said parcel containing 0.009 Acres, ( 400 square feet), more
or less.
P.I.N.: 07-10-200-013
YOU ARE FURTHER NOTIFIED to file your appearance
on or before January 3, 2023 and if you fail to do so or do not
otherwise make your appearance on or before said time,
this cause may be tried, just compensation determined,
and judgment entered as prayed for in said Complaint
without further notice.
Date: August 9, 2022
/s/ ERIN CARTWRIGHT WEINSTEIN,
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
Jamie Helton, Assistant State’s Attorney
18 North County St., Waukegan, IL 60085, 847-377-3050
Published in Daily Herald Oct 27, Nov 3,10, 2022 (4590486)

PUBLIC NOTICE FOR HEARING ON AMENDMENTS
TO AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

PLEASE BE NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be
held at the request of Jim Arneson (d.b.a. FoxArneson,
Inc.) before the North Aurora Village Board on Monday,
November 21, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. at the North Aurora Village
Board Meeting Room, 25 E. State Street, North Aurora,
Illinois.
The petitioner and property owners request amendments
to the Annexation Agreement for the Willard’s Corner
Development approved on August 9, 2004, and recorded on
August 31st, 2004, as Document #2004K115411, which
amendment will affect the area legally described as
follows:
LOT 6 AND LOT 8 OF WILLARD’S CORNER IN THE
NORTHEAST ¼ AND THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION
6, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS
The subject properties are located in the Village of North
Aurora and zoned B-2 General Business District and have
already been granted a special use for a community
business district planned unit development, known as the
Willard’s Corner Planned Unit Development (“PUD”). The
petitioner is proposing to expand the existing 236,776
square foot Woodman’s food store with a +67,642 square
foot warehouse addition to be constructed on the northern
portion of the building. The petitioner is requesting a
Special Use - Planned Unit Development Amendment with
deviations to the Planned Unit Development; Site Plan
Approval; Preliminary Final Plat of Subdivision to
accommodate the warehouse addition onto the Woodman’s
food store. The site plans and other documentation are on
file at the office of the Community Development
Department and are available for public inspection. Public
comments may be taken at such hearing.
DATED: This 25th day of October, 2022.
/s/ Mike Toth
Community and Economic Development Director

Published in Daily Herald October 27, 2022 (4590444)

NOTICE OF
PUBLIC HEARING

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby
given to all persons inter-
ested that:
Ghanshyam Patel (Owner)
1000 Northwest Highway &

Clear Channel Outdoor
(Applicant)

4000 S. Morgan Street,
Chicago, IL 60609

have filed an application
with the Planning & Zoning
Commission of the Village of
Fox River Grove requesting
variances to allow the con-
struction of a 35’11” by 11’
back to back digital pole
sign billboard in a business
district otherwise not per-
mitted by the following sec-
tions of the Fox River Grove
zoning ordinance:
IX.1.8.b.iii. – Non-conform-
ing signs must be removed
or brought into confor-
mance if the sign or sign
structure is replaced;
IX.1.8.b.vii. - Non-conform-
ing signs must be removed
or brought into confor-
mance if the name of the ad-
vertised business on the sign
changes; IX.1.9.a. – Signs
which advertise anything
other than the name of the
business or a product sold
on the premises where the
sign is located; IX.1.9.g. –
Pole signs are prohibited in
all districts; IX.1.9.u. – Bill-
boards are prohibited in all
districts; IX.1.11.k.i. – Elec-
tronic message display
boards may only display
alpha-numeric characters
on not more than three (3)
lines. An electronic mes-
sage display board shall not
display, or give the appear-
ance of displaying, any
graphic, photographic or
pictorial images; IX.1.11.k.
iii. – Electronic message
display boards may not
have sign faces exceeding
twenty-five square feet (25
sq. ft.); IX.1.11.k. iv. – Elec-
tronic message display
boards must be part of a
ground-mounted monument
sign
The subject property is
known as: 1000 Northwest
Highway, Fox River Grove,
Illinois and is zoned B2.
The subject property index
number (PIN) is: 20-20-20-
278-011.
The application may be
viewed at the office of the
Village Clerk, 305 Illinois
Street, Fox River Grove, IL
60021. Refer to Zoning Case
No. 2022-05.
A public hearing will be con-
ducted before the Planning
& Zoning Commission, at
the Fox River Grove Munic-
ipal Center, 305 Illinois
Street, Fox River Grove, IL
on Thursday, November 17,
2022 at 7:00 p.m. at which
time the Planning & Zoning
Commission will hear evi-
dence presented on this
matter.
Objections, if any, to the
variances being requested
in the application may be
made in writing and filed
with the Village Clerk of the
Village of Fox River Grove
before the hearing or may
be made verbally at the
hearing.
Dated this 25th day of
October, 2022.
Becky Korpan,
Deputy Village Clerk
Published in Daily Herald
October 27, 2022 (4590389)

Treasurer Reports

Treasurer Reports

VILLAGE OF LAKE VILLA
ANNUAL TREASURER’S REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2022

REVENUES
PROPERTY TAX 2,494,057; SALES TAX 1,267,159; LOCAL USE TAX 336,057;
TELECOMMUNICATION TAX 110,356; UTILITY TAX – GAS 172,856; UTILITY TAX –
ELECTRIC 304,364; STATE INCOME TAX 1,271,921; STATE REPLACEMENT TAX
32,673; STATE MOTOR FUEL TAX 370,130; REBUILD IL FUNDS 192,022; INTEREST
25,069; GRANTS 644,620; WATER TOWER 35,625; BUILDING PERMITS 131,812;
BUSINESS REGISTRATION FEES 5,300; IMPACT FEES 1,800; LIQUOUR LICENCES
34,150; SITE DEVELOPMENT PERMITS 6,360; VEHICLE LICENSES 97,090;
VENDING LICENSES 16,975; NATURAL GAS FRANCHISE 17,204; COURT FINES
91,610; PARKING & OTHER FINES 21,860; CABLE FRNCHISE FEES 156,506;
INVESTMENT INCOME 44,600; POLICE REPORTS 2,575; SCHOOL REOURCE
OFFICER FEES 109,376; WATER SALES 2,094,964; SEWER SALES 1,377,827; REFUSE
& RECYCLE 645,189; CONNECTION FEES 58,129; WATER METER SALES 6,405;
INSPECTION FEES 1,320; OTHER REVENUE 421,478
TOTAL: 12,599,439

EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES
AAA PAVING 28,600; AEP ENERGY 109,414; AFLAC 26,812; ANTIOCH AUTO PARTS
12,310; ANTIOCH TOWNSHIP HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 10,265; APPLE
MECHANICAL INC 14,239; APPLIED TECHNOLOGIES 140,767; ARENA AMERICAS
2,599; A-TIRE COUNTY SERVICE, INC. 2,666; ATLAS BOBCAT, LLC 2,680; AXON
ENTERPRISE, INC. 3,015; BILLER PRESS & MFG., INC. 4,092; BLECK
ENGINEERING CO., INC. 12,689; BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD 530,327; BOTTS
WELDING & TRK SERVICE INC. 7,344; BROOKS-ALLAN 2,941; BS&A SOFTWARE
8,814; C.O.P.S. TESTING SERVICE, INC. 9,300; CALLONE 4,731; CARDMEMBER
SERVICE 24,019; CARPET CASTLE INC. 4,305; CENTRAL LAKE COUNTY JAWA
611,833; CHICAGOLAND PAVING 79,534; CIVICPLUS LLC 7,575; CLARENCE DAVIDS
& CO 15,235; CLEAN SWEEP 5,150; COLETTE & ANO PLUMBING CO INC 8,271;
COLLEGE OF DUPAGE 4,335; COMCAST CABLE 4,993; COMED 89,136; CONSERV FS,
INC. 77,309; CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY, INC. 85,747; CORE & MAIN LP 12,467;
CREEVY REAL ESTATE, LLC. 15,879; CURRIE MOTORS 34,182; DATA
INTEGRATORS, INC. 8,786; DAVE'S TRANSMISSION INC. 4,660; DAVID'S CAVE
BARBER ACADEMY 9,640; DEKIND COMPUTER CONSULTANTS 28,088; DIXON
ENGINEERING, INC. 6,400; DORNER PRODCTS, LLC 7,543; EAGLE POINT GUN/ T J
MORRIS & SONS 3,121; EDER, CASELLA & CO. 26,750; EGOV STRATEGIES 2,550;
ENERGENECS 22,523; EPOXY FLOOR WIZARD 14,100; ESTEBAN MONTES 6,488;
EUCLID MANAGERS 33,038; EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC 8,476; FOX
RECOVERY & TOWING 3,100; GALL'S, LLC 10,106; GEWALT HAMILTON
ASSOCIATES, INC. 78,758; GIUSEPPE GALATI 11,550; GRAINGER 6,917; GRUNDFOS
CBS INC. 7,400; HARBOR BREWING COMPANY 115,000; HAVEY COMMUNICATIONS,
INC. 10,401; HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7,538; HYDRAULIC SERVICE &
REPAIR INC 5,577; ICOPS 5,700; ID NETWORKS 4,213; ILLINOIS EPA 269,232; IML
RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 228,391; INTERSTATE BILLING SERVICE, IN
3,999; JAMES P. BATEMAN, LTD. 96,743; JOANNE L WEIDEMANN-WOLF 6,800; JON
M. TACK, P.E. 6,598; KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY, INC. 2,530; KLM BUILDERS, INC.
4,696; KUNES' COUNTRY 30,958; L.G. AUTOMOTIVE 2,805; LAKE AND POND
SOLUTIONS CO. 14,248; LAKE COUNTY COLLECTOR 3,434; LAKE COUNTY PUBLIC
WORKS 820,206; LAKE COUNTY TREASURER 60,005; LAKE VILLA INVESTMENT
GROUP LLC 2,957; LAKE VILLA POLICE PENSION FUND 143,699; LAKELAND
AUTOBODY INC 2,518; LAKELAND SEPTIC SERVICE 2,522; LAKELAND/LARSEN
3,695; LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS 7,301; LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP
67,940; LEE JENSEN SALES CO. INC. 3,160; LEECH AND DENOMA 3,600; LEO J. FOX
TRUCKING 18,965; LEXIPOL LLC 6,880; LINDENHURST PARK DISTRICT 5,000; M.E.
SIMPSON COMPANY, INC. 14,684; MAGEE HARTMAN, P.C. 36,312; MANHARD
CONSULTING, LTC 2,800; MARQUEE EVENT RENTALS 4,247; MEADE INDUSTRIES,
INC 8,263; MENARDS - ANTIOCH 11,873; MID AMERICAN WATER 12,736; MIDWEST
AGGREGATES 5,793; MILIEU DESIGN LLC 6,561; MILLBURN TREE FARM 2,860;
MILLIEU DESIGN LLC 40,258; MORTON SALT 48,238; MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC.
11,549; MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEE V.E.B.A. TRUST 12,921; NACO RETIREMENT
SOLUTIONS 101,217; NICOR GAS 36,770; NORLAND HOLDINGS, LLC. 8,785; NORTH
EAST MULTI-REGIONAL 2,820; NORTHEASTERN IL REGIONAL CRIME LAB 15,325;
OLSEN TUCKPOINTING COMPANY 9,170; PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS, INC. 5,060;
PALDO SIGN CO. 13,018; PDC LABORATORIES, INC. 3,688; PEERLESS NETWORK,
INC. 3,983; PETE'S PERFECTION PLUS, INC 8,558; PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL 3,509;
RAY O'HERRON CO., INC 9,822; RAY SCHRAMER & CO 5,165; RECYCLED RUBBER
PRODUCTS 4,193; REVERE ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO. 3,199; RUSSO POWER
EQUIPMENT 2,549; SCHOOL DISTRICT #117 4,806; SCHOOL DISTRICT #41 5,944;
SCHROEDER & SCHROEDER INC. 24,305; SHROEDER & SHROEDER 23,084;
SONDAY SERVICES 33,860; SPECTRUM PYROTECHNICS, INC. 9,000; SPOT-LESS
6,915; STATE BANK OF THE LAKES356,772; STERLING CODIFIERS, INC 3,237;
STREICHER'S 8,058; SUN LAKE MATERIALS 3,980; SUPERIOR PAVING INC 82,680;
SWALCO 4,068; T.O.P.S. IN DOG TRAINING CORP. 3,200; TECHSTAR AMERICA
CORPORATION 3,225; TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC. 32,867; THE RETAIL COACH 37,000;
THOMAS AND DIANE TIMM 4,327; TKB ASSOCIATES, INC. 3,746;
TREASURER,STATE OF ILLINOIS 68,116; TREDROC TIRE SERVICES 5,456; TRIGGI
CONSTRUCTION 2,605; TROXELL 2,646; UNCLAIMED PROPERTY DIVISION 50,542;
USA BLUE BOOK 8,555; VERIZON WIRELESS 7,949; VILLAGE OF BUFFALO GROVE
3,480; VILLAGE OF FOX LAKE 61,050; WAREHOUSE DIRECT 35,351; WASTE
MANAGEMENT OF ILLINOIS 621,573; WATCHGUARD VIDEO 5,812; WATER
PRODUCTS - AURORA 3,131; XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS 12,692; EXPENSE
DISBURSEMENTS UNDER 2,500.00 161,310
TOTAL: 6,438,146

PAYROLL – Up to $24,999: BARBATO, BARRETTE, BATTISTONE, BELL, BULANDA,
CAHANIN, CARL, COIA, COLES, CRAMOND, DEKIND, DENZEL, HARMS,
JUSZCZYK, KOFOED, KONRAD, KRESSNER, KRUCKEBERG, LINCOLN,
LOFFREDO, MCDONALD, NIELSEN, O’REILLY, ROSENBERG, SKINNER,
SKINNER, SMART, THOMPSON
PAYROLL – $25,000 to $49,999: GIULIANI, MERCURE, SAVELL, TURNER, WESTMAN,
WILLIAMS
PAYROLL – $50,000 to $74,999: BAGHDASARIAN, BARNSTABLE, CALIENDO, COYNE,
DEMSKI, DREYER, DVORAK, EFFINGER, GESINSKI, HESSLER, MICHAEL,
PETERSEN, REGNIER, RING, WILLER
PAYROLL –$ 75,000 to $99,999: BOWLES, CASTRO, DECARO, DIONNE, FRAGALE,
GARDINER, GERATY, GOMEZ, HEITMAN, HORTON, LINDBERG, WINQUIST
PAYROLL – $100,000 to $124,999: MCCOLLUM, SOMERVILLE, TISINAI
PAYROLL - $125,000 and Over: WARWICK

Published in daily Herald October 27, 2022 (4590379)

Treasurer Reports

LOOKING
TO HIRE??!!
TAKE ADVANTAGE OF
THE DAILY HERALD

CLASSIFIEDS

FIRST TIME
ADVERTISERS
RECEIVE 25%
DISCOUNT

CALL KEVIN THOMSON
@ 847-427-4780

FOR YOUR
RECRUITMENT NEEDS

TIRED???
If you are tired of

having a garage or base-
ment full of junk, empty it

FAST with an
ACTION AD

in the
DAILY HERALD

Classfied.

Notice of Public Sale Self-Storage 1 of Lincoln Park Notice
of Public Sale of property in accordance with Illinois State
Law, Section 4 of the Self-Service Storage Facility Act, and
to satisfy landlord's lien. Sale is Friday, November 11 ,2022
at 2001 N. Elston Avenue, Chicago, IL 60614, (773-276-9000)
at 11:00am. Due to the COVID-19 PANDEMIC the auction
will take place online and not at the Self Storage 1 facility.
Please log on at: https://www.storagetreasures.com and
follow the links to this sale.
Contents of all units at this Sale are purchased "as is" and
"where is" for cash to the highest bidder. Seller reserves
the right to refuse any bid. Changes made day of sale take
precedence Notice of Public Sale Self-Storage 1 of over
printed material. Property of following tenants:
Unit #0416 Jacob Morales, Unit #2157 Marcel Taylor, Unit
#2159 Matthew Lee, Unit #2171 Marcel Taylor, Unit #2191
James Bernard Gilbert, Unit #3122 Joshua Kohn, Unit #3432
George Marriat, Unit #3451 Marilyn R. Zatz, Unit #5339
Marcel Taylor

Published in Daily Herald October 20, 27, 2022 (4590032)

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Tax Increment Fi-
nancing Districts of the Village of Bartlett, Cook, DuPage
and Kane Counties, Illinois, will hold Joint Review Board
Public Meetings for the Brewster Creek TIF, the Route 59
and Lake Street TIF and the Bluff City TIF starting at 2:00
PM on Thursday, November 17, 2022 at the Bartlett Munic-
ipal Center, 228 South Main Street, Bartlett, Illinois. The
agendas and financial statements are available for public
viewing at the Bartlett Village Hall located at 228 South
Main Street in the Administration Department from 8:30
A.M. to 4:30 P.M. Monday through Friday. All interested
parties are invited to attend and will be given an opportu-
nity to be heard. If an accommodation for an individual
with a disability is necessary, please contact Tony Fradin,
Economic Development Coordinator, Village of Bartlett,
IL. (630) 540-5937.
Published in Daily Herald October 27, 2022 (4590391)

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hear-
ing will be held by the Buffalo Grove Planning & Zoning
Commission on November 16, 2022, at 7:30 P.M. in the Jef-
fery S. Braiman Council Chambers, Buffalo Grove Munici-
pal Building, 50 Raupp Boulevard, Buffalo Grove, IL con-
cerning the following matters:
SUBJECT:A Petition to the Village of Buffalo Grove for ap-
proval of an amendment to the underlying Planned Unit
Development for the subject property to allow the installa-
tion of a 10-foot tower extension and additional ground
equipment within the existing enclosure on the site, which
will allow the co-location of New Cingular Wireless PCS,
LLC equipment on and below the existing cellular tower at
185 N. Milwaukee Avenue.
PETITIONER:

Michael Gasser
Crown Castle/New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC
9045 River Road, Suite 425
Indianapolis, IN 46240

PARCEL INDEX NUMBERS: 15-35-402-135
SUBJECT PROPERTY COMMON ADDRESS:

185 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Buffalo Grove, IL
Documents submitted by the petitioner for the public hear-
ing concerning this petition are on file with the Village
Clerk and the Department of Community Development, 50
Raupp Boulevard, and may be examined by any interested
persons. Anyone with questions concerning the hearing
may contact Kelly Purvis, 847-777-6047.
All persons present at the public hearing will be given the
opportunity to be heard.
Dated this 28th day of October 2022.
Frank Cesario, Chair
Buffalo Grove Plan Commission
Publishd in Daily Herald October 27, 2022 (4590480)

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hear-
ing will be held by the Buffalo Grove Planning & Zoning
Commission on November 16, 2022, at 7:30 P.M. in the Jef-
fery S. Braiman Council Chambers, Buffalo Grove Munici-
pal Building, 50 Raupp Boulevard, Buffalo Grove, IL con-
cerning the following matters:
SUBJECT:Petitions to the Village of Buffalo Grove for an
amendment to the preliminary plan and special use ap-
proved by Ordinance No. 95-26 and a zoning variation from
Section 17.32 of the Zoning Code to allow accessory struc-
tures to be greater than 15 feet in height.
PETITIONER:Tim Howe, Director of Parks and Planning

Buffalo Grove Park District
530 Bernard Drive
Buffalo Grove, IL 60089

The Buffalo Grove Park District is proposing to construct
an amphitheater and covered event structure, expand their
spray & play facility, and remove and replace the play-
ground at Mike Rylko Park.
PARCEL INDEX NUMBER:15-29-400-017 & 15-29-400-019
SUBJECT PROPERTY COMMON ADDRESS:

951 McHenry Road, Buffalo Grove, IL
Also known as Mike Rylko Park

Documents submitted by the petitioner for the public hear-
ing concerning this petition are on file with the Village
Clerk and the Department of Community Development, 50
Raupp Boulevard, and may be examined by any interested
persons. Anyone with questions concerning the hearing
may contact Kelly Purvis, 847-777-6047.
All persons present at the public hearing will be given the
opportunity to be heard.
Dated this 28th day of October 2022.
Frank Cesario, Chair
Buffalo Grove Plan Commission
Publishd in Daily Herald October 27, 2022 (4590479)

One way to find a bargain...
Check the Classified
for bargains galore!

and
when you need to sell

something fast
at a bargain price.

Call 847-427-4444 or
630-955-0008

Public Hearings
& Notices

DRIVE
USED
CAR

BUYERS
TO

YOUR
DOOR

with a
Classified Auto Ad!

dailyherald.com/placead

StoragePublic Hearings
& Notices

Treasurer Reports

STATE OF ILLINOIS)
) SS

COUNTY OF KANE )
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE SIXTEENTH
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS
IN RE THE MATTER OF
THE ESTATE OF:
CAROL MARY SITOWSKI,

Deceased.
2022 PR 000454

PUBLICATION NOTICE
NOTICE IS HEREBY
GIVEN of the death of
CAROL MARY SITOWSKI
whose address was 1101 E.
State Street, Geneva, IL
60134.
Letters of Administration
were issued to
DR. MICHAEL FRANZEN,
as Independent Executor,
whose attorney of record is
Attorney Natalie M. Stec;
WOLFE & STEC, LTD. 3321
Hobson Road, Suite B,
Woodridge, Illinois 60517.
The estate will be adminis-
tered without Court Supervi-
sion, unless under Section
28-4 of the Probate Act of
1975 (755 ILCS 5/28-4) any
interested person termi-
nates independent adminis-
tration at any time by mail-
ing or delivering a petition
to terminate to the Circuit
Court Clerk. Claims against
the estate may be filed in the
Office of THERESA E.
BARREIRO, Circuit Court
Clerk, 540 S. Randall Rd.,
St, Charles, Illinois, or with
the representative or both
on or before November 28,
2022, any claim not filed
within that period is barred.
Copies of a claim filed with
the Circuit Court Clerk must
be mailed or delivered to the
representative and to the at-
torney, if any, within ten
(10) days after it has been
filed with the Circuit Clerk.

Dated: October 18, 2022
Clerk of 16th Judicial
Circuit Court
St, Charles, Illinois

Natalie M. Stec
Wolfe & Stec, Ltd.
ARDC No. 6273095
3321 Hobson Road, Suite B
Woodridge, IL 60517
630-305-0222
Natalie@wolfeandstec.com
Published in Daily Herald
Oct. 20, 27, Nov. 3, 2022
(4590128)

LOOKING
TO HIRE??!!
TAKE ADVANTAGE OF
THE DAILY HERALD

CLASSIFIEDS

FIRST TIME
ADVERTISERS
RECEIVE 25%
DISCOUNT

CALL KEVIN THOMSON
@ 847-427-4780

FOR YOUR
RECRUITMENT NEEDS

Notice of Public Sale
Wrigleyville Notice of Public Sale of property in accor-
dance with Illinois State Law, Section 4 of the Self-Service
Storage Facility Act, and to satisfy landlord's lien. Sale is
Friday, November 11, 2022 for the Self Storage 1 facility lo-
cated at 3839 N. Sheffield Avenue, Chicago, IL 60613, (773-
477-6000) at 11:00am.
Due to the COVID-19 PANDEMIC the auction will take
place online and not at the Self Storage 1 facility. Please log
on at: https://www.storagetreasures.com and follow the
links to this sale.
Contents of all units at this Sale are purchased "as is" and
"where is" for cash to the highest bidder. Seller reserves
the right to refuse any bid. Changes made day of sale take
precedence Notice of Public Sale Self-Storage 1 of over
printed material. Property of following tenants: Unit 1100
Samuel A Gloria; Unit 1162 Michael B Marcrumb; Unit
3089 Erica B Turner; Unit 3180 Jeffrey M Leach; Unit 4089A
Larry King; Unit 4092 Jeffrey M Leach;

Published in Daily Herald October 20, 27, 2022 (4589835)

Treasurer Reports

Probate

LEGAL NOTICE
VILLAGE OF

LONG GROVE, ILLINOIS
NOTICE OF A HEARING
BEFORE THE ARCHITEC-
TURAL COMMISSION OF
LONG GROVE FOR CON-
SIDERATION OF EXTE-
RIOR SIGNAGE ON THE
PROPERTY LOCATED AT
327 OLD MCHENRY ROAD,
LONG GROVE, ILLINOIS
AND WITHIN THE B-1 HIS-
TORIC BUSINESS ZONING
DISTRICT.
PUBLIC NOTICE IS
HEREBY GIVEN that on
Monday, November 21, 2022
at 7:00 p.m., a hearing will
be held at the Architectural
Commission meeting of the
Village of Long Grove, Lake
County, Illinois, at the Long
Grove Village Hall, 3110 Old
McHenry Road, Long
Grove, Illinois 60047, in con-
nection with an application
for exterior signage for Hid-
den Gem (retail store) on
the property located at 327
Old McHenry Road, Long
Grove, Illinois, and located
within the B-1 Historic Busi-
ness Zoning District.
Commonly known as 327 Old
McHenry Road, Long
Grove, Illinois and consist-
ing of approximately 0.69
acres.

PINs: 15-30-100-018
Persons attending the hear-
ing shall have the opportu-
nity to provide written and
oral comments and ques-
tions concerning the propo-
sal. The above information,
together with the plans for
the property, will be avail-
able for inspection at the
Long Grove Village Hall,
3110 Old McHenry Road,
Long Grove, Illinois during
regular business hours.
The Architectural Commis-
sion reserves the rights to
continue the hearing to a
later date and time should
that become necessary.
Architectural Commission
Village of Long Grove
Published in Daily Herald
October 27, 2022 (4590443)

VILLAGE OF GLENDALE HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS
ANNUAL TREASURER’S REPORT

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2022

REVENUES BY SOURCE

Taxes $21,504,706
Licenses, Permits & Fees $1,771,963
Charges for Services $15,342,339
Fines & Forfeitures $1,365,521
Intergovernmental $17,599,079
Miscellaneous $4,329,971
Interfund Transfers $4,691,026
TOTAL REVENUES $66,604,605

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Beginning Balance Revenues/Increases Expenditures/Decreases Ending Balance
General $15,563,241 $36,975,314 $30,347,081 $22,191,494
Special Revenue $6,788,235 $9,429,643 $7,558,946 $8,658,932
Capital Projects $2,527,513 $615,531 $1,925,105 $1,217,939
Debt Service $398,841 $3,171,539 $3,113,896 $456,484
Internal Service $491,585 $1,041,813 $988,329 $545,069
Enterprise $40,729,943 $13,720,324 $10,836,744 $43,613,523
Police Pension $53,684,044 $1,650,441 $3,596,957 $51,737,528
Agency $157,906 $-0- $98,755 $59,151
Total $120,341,328 $66,604,605 $58,465,813 $128,480,120

Total Vendors $2,500 and under $282,291.48. Vendors $2,500.01 and up: DREISILKER ELECTRIC MOTORS, INC. 2,513.19,
DUPAGE COUNTY ANIMAL CONTROL 2,555.00, CAPITAL ONE TRADE CREDIT 2,573.94, GIFTS GALORE 2,600.00, THOMSON
REUTERS WEST PAYMENT CENTER 2,608.97, DOBRINCU, ORLANDO 2,627.00, KH KIM TAEKWONDO 2,630.60, RCN
2,631.07, JUST IN TIME POOL & SPA 2,678.00, VORIS MECHANICAL, INC 2,718.08, TEMPLE DISPLAY 2,748.89, ELEVATOR
INSPECTION SERVICE CO 2,780.00, FINKBINER EQUIPMENT CO.,INC 2,800.00, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS 2,808.00,
GLENDALE HEIGHTS FOUNDATION 2,821.00, BEST OFFICIALS 2,850.00, W-T GROUP, LLC 2,850.00, CRUSH-CRETE, INC
2,875.00, GERBER COLLISION & GLASS 2,987.88, DUPAGE COUNTY 3,000.00, RADARSIGN, INC 3,011.50, ITASCA WINDOW
CLEANING 3,030.00, ASTROBLAST, INC 3,050.00, SECURITY SERVICES GROUP, INC 3,145.00, PHYLAX SOLUTIONS -MARK
CASSITY 3,150.00, BODE TECHNOLOGY 3,160.00, VANGUARD ARCHIVES LLC 3,182.00, STENSTROM PETROLEUM
SERVICES GROUP 3,195.00, EZ-GO DIVISION OF TEXTRON 3,230.29, G.W. BERKHEIMER COMPANY INC. 3,237.61, PALOS
SPORTS INC. 3,250.85, ILLINOIS COMMUNICATIONS SALES INC 3,257.10, QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC 3,295.62, RED
WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT 3,325.46, NEUCO 3,349.53, KIDS KARATE CLUB 3,411.75, FULTON SIREN
SERVICES 3,412.49, TRANE U.S. INC 3,418.59, AHEAD LLC 3,458.10, ASSURANCE FIRE & SAFETY, INC 3,485.30, UNITED
STATES CONF. OF MAYORS 3,489.00, CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 3,500.00, FOP LODGE 52 3,500.00, TAUTKUS, JOHN
3,500.00, ARAMARK REFRESHMENT SERVICES 3,502.08, J.W. TURF, INC. 3,534.82, ILLINI POWER PRODUCTS 3,544.00, AIR
FILTERS ENGINEERS 3,563.33, STERLING CODIFIERS, INC. 3,625.37, ITOUCH BIOMETRICS, LLC 3,670.00, ADVANCED TURF
SOLUTIONS 3,678.00, VILLA PARK ELECTRIC 3,709.38, NORTH AMERICAN CORP OF IL, LLC 3,709.88, CENTRAL TURF &
IRRIGATION SUPPLY 3,747.59, PLAYCRAFT SYSTEMS 3,755.97, DIRECT FITNESS 3,810.30, J.J. KELLER & ASSOCIATES
3,814.06, KOMLINE SANDERSON 3,831.53, KRUEGER INTERNATIONAL, INC 3,931.05, BEDROCK EARTHSCAPES 3,950.00,
THE KNOT WORLDWIDE INC 3,960.00, DUPAGE COUNTY HEALTH DEPT. 3,971.00, DUPAGE COUNTY CHILDREN’S CTR
4,000.00, METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY RESPONSE & 4,000.00, PRESTIGE FLORAL STUDIO 4,020.00, READY REFRESH BY
NESTLE 4,055.50, TEMPERATURE EQUIP CORP. 4,063.47, MUNICIPAL BACKFLOW 4,069.23, C & R DIRECTIONAL BORING,
INC 4,100.00, PERSPECTIVES 4,117.68, PEERLESS NETWORK, INC 4,165.69, RAY O’HERRON CO. INC 4,184.72, ACOM
SOLUTIONS, INC 4,191.00, FENCE CONNECTION, INC 4,200.00, REESE RECREATION PRODUCTS INC. 4,235.00, GENESIS
TECHNOLOGIES, INC 4,238.73, VORTEX TECHNOLOGIES 4,250.00, COMCAST 4,262.38, ULINE 4,301.82, MCCANN
INDUSTRIES INC. 4,318.57, J.U.L.I.E. 4,325.55, INFORMABILITY 4,359.00, FACTORY MOTOR PARTS 4,377.44, NUCO2 INC.
4,382.57, MARQUARDT & BELMONTE P.C. 4,417.81, GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO., INC. 4,430.47, VERIZON WIRELESS 4,467.51,
TIMECLOCK PLUS, LLC 4,473.36, EDWARD OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH 4,585.00, LEADS ONLINE 4,644.00, CALEA 4,670.00,
COMMERCIAL PEST MANAGEMENT, INC 4,740.00, GLENN STEARNS CHAPTER 13 TRUSTEE 4,800.00, ARLINGTON POWER
EQUIPMENT 4,879.99, WESTECH ENGINEERING, INC 4,923.35, SAFE-WAY TUCKPOINTING CO 4,950.00, CHALLENGER
TEAMWEAR 4,959.70, MD DÉCOR 5,052.00, PARK PLACE TECHNOLOGIES 5,101.64, CUMMINS SALES AND SERVICE
5,110.16, RUEKERT & MIELKE, INC. 5,139.50, CARGILL SALT 5,209.02, CINTAS 769 5,223.81, STAPLES ADVANTAGE 5,310.06,
WINTER EQUIPMENT CO. 5,352.97, BATTERY SERVICE CORP 5,399.85, FRONT STREET DANCE CENTER 5,420.52,
REINDERS INC. 5,462.70, GROWING SOLUTIONS, INC 5,472.75, SOUTHWESTERN ILLINOIS COLLEGE 5,482.20, 10-41
5,500.00, INTERSTATE CURB & CONCRETE 5,509.00, SUNRUN INSTALLATION 5,516.49, SUPERIOR ASPHALT MATERIALS
LLC 5,529.40, POLICE LAW INSTITUTE, INC. 5,700.00, DUPAGE TOPSOIL 5,720.00, WAREHOUSE DIRECT 5,739.69,
CERTIFIED BALANCE & SCALE 5,740.00, BAXTER & WOODMAN INC 5,777.69, STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY 5,887.23,
YOUNG SPORTSMEN’S SOCCER LEAGUE 5,930.00, U.S.A. BLUE BOOK 5,990.98, THREE OAKS GROUND COVER 6,000.00,
BEST TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS INC. 6,045.00, MICROSYSTEMS, INC 6,089.73, TKB ASSOCIATES, INC 6,098.00, HALOGEN
SUPPLY COMPANY INC. 6,129.10, AFFILLIATED CUSTOMER SERVICE INC. 6,171.00, AVI SYSTEMS 6,283.00, RUSH TRUCK
CENTERS OF ILLINOIS, INC 6,357.69, CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY, INC 6,419.71, IDENTISYS 6,470.59, START GROUP
6,560.00, LANDSCAPE MATERIAL & FIREWOOD SALES 6,567.00, JC LICHT, LLC 6,576.22, GLOBAL INDUSTRIAL 6,638.00,
IMAGETEC LP 6,730.72, EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 6,872.63, FIRST STUDENT 6,882.75, MAKE A WISH
FOUNDATION 7,000.00, THE STEVENS GROUP 7,034.34, KNOX SWAN & DOG, LLC 7,125.00, BRACING SYSTEMS INC.
7,244.22, BAKING INSTITUTE LLC 7,245.79, PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS 7,328.25, FULLIFE SAFETY CENTER 7,455.85,
VERIZON WIRELESS 7,517.88, E.J. EQUIPMENT 7,528.86, BLUFF CITY MATERIALS, INC 7,692.00, PHYSICIANS IMMEDIATE
CARE 7,814.00, PRIORITY PRODUCTS, INC. 7,842.12, KONE CHICAGO 8,021.04, SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP 8,131.82, PJD
SALES INC. 8,198.00, CAROL STREAM PARK DISTRICT 8,237.91, JPC TREE CARE 8,242.50, KS STATEBANK 8,315.00,
ONSOLVE, LLC 8,500.00, NCPERS GROUP LIFE INS.-IMRF 8,504.00, KIESLER’S POLICE SUPPLY, INC 8,658.40, HYDROTEX
8,822.19, SUNBURST SPORTSWEAR INC 8,878.60, ACCESS ONE, INC 8,960.11, BUMPER TO BUMPER 8,977.34, DILIGENT
CORPORATION 9,000.00, ST. AUBIN NURSERY 9,373.00, ARTHUR CLESEN INC. 9,455.00, EMD BUSINESS FORMS 9,518.64,
ILLINOIS STATE TREASURER 9,526.61, ALLMAX SOFTWARE INC. 9,535.30, POWERDMS, INC. 9,608.72, CYBOR FIRE
PROTECTION COMPANY 9,735.00, OFFICE DEPOT 9,867.64, BTSI 9,883.90, CREATIVE PRODUCT SOURCING INC. DARE
10,016.01, BLU PETROLEUM, INC 10,105.05, ZIEBELL WATER SERVICE PRODUCTS 10,412.38, CONSERV FS 10,485.02,
JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS 10,495.26, NORTH EAST MULTI REGIONAL 10,530.00, J.G. UNIFORMS, INC.
10,625.00, RESOURCE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES 10,633.69, SKYLINE ATHLETES 10,838.80, GASAWAY COMPANY
10,863.64, LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 11,145.00, VERMONT SYSTEMS INC 11,157.41, RAIN FOR RENT 11,238.22, STRYPES
11,385.00, NATES LEATHER & POLICE EQUIP LLC 11,461.00, CALL ONE 11,551.68, SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY 11,672.42,
WATER SERVICES CO. 11,784.00, HOME DEPOT 11,818.21, STRUCTURAL TECHNOLOGIES INC 11,950.00, LAW OFFICES OF
JOHN J. GROTTO 12,000.00, RYDIN DECALS 12,012.76, CHICAGOLAND TURF 12,246.80, DUPAGE SCHOOLS CREDIT
UNION 12,287.10, PHILIPS HEALTHCARE 12,502.30, TESTING SERVICE CORP. 12,557.25, ACUSHNET COMPANY 13,557.07,
HAWKINS, INC 13,696.96, GODING ELECTRIC 13,820.87, POLYDYNE INC. 13,938.00, BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE 14,215.72,
LIBERTY PROCESS EQUIP 14,290.34, PEPSI-COLA 14,536.00, TRAFFIC CONTROL & PROTECTION 14,672.60, DUPAGE
SENIOR COUNCIL 15,000.00, COLLEGE OF DUPAGE (SLEA) 15,091.40, MORGAN SERVICES, INC 15,217.40, FRIENDLY FORD
15,814.19, V3 CONSTRUCTION GROUP, LTD 15,930.00, LAKESHORE RECYCLING SYSTEM, LLC 16,031.33, GALLS, LLC
16,967.61, NIU CENTER FOR GOVERNMENTAL STUDIES 17,350.00, AQUAFIX, INC 17,370.18, PLERUS 17,493.35, SOUND
INCORPORATED 17,507.00, WOW-INTERNET-CABLE-PHONE 17,663.63, LAN ELECTRIC 18,788.16, V1 NORTH LLC 19,088.23,
KANE, MCKENNA & ASSOCIATES INC 19,837.33, COMMERCIAL TIRE SERVICE 19,872.01, ULTIMATE FX LASERS AND
PYROTECHNICS 20,000.00, WINKLER’S TREE & LANDSCAPE 20,250.00, MISC-ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SYSTEM 20,335.02,
WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SERV 20,549.80,DACRA TECH LLC 21,160.50, TOWN & COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 21,183.95,
AFLAC 21,593.02, GUARDIAN 22,528.30, AFSCME COUNCIL 31 22,995.21, HACIENDA LANDSCAPING INC 23,100.00,
ILLINOIS STATE POLICE 23,713.99, SUBURBAN LABORATORIES INC. 24,263.20, WEST SUBURBAN BANK-CC 24,277.70,
HOMER TREE CARE, INC 24,450.00, JENSEN’S PLUMBING & HEATING LLC 24,894.00, FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE
25,056.00, MENARDS/GLENDALE HEIGHTS 25,799.92, STONEGATE LLC 26,212.45, MARSHALL BOND PUMPS 26,228.12,
XYLEM INC 26,234.40, MIDWEST PAVING EQUIPMENT, INC 27,517.10, TITAN SUPPLY INC. 27,746.30, FIFTH THIRD BANK
28,048.42, HITCHCOCK DESIGN, INC 28,218.69, PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE 28,934.40, MONROE TRUCK EQUIP. 29,827.24,
FLOCK SAFETY 30,000.00, NEOFUNDS 30,000.00, DIAMOND TOURS INC. 30,375.00, DUPAGE MAYORS AND MANAGERS
31,526.70, COMCAST BUSINESS 31,627.26, IEPA-DIV. OF POLLUTION CONTROL 32,500.00, STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
34,111.82, VORTEX USA INC 34,783.00, THIRDMILLENNIUMASSOC., INC. 34,944.67, VINCE THOMAS 35,331.25, CREEKSIDE
PRINTING 36,405.12, AT & T MOBILITY II LLC 37,433.27, ELAVON 37,821.35, VILLAGE OF GLENDALE HEIGHTS-REFUNDS
38,382.22, CORE & MAIN LP 38,880.57, NUTOYS LEISURE PRODUCTS 41,591.00, ELMHURST CHICAGO STONE 43,084.50,
BLOOMINGDALE TOWNSHIP 43,414.25, SECURITAS ELECTRONIC SECURITY INC 45,804.10, TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION
NO. 700 48,550.00, CDW-G 51,078.08, DELL COMPUTERS CORPORATION 52,876.10, CURRIE MOTORS FLEET 53,040.00,
CROWE LLP 58,300.00, E.T.S.B. 58,462.11, MARCOTT ENTERPRISES, INC 58,492.51, NICOR GAS 65,557.30, DUKANE
ASPHALT CO. 67,056.40, DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE CO 72,419.91, BLUE MOUNTAIN LANDSCAPING
72,663.00, K-FIVE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION 73,469.72, ECO CLEAN MAINTENANCE, INC 75,629.08, WESTMONT
BUSINESS PARK, LLC 78,356.46, UNITED STATES POST OFFICE 81,151.43, JX TRUCK CENTER- WADSWORTH 87,034.00,
CENTRALSQUARE TECHNOLOGIES 87,391.30, CONCENTRIC INTEGRATION, LLC 99,744.91, GORDON FOOD SERVICES
101,338.85, TWO RIVERS BANK & TRUST 104,625.00, DUPAGE RIVER/SALT CREEK WORKGROUP 106,040.00, ILLINOIS
COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT 109,210.00, COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA INC. 112,871.84, SYNAGRO TECHNOLOGIES,
INC 116,156.03, BOLDER CONTRACTORS, INC 118,290.50, NORTHEAST DUPAGE FAMILY 119,025.53, ENTERPRISE FM
TRUST 127,808.33, SCHROEDER AND SCHROEDER, INC. 128,667.64, COMED 131,698.03, SUPERION, LLC, A
CENTRALSQUARE CO 134,211.72, GUARDIAN-ALTERNATE FUNDED 138,719.73, B & F CONSTRUCTION CODE SERVICES
145,646.65, BCI BURKE COMPANY LLC 150,904.00, J.A. JOHNSON PAVING COMPANY 151,640.59, VILLAGE OF GLENDALE
HEIGHTS 151,869.62, NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 156,345.73, BETTER BUSINESS PLANNING, INC 168,393.85,
ROMTEC, INC 180,238.63, PRESCIENT SOLUTIONS 180,307.12, NEDSRA 182,961.00, ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457
186,900.14, FIFTH THIRD BANK-CC 188,851.89, WEX BANK 244,051.00, KELLY MOON PROPERTIES, LLC 272,108.00, WATER
RESOURCES 290,364.34, EMPLOYER’S CLAIM SERVICE INC. 357,782.50, AEP ENERGY, INC 373,101.65, UTILITY SERVICE
COMPANY 443,323.44, STORINO, RAMELLO & DURKIN 455,748.59, MESIROW FINANCIAL 467,434.00, VISU-SEWER OF
ILLINOIS, LLC 478,482.23, MISC – REFUNDS 502,546.20, VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS 591,862.10, VILLAGE OF
ADDISON 615,740.00, CHRISTOPHER B BURKE ENGINEERING LTD 631,664.47, CG CENTER LLC 632,965.90, TROTTER AND
ASSOCIATES, INC. 769,759.18, ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 790,837.18, POLICE PENSION FUND 1,016,085.82,
CLAUSSBROTHERS, INC 1,238,338.30, J. CONGDONSEWERSERVICE INC. 1,701,881.13, R.W. DUNTEMANCONSTRUCTION
CO. 1,739,976.03, IMRF 1,912,564.99, JOSEPH J HENDERSON & SONS, INC 2,868,028.84, U.S. BANK 3,112,650.00,
HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORP. 3,130,852.20, INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 3,908,262.45, DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
3,913,566.86, Grand Total All Vendors 40,276,038.34.

TOTAL PAYROLL <$25,000: $945,593.33. PAYROLL $25,000 TO $49,999.99: BORGENS, ALEXANDRA, SINGH, MARYANN,
HERNANDEZ, GABRIELA, DANILOWSKI, MARCIN, DISCIPIO, ROSEMARY, SEBASTIAN, GONZALO, SULAK, JOHN, TOIGO,
WENDY, DLUGOPOLSKI, KRISTOPHER, SOLESKY, STEVEN, MARCHAN, REBECCA, ROGERS, MICHAEL, GARCIA,
EMMANUEL, MCKENZIE, DEBRA, GUERRERO, BETSY, PRADO, SANDRA. PAYROLL $50,000 TO $74,999.99: MERRICK,
CATHY, ALAGNA, ALLISON, LIGHT, SUZANNE, SIMPSON, STACY, SHICK, COLLEEN, KESSEL, RAMONA, GARCIA, JAVIER,
JACKSON, EUN YOUNG, EDINGTON JR, JOHN, LAGORIO, ANTHONY, ROST, WILMA, HERNANDEZ, JOSE, BRUNO,
GIUSEPPE, GUZMAN, ARELI, CHILTON, ANDRE,MONDELLI, GIUSEPPE, JACKSON, DONALD, CASWICK, DONNA,MENDOZA,
EFRAIN, ROMANO, CHERYL, MARINO, DEBRA, HUFF, JACQUELYN, MARRS, CONNIE, THORSON, ALMA, KROLL, BARBARA,
SEVESKA,MATTHEW, ROSSI, GIOVANNI, DZIEDZIC, HEIDI, SANCHEZ, LISSETTE, POPE,MAUREEN, CAMEL-KULA, CANDITH,
AMODIO, MATTIA, MACKO, TANYA, NAVARRO, CRISTOPHER, FREDRICK, CATHERINE, MOORE, SCOTT, FULTON, JENNIFER,
MICHALEK, CAROL, LAGIOIA, JANIE, DALBEY, AARON, MINEO, ANTHONY, PENTECOST, KATIE, HOPWOOD, JENNIFER,
MARRON, MICHAEL, LESCH, BRIAN, MORTON, THERESA, NOVIELLI, LINO, ORCZYKOWSKI, VERONICA, MCCREA,
SHANNON, DEL BOCCIO, KAREN, DEPUE, WILLIAM, JOHNSON, SHAWN, ALAGNA, JENNIFER. PAYROLL $75,000 TO
$99,999.99: KEITH, JOHN, MARCHAN, ALEJANDRO, OLSEN, JASON, FARINA, SAM, BLUM, NIKKO, LAPKUS, ULA, ENGEL,
STEVEN, KAVAL, JOHN, SCHMIDT, JOHN, FREW, MATTHEW, ANDERSON, SCOTT, PIGNATARO, MARIO, MARMOLEJO,
OSCAR, ESTRADA, RICARDO, HATLER, NICHOLAS, LUKOWSKI, DALE, BRENNAN, JONATHAN, ZOELLNER, MICHAEL,
TAUTKUS, JOHN, JACKSON, STEVEN, BARBANENTE, ROCCO, KELLY, PATRICK, BONILLA, MIGUEL, SCHRAM JR, CLARK,
KROL, MICHAEL, MELODY, JOHN, LAPRAIRIE, ENRICO, GARZA, DARCIE, SCHMIDT, ERIC, WALTERS, TRACY, GENTY,
DAVID, WILLIAMSON SR, PHILLIP, JAMIESON, JAMES, KLING, LUCAS, MROZINSKI, JEFFREY, MOCNY, JANET, TIMAR JR,
JEFFERY, LOGSDON, PAUL, RADABAUGH, MARK, WIESBROCK, CHRISTOPHER, KALISH, STEVEN, KANG, PETER, JENSEN,
MARIE, GIANNELLI, GIUSEPPE, NIELSEN, SCOTT, KURTZ, KEVIN, ROSARIO, JENNIFER, MCAULIFFE, RICHARD, CARELLO,
PAUL, TYBOR, REBECCA, HODAY, DAVID, TOMICH, JARED, KUPKA, JUDITH, WATTS, KELSEY, CASSATA, VINCENT, LOPEZ,
GARY, TRIFILIO, BRIAN, RICKARD, ANTHONY, LAUNHARDT, DANIEL, MARITATO, BRIAN, BURGER, DANIEL, TOMASELLI,
SUZETTE, MASCIOPINTO III, MARIO, WHITMORE, ROBERT, KAPUSCIAK, GRZEGORZ. PAYROLL $100,000 TO $124,999.99:
CLAUDIO, TRACY, DYMBROWSKI, CHARLES, SCHON, ZACHERY, MARITATO, MICHAEL, HERNANDEZ JR, RICARDO,
BIALAS, THOMAS, NICKEL, GABRIELLE, FERRELL, JENNIFER, MUNOZ, JORGE, NOE JR, MICHAEL, LAUTNER, BRADLEY,
POLITES, TASHYA, CAHILL, MICHELLE, CORSINI, ROMAN, HAWCO, ROBERT, SAXTON, JAMES, BLONDIN, JUSTIN, KOZAK,
ANNABELLA, SHEEHAN, RYAN, WIELAND, MATTHEW, STODDARD, DAVID, BOHACZ, MONTE, STACHURA, DENNIS, LEWIS,
NICOLE, MCCUMBER, JEFFREY, BRIESCHKE, MATTHEW, SZEWCZYK, NATHAN, CAHILL, CHRISTOPHER, WALTERS,
ROBERT, PARSONS, MATTHEW, CRAVENS, ANDREA, NIERMAN, THOMAS, MROZ, GEORGE, COVINGTON, KYLE, URSO,
JOHN. PAYROLL $125,000 AND ABOVE: MARRON, MICHAEL, HUFF JR, MICHAEL, BERNAL, RIGOBERTO, GARCIA,
MARK, PADYASEK, KRZYSZTOF, CAHILL, JAMES, PUGH, ZACHARY, MALLOY, BRADLEY, HOGAN, PEGGY, JIMENEZ, PAUL,
PARSONS, CHRISTOPHER, DARRE, KELLEY, PIRTLE, GREGORY, KALCHBRENNER, JOANNE, GUERRERO, MARK, POLING,
WILLIAM, PAPPAS, GEORGE, KNAUTZ, KEITH, PENTECOST, MICHAEL, KAPLAN, RACHAEL, DZIEDZIC, MICHAEL, BALEY,
DAVID, FLINT, DOUGLAS, MULCRONE, BRIAN. TOTAL PAYROLL $18,042,930.12.

Details of Revenues and Expenditures are on file at the Village of Glendale Heights, 300 Civic Center Plaza, Glendale
Heights, IL 60139. I, William A. Poling, Finance Director/Treasurer, hereby certify that the foregoing statement is true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and believe.

William A. Poling
Finance Director/Treasurer
October 23, 2022

Published in Daily Herald October 27, 2027 (4590309)

One way to find a bargain...
Check the Classified
for bargains galore!

and
when you need to sell

something fast
at a bargain price.

Call 847-427-4444 or
630-955-0008

Public Hearings
& Notices

Notice of Public Sale:
Under Labor and Storage
Lien Act (770ILCS45/1)

Chicago Executive Airport
will auction a damaged

1967 Cessna 310,
Serial Number: 310N-0020,

N4120Q
Via GovDeals.com

no sooner than Monday,
November 7th, 2022

Published in Daily Herald
Oct. 13, 20, 27, 2022 (4589761)

Public Hearings
& Notices

Storage

Treasurer Reports

PAGE 4 DAILY HERALD SECTION 6 Employment Ads: 847-806-4242 Classified Ads: 847-427-4444 THURSDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2022



1 
 

 
 
 FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ANNEXATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN VILLAGE 

OF NORTH AURORA AND WOODMANS FOOD MARKET, INC 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ____ day of _____________, 2022, by 

and between the VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS, a Municipal Corporation, 

hereinafter (the “Village”), and by Woodman’s Food Market, Inc., an Illinois limited liability 

company (the “Owner”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 WHEREAS, the Village of North Aurora entered into an Annexation Agreement with 

Woodman’s Food Market, Inc., and the property legally described in Exhibit A, which is attached 

hereto and made a part hereof (the “Property”) (now known as the “Willard’s Corner 

Development”), that was approved for annexation by Ordinance No. 04-08-30-01, which 

Ordinance and Annexation Agreement were recorded on August 31st, 2004, as Document 

#2004K115411 in the Kane County Recorder’s Office; and  

 WHEREAS, the Territory was annexed pursuant Ordinance No. 04-08-30-01, dated 

August 23, 2004, and zoned B-2 General Community Business District as part of a Planned Unit 

Development on the same date pursuant to Ordinance No. 04-08-30-02 (“PUD Ordinance”); and 

 WHEREAS, an application for a first amendment to the Annexation Agreement and 

amendment to the Special Use/ B-2 General Community Business District PUD has been 

submitted by the Owner for the Property related to a warehouse addition to be constructed on the 

northern portion of the existing Woodman’s food store building; and 

 WHEREAS, all notices, publications, procedures, public hearings, and other matters for 

the consideration, approval, and execution of this Amendment to the Annexation Agreement 



2 
 

have been given, made, held and performed as required by the Illinois Municipal Code and all 

other applicable statutes of the State of Illinois and Ordinances of the Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village have, by a vote of two-

thirds (2/3) of the Corporate Authorities currently holding office, directed the President to 

execute and the Village Clerk to attest this Agreement on behalf of the Village; 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 

agreements herein contained, it is hereby agreed by and between the Village and Owner as 

follows: 

 1. RECITALS.    The representations and recitations set forth in the foregoing Recitals are 

material to this Agreement and are hereby incorporated into and become a part of this Agreement 

as though they were fully set forth in this Paragraph 1. 

 

 2. AMENDMENT.   Developer shall comply in all respects with the generally applicable 

provisions of North Aurora Municipal Code on Subdivision, Building Code provisions, and other 

provisions of the North Aurora Municipal Code pertaining to the development and construction, 

except as amended by the provisions of this Ordinance, including the following: 
 

Per Section 1017 of the 2015 International Building Code, the Developer shall have the 
ability to increase the exit access travel distance to 400 feet, provided the following 
conditions are met: 
 
A. The building is limited to one story in height. 

 
B. The minimum building height from the finished floor to the bottom of the roof 

deck is 24 feet. 
 
C. The building is equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in 

accordance with Section 903.3.1 
 

 3. ZONING.    The Property shall continue to be classified as B-2 General Commercial 

District with a special use permit for a B-2 General Commercial District PUD as revised by the 



3 
 

Amendment to the PUD Ordinance attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as 

Exhibit B together with the plans attached thereto as to Lot 3 and Lot 8.  All other provisions of 

the original PUD Ordinance and previous amendments thereto not affected by the amendments 

shall remain in full force and effect.  

 

4. BINDING EFFECT AND TERM.    This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to 

the benefit of the parties hereto, successors in interest, assignees, lessees, and upon any successor 

municipal authorities of the Village and successor municipalities for the period of twenty (20) 

years from the date hereof. 

 

5. COVENANT RUNNING WITH THE LAND.   This Agreement constitutes a covenant 

running with the land and is binding upon the parties hereto, all grantees, successors in interest, 

assigns and lessees, and successor Village Board. 

 

6. MODIFICATIONS.  Modifications of this Amendment to the Annexation Agreement 

may be approved pursuant to the procedures established by law, in force from time to time.  The 

Village and the owner of record of any portion of the Property, even if not the Owner named 

herein, may agree to modify this Agreement with respect to such portion of the Property. This 

Agreement may be amended by the Village and the owner of record of a portion of the Property 

as to the provisions applying exclusively thereto, without the consent of the owners of other 

portions of the Property not affected by this Amendment.  

 

7. SEPARABILITY.    The provisions hereof shall be deemed to be separable; and if any 

section, paragraph, clause, provisions or item herein shall be held invalid, the invalidity of such 

section, paragraph, clause, provision, or item shall not affect any other provision of this 

Agreement. 

 

8. COOPERATION.   Village and Owner shall do all things necessary or appropriate to 

carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and assist each other in carrying 

out the terms and objectives of this Agreement and the intentions of the parties as reflected by 



4 
 

said terms, including the terms of the PUD Ordinance passed concurrently herewith.  Both 

Village (including any of its departments, officials or employees) and Owner shall act in good 

faith, reasonably and promptly with respect to all consents, approvals and actions required or 

requested of it or taken by it hereunder or in connection with the development of the Property.  

During the term of this Agreement, Owner may continue its current uses on the Property 

including farming and general agricultural uses as to those portions of the Property not then 

developed and the existing residential use.  In the event of a vacancy with respect to any office or 

position referenced in this Agreement, the person or persons acting in the stead of and to carry 

out the functions of the person normally filling the vacant position shall have all the rights and 

powers of the person normally filling such vacant position to carry out the terms of this 

Agreement.   The Village agrees that with respect to the minimum distance between a church or 

school and a use which requires a liquor license, the provisions of Illinois Statutes shall govern 

and any greater requirement included in any ordinance of the Village as to such minimum 

separation shall not apply to the Property. 

 

9. NOTICE.    Unless otherwise notified in writing, all notices, requests and demands shall 

be in writing and shall be delivered personally or be mailed by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 If to Village: Village Administrator 

   VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

   25 East State Street 

   North Aurora, IL 60542 

 With a copy to:Kevin G. Drendel 

   Drendel & Jansons Law Group 

   111 Flinn Street 

   Batavia, IL 60510 

 If to Owner: :____________________ 

   ____________________  

   ____________________ 

 With a copy to:____________________ 



5 
 

   ____________________  

   ____________________ 

   ____________________ 

 

10. RECORDING.  This Agreement may be recorded in the County Recorder of Deeds 

Office by either party. 

     

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.    This Agreement sets forth all the promises, inducements, 

agreements, conditions and understandings between Owner and the Village relative to the subject 

matter thereof, and there are no promises, agreements, conditions or understandings, either oral 

or written, express or implied, between them, other than are herein set forth. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals on the date first 

above written.   

 

     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS 

 

     By: ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Village President 

 

______________________________ 
Village Clerk 

 

 

WOODMAN’S FOOD MARKET, INC. 

 

     By: _____________________________________ 
           __________________, its ________________ 

 

 

 



6 
 

 



7 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description 

LOT 6 AND LOT 8 OF WILLARD’S CORNER IN THE NORTHEAST ¼ AND THE 
NORTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS 
 
Commonly known as:  151 Hansen Boulevard (Lot 8) and Lot 6 of Willard’s Corner 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



8 
 

EXHIBIT B 

Amendment to the PUD Ordinance 

 

 

 

 



FAIR DEAL
PLUMBING

Call Larry
630-687-5718

24/7 ?Certified ? Insured

Carpentry, Building
& Remodeling

GT
CONCRETE

• Driveways
• Patios
• Walks
• Garage
• Slabs
• Room Additions
• Colored Concrete
• Exposed Aggregate

References, Insured
Free Estimates

30 Years Experience

Tom - 847-931-7937
www.gtconcreteonline.com

Landscaping

MIRACLEAN, INC
18 Years

in Business
Gutter Cleaning
Gutter screening

Insured, bonded.

(847)962-5882

GO NO FURTHER
FOR THE BEST!

Spring Cleanups, Gutter Cleaning,
Bush & Tree Trimming, Removal,

Planting, Mulch,
Landscape Design, etc...

Call Mark ? 847-322-7860

T-3
Landscaping

? Shrub Trimming
? Mulch
? Gutter Cleaning
? Sod
? 10% Off Aeration
? Sprinkler Repairs

Sign Up Early
Receive a Free Service

FREE EST. / SR. DISC.

847-758-8460

Starting at

$25.00
week

Most Homes
Res. / Commercial

SHRUB TRIMMING
SPECIALS $25.00 OFF

• Gutter Cleaning

847-791-7912
accesswoodflooring.com

ACCESS FLOORING
HIGH QUALITY, LOW PRICES
WINTER SPECIAL

Dustless Sanding,
Refinishing and

New Floor Installation
License/Ins/Bonded

Excellent References • BBB Certified

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2022 DAILY HERALD SECTION 5 PAGE 7

Professional
Gutter Cleaning

Pressure Washing
Window Cleaning
Quality Service

847-505-5530
FREE ESTIMATES

Insured & Bonded
crystalviewwindowcleaning.com

UPGRADE
ELECTRIC INC.
Lighting The Way Since 1965
No Interest Payment Plan
Residential / Industrial / Commercial

Specialists inSpecialists in
Electrical Home ImprovementsElectrical Home Improvements
Home Generator Systems/Home Generator Systems/
Circuit Panel UpgradesCircuit Panel Upgrades

& Service Revisions/Paddle/& Service Revisions/Paddle/
Whole House Bath & AtticWhole House Bath & Attic

Fans/Recess LTFans/Recess LT
Outlets/Phone/TVOutlets/Phone/TV

No Damage InstallationNo Damage Installation
Builders Welcome.Builders Welcome.

New Homes/Additions/New Homes/Additions/
Garages/Spas/Garages/Spas/

Swimming Pool Outlets/Swimming Pool Outlets/
Outdoor LTSign & Light PoleOutdoor LTSign & Light Pole
Maint.Maint. Security Lighting/Security Lighting/

LED Retrofits for Warehouse,LED Retrofits for Warehouse,
Office & Outdoor Parking LotOffice & Outdoor Parking Lot

LightingLighting
Lic/Ins. • Free Estimates

847-228-7266
847-255-7266

• We Fix Code Violations

• Insurance Damage

• 24 Hr Emergency Service
Structual / Storm / Water
Doors / Windows / Roofing

• Cedar / Wood, Siding, Fascia &
Soffits Vinyl / Aluminum

• Seamless Gutters & Downspouts

• Stairs / Decks / Porches / Railings

• Add’ns / Basements / Bths /
Framing / Walls / Rough & Trim

• Installs / Mill Work / Cabinets

• Flooring / Wood / Vinyl / Ceramic

R.M. CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

847-630-1281
Accredited • Rated A+

Licensed Contractor • Free Estimates

PROFESSIONAL
BUILDING & REMODELING

Landscaping

DELUX
DECORATING

• PAINTING
• STAINING
• PLASTERING
• DRYWALL REPAIR

FAST and RELIABLE
QUALITY WORK

NO JOB TOO BIG
OR

TOO SMALL!

SPRING &
TAX SEASON

SPECIALS
FREE ESTIMATES
Doing Business for

over 20 Years
If you want it done right,

call DAVE...

847-971-6033

INTERIOR/EXTERIOR
COMMERCIAL/RESIDENTIAL

Int. / Ext. Paintings

Electrical Contractors
& Supplies

PaintingCarpeting & Services

Hardwood Floors
Installing, Refinishing

Repairing
of Old & New Floors

Starting @ $.75 /sq. ft.
Minimum Charge $280

Arl Hts/Pal.
847-459-3065

Floor Services

Call 847-427-4444
TO PLACE
A DAILY HERALD
CLASSIFIED AD

Painting

We Do It All
Home Repair

Handyman Services

(847)774-8655

• Carpentry, Kitchen,
Bath, Tile, etc.

20% OFF
• Roofing, Siding,

Gutters

Interior/Exterior
NO JOB TOO SMALL!

TIRED???
If you are tired of

having a garage or base-
ment full of junk, empty it

FAST with an
ACTION AD

in the
DAILY HERALD

Classfied.

GLI
Concrete & Brick Paving

(847)774-8655
(630)613-0826

? Concrete
Starting @ $6 sq ft

• Driveways
• Patios
• Sidewalks
• Etc.

? Brick Paving
Starting @ $10 sq ft

• Driveways
• Patios
• Sidewalks
• Retaining Walls

? 20% Off
Power Washing & Sealing

EARLY 2023 SIGNUP
? 10% OFF ?

Insured & Bonded

JIM’S
EXPERIENCED
CARPET
REPAIRS
RESTRETCHING
SEAM REPAIRS

PATCHES
REPAIRS OF
ALL TYPES
45 yrs. exp

630-337-4526
(cell)

J&J
LANDSCAPING
• Pruning / Preening
• Tree Removal
• Old Bushes Removed
• New Bushes Planted
• Mulch
• Brick Patios
• Retaining Walls

630-514-9491

THE
LAWN CREW

FREE ESTIMATES

847-774-9195
FULLY INSURED

Core Aeration
Specials

CALL EARLY TO GET
OUR 2022

LOW RATES!
-----------------------

SHRUB TRIMMING
SPECIALS

RICH’S
HANDY

SERVICE
PAINTING
STAINING
REPAIR

MAINTENANCE
Fully Insured

richhayes@sbcglobal.net
847-962-4622

R & V
Landscaping / Snow Removal

(847)774-8655
(630)788-8978

10% OFF EARLY SIGNUP!
CALL TO GET BEST RATES!!!

$40 OFF Fall Cleanup
2 FREE LAWN CUTS w/

Season Lawn Contract
NEW CUSTOMERS ONLY

Lawn Cut from $18.00 wk
SPECIALS

? Landcape Design (6 Shrubs,1Tree,1Yd of Mulch)

$1,499
? Brick Paving (Patios, Sidewalks, Driveway)

Starting @ $10 sq ft
Retainer Walls - 20% OFF

? 20% OFF SODDING/ SEEDING
? 20% OFF MULCH
(Brown, Red, Cypress)
? 20% BED EDGING

Fall Cleanup Special
1. Detatching 2. Aeration

Most Homes @ $160
FREE EST. / SR. DISC

NEED A CROWD
At your craft fair?

Place your ad in the
DAILY HERALD

Classified

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA

PLAN COMMISSION
NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

Notice is hereby given that the Village of North Aurora
Plan Commission will conduct a Public Hearing on Tues-
day, November 1, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. at the North Aurora Vil-
lage Board Meeting Room, 25 E. State Street, North Au-
rora, Illinois.
This Public Hearing will be conducted by the Plan Com-
mission to consider an application from Jim Arneson
(d.b.a. FoxArneson, Inc.) (“Applicant”) for a Special Use -
Planned Unit Development Amendment with deviations to
the Planned Unit Development. Site Plan Approval and a
Preliminary Final Plat of Subdivision is also being re-
quested. The subject properties are Lot 8 (151 Hansen
Boulevard) and Lot 6 of Willard’s Corner. Property Index
Numbers: 15-06-155-008, 15-06-155-007, 15-06-252-003, and 15-
06-252-004.
The Applicant is proposing to expand the existing 236,776
square foot Woodman’s food store with a +67,642 square
foot warehouse addition to be constructed on the northern
portion of the building.
The address of the Applicant is 5972 Executive Drive, Mad-
ison, WI 53719 and the Applicant’s phone number is (608)
663-6233.
An application has been filed by the petitioner and is known
as Petition #22-05. The application for Special Use is on file
at the office of the North Aurora Community Development
Department and is available for public inspection. Public
comments will be taken at the public hearing. Further in-
formation is available by contacting the Community Devel-
opment Department at 630-897-1457.
DATED: This 28th day of September, 2022.
/s/ Mike Toth
Community and Economic Development Director
Published in Daily Herald October 6, 2022 (4589447)

Probate

Crown Castle is proposing to
install three (3) wireless
communications antennas
at a top height of 69 feet on
an existing 75-foot (78-foot
overall) monopole tower at
the following site: 5605 Bel-
mont Street, Downers
Grove, IL 605145 Latitude:
41° 47’ 1.64” N, Longitude:
88° 2’ 10.12” W. Crown Castle
invites comments from any
interested party on the im-
pact of the proposed action
on any districts, sites, build-
ings, structures or objects
significant in American his-
tory, archaeology, engineer-
ing or culture that are listed
or determined eligible for
listing in the National Regis-
ter of Historic Places and/or
specific reason the proposed
action may have a signifi-
cant impact on the quality of
the human environment.
Specific information regard-
ing the project is available
by calling Monica Gambino,
2000 Corporate Drive, Ca-
nonsburg, PA 15317, Mon-
ica.Gambino@CrownCas-
tle.com, 724-416-2516 within
30 days of the date of this
publication.
Published in Daily Herald
October 6, 2022 (4589435)

LEGAL NOTICE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE IN
THE CIRCUIT COURT OF
THE EIGHTEENTH JUDI-
CIAL CIRCUIT
Estate of Fred R. Leiser
Case No.: 2022PR000706
Notice is given of the death
of Fred R. Leiser whose ad-
dress was 1903 Woodside,
Glendale Heights, IL 60139
Letters of Office were issued
on September 15, 2022 to
Lorraine H. Leiser, 1903
Woodside, Glendale
Heights, IL 60139 as Inde-
pendent Executor whose at-
torney is Warren Prescott,
Prescott Law Ltd., 2625
Butterfield Rd., Suite 138-S,
Oak Brook, IL 60523.
Notice to Heirs & Legatees.
Notice is hereby given to
and Unknown Heirs, who
are heirs or legatees of the
above proceeding:
To probate a will and whose
name and address is not
stated in the petition to ad-
mit the will to probate, that
an order was entered by the
Court on September 15, 2022
admitting the will to pro-
bate. Within 42 days after
the effective date of the
original order of admission,
you may file a petition with
the Court to require proof of
the will by testimony of the
witnesses to the will in open
court or other evidence, as
provided in section 6-21 of
the Probate Act of 1975 (755
ILCS 5/6-21). You will also
have the right under section
8-2 of the Probate Act of 1975
(755 ILCS 5/8-1) to contest
the validity of the will by fil-
ing a petition with the Court
within 6 months after the ad-
mission of the will to pro-
bate.
The estate will be adminis-
tered without Court Supervi-
sion, unless under Section
28-4 of the Probate Act of
1975 (755 ILCS 5/28-4) any
interested person termi-
nates independent adminis-
tration at any time by mail-
ing or delivering a petition
to terminate to the Circuit
Court Clerk.
Claims against the estate
may be filed in the Office of
CANDICE ADAMS, Circuit
Court Clerk, 505 N. County
Farm Road, Wheaton, Illi-
nois, or with the representa-
tive or both on or before
March 22, 2023, any claim
not filed within that period is
barred. Copies of a claim
filed with the Circuit Court
Clerk must be mailed or de-
livered to the representative
and to the attorney, if any,
within ten (10) days after it
has been filed with the Cir-
cuit Clerk.
/s/ Candice Adams,
Clerk of the Eighteenth
Judicial Circuit Court
DuPage Atty. No.:27620
Atty. For:
Lorraine H. Leiser
Published in Daily Herald
Sep 22,29, Oct 6,2022 4588764

ZION ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL DISTRICT No. 6

ZION, ILLINOIS
In order to meet the stat-

utory requirements, it is
necessary for the Board of
Education to post its e-
Learning Program in lieu of
emergency days and hold a
public hearing for the pur-
pose of the initial proposal
or renewal of the e-learning
program. The public hear-
ing will be held on October
17, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the
Administration Center. The
hearing will be immediately
prior to the regular October
Board Meeting.

WHEREAS, the Board of
Education of Zion Elemen-
tary School District No. 6,
County of Lake, State of Illi-
nois, will adopt the e-Learn-
ing Program at their Octo-
ber 17, 2022 Board Meeting;

WHEREAS, the public
hearing will be on October
17, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the
Administration Center,
which will meet the legal re-
quirements through publi-
cation of said notice in the
local newspaper on or about
October 6, 2022;

WHEREAS, the e-Learn-
ing Program is posted on
the district website
(www.zion6.org), select Dis-
trict Information, select De-
partments, and select
Teaching and Learning.

WHEREAS, the number
of e-Learning days may not
exceed the number of emer-
gency days in the approved
school calendar;

WHEREAS, electronic
notice designed to reach the
parents or guardians of all
students enrolled in the dis-
trict was provided on Octo-
ber 11, 2022;
WHEREAS, electronic no-
tice designed to reach the
collective bargaining repre-
sentatives of the school dis-
tricts employees and all
those employees not in a col-
lective bargaining unit was
provided on October 11,
2022;

WHEREAS, the district’s
initial e-Learning Program
and renewal of the e-Learn-
ing Program shall be for a
term of 3 years.
Published in Daily Herald
October 6, 2022 (4589448)

Public Hearings
& Notices

Probate

LEGAL NOTICE
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE SIXTEENTH
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT,
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Case No. 2022-PR-000243
IN THE MATTER OF THE
ESTATE OF
LINDA SCHWARTZ,
DECEASED.

PUBLICATION NOTICE
OF INDEPENDENT
ADMINISTRATION

TO: CREDITORS,
CLAIMANTS, UNKNOWN
HEIRS AND LEGATEES:
1. Notice is given to
creditors, claimants,
unknown heirs and legatees,
of the death of Linda
Schwartz who died on May
10, 2009, in Wheeling,
Illinois, and whose address
was 1500 Harbour Dr., Apt.
4E, Wheeling, IL 60090.
2. Letters of Office were
issued on June 21, 2022 to
Jennifer Jarock as Indepen-
dent Administrator of the
Estate of Linda Schwartz
whose address is N3525 Wil-
low Rd., Pulaski, WI 54162.
The attorney for the Estate
of Linda Schwartz is Jeffrey
M. Reed, Reed Law, LLC,
167 E. Chicago St., Elgin, IL
60120.
3. The estate will be admin-
istered without Court Super-
vision, unless under Section
5/28-4 of the Probate Act of
1975 (755 ILCS 5/28-4) any
interested person termi-
nates independent adminis-
tration at any time by mail-
ing or delivering a petition
to terminate to the clerk of
the court.
4. Claims against the estate
may be filed in the office of
Theresa E. Barreiro, Cir-
cuit Court Clerk, 540 South
Randall Rd., St. Charles, IL
60174, or with the Executor,
or both on or before March
23, 2022. Any claim not filed
on or before that date is
barred. Copies of a claim
filed with the Circuit Court
Clerk must be mailed or
delivered by the claimant to
the Executor and to the
attorney for the Estate
within ten (10) days after it
has been filed with the Court
Clerk.
5. Jeffrey M. Reed, Reed
Law, LLC, 167 E. Chicago
St., Elgin, IL 60120. (847)
742-5220. Attorney For
Executor.
Published in Daily Herald
September 22, 29, and
October 6, 2022 (4588771)

Public Hearings
& Notices

LEGAL NOTICE
UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA
STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE EIGHTEENTH
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
Estate of Suellen Demko
Case No.: 2022PR000657
Notice is given of the death
of Suellen Demko.
Letters of Office were issued
on August 30, 2022, to
Keith E. Manning,
441 N. Park Blvd., #4F,
Glen Ellyn, IL 60137,
as Independent Executor
whose attorney is
Angelika Iwanicki
The estate Will be adminis-
tered without Court Supervi-
sion, unless under section
28-4 of the Probate Act of
1975 (755 ILCS 5/28-4) any
interested person may ter-
minate independent admin-
istration at any time by
mailing or delivering a peti-
tion to terminate to the Cir-
cuit Court Clerk.
Claims against the estate
may be filed in the Office of
CANDICE ADAMS, Circuit
Court Clerk, 505 N. County
Farm Road, Wheaton, Illi-
nois, or with the representa-
tive or both on or before
March 22, 2023, any claim
not filed within that period is
barred. Copies of a claim
filed with the Circuit Court
Clerk must be mailed or de-
livered to the representative
and to the attorney, if any,
within ten (10) days after it
has been filed with the Cir-
cuit Clerk.
/s/ Candice Adams,
Clerk of the Eighteenth
Judicial Circuit Court
Angelika Iwanicki
DuPage Atty. No.: 6336090
Atty. For: Keith E. Manning
255 E. Lake St., Suite 301
Bloomingdale, IL 60108
630-424-1100
angelika@pavonelawgroup.
com
Published in Daily Herald

Sep 22,29, Oct 6, 2022 4588781

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CONCERNING THE INTENT OF

THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS OF
THE BUTTERFIELD PARK DISTRICT,

DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS
TO SELL $950,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION

LIMITED TAX PARK BONDS
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Butter-

field Park District, DuPage County, Illinois (the “Dis-
trict”), will hold a public hearing on the 13th day of Octo-
ber, 2022, at 6:30 o’clock P.M. The hearing will be held at
the Butterfield Park District Recreation and Aquatic Cen-
ter, 21W730 Butterfield Road, Lombard, Illinois. The pur-
pose of the hearing will be to receive public comments on
the proposal to sell bonds of the District in the amount of
$950,000 for the payment of land condemned or purchased
for parks, for the building, maintaining, improving and
protecting of the same and the existing land and facilities
of the District, for the payment of outstanding obligations
of the District and for the payment of the expenses incident
thereto.

By order of the President of the Board of Park Commis-
sioners of the Butterfield Park District, DuPage County, Il-
linois.

DATED the 3rd day of October, 2022.
Sean Tovey
Secretary, Board of Park Commissioners,
Butterfield Park District,
DuPage County, Illinois

Published in Daily Herald October 6, 2022 (4589444)

LEGAL NOTICE
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE NINETEENTH
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT,
LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Estate of John Schieber
Deceased
Gen No. 22 PR 353
Notice is given of the death
of John Schieber,
of Mundelein, Illinois.
Letters of Office were issued
on September 9, 2022 to
Kristin Pawlik,
1041 Evergreen Street,
Mundelein, IL 60060
whose attorney is
Michael A. Goldberg,
350 N. Milwaukee Ave., Ste.
202, Libertyville, IL 60048.

Claims against the estate
may be filed in the office of
the Clerk of the Circuit
Court or with representa-
tive, or both, on or before
March 22, 2023, which date
is not less than 6 months
from the date of the first
publication of this notice
and any claim not filed
within that period is barred.
Copies of any claim filed
with the Clerk must be
mailed or delivered to the
representative and to the at-
torney within 10 days after it
is filed.
E-filing is now mandatory
for documents in civil cases
with limited exemptions. To
e-file, you must first create
an account with an e-filing
service provider. Visit
https://efile.illinoiscourts.
gov/service-providers.htm
to learn more and to select a
service provider. If you
need additional help or have
trouble e-filing, visit
http://www.illinoiscourts.
gov/FAQ/gethelp.asp.

Kristin Pawlik
(Representative)
Michael A. Goldberg
(Attorney)

Prepared by:
Michael A. Goldberg,
JTLG LLC,
350 N. Milwaukee Ave., Ste.
202, Libertyville, IL 60048
Phone 847-549-0600,
ARDC # 6309094
mike@lawjtlg.com
Published in Daily Herald ,
Sep 22,29, Oct 6, 2022 4588784

RICH’S
POWER

WASH AND
STAIN

Professional Power
Washing Staining

and Sealing

• Decks
• Fence
• Concrete
• Siding
• Houses
richhayes@sbcglobal.net
847-962-4622
www.richshandyservice.com

Arlington Porcelain
Refinishing

Quality Bathtub &
Ceramic Tile Refinishing

Since 1985
5 Year Guarantee

847-776-0050
www.arlingtonbathtubs.com

17;8%=;; ( ;=<68$= "8<=$9#<& 9# !43$= 3% 3" 8% 9:= ;=<68$= "8<=$9#<&- ='384 59:#';#%/"384&:=<34"*$#'
#< $344 ,0.+02.+0.,)

Cement Work
Home Maintenance

Electrical Contractors
& Supplies

RICH’S
POWER

WASH AND
STAIN

Professional Power
Washing Staining

and Sealing

• Decks
• Fence
• Concrete
• Siding
• Houses
richhayes@sbcglobal.net
847-962-4622
www.richshandyservice.com

RICH’S
POWER WASH

AND STAIN
Professional Power
Washing Staining

and Sealing
• Decks • Fence

• Concrete • Siding
• Houses

richhayes@sbcglobal.net
847-962-4622
www.richshandyservice.com

G & A
LANDSCAPE

• Sod Repairs
• Retaining Walls 20% OFF

• Rototilling
• Mulch 10% Off

• Aeration from $35
• Sprinkler Repair

FREE EST. / SR. DISC.

847-758-8460

LAWN CUTS FROM

$25/week
1 FREE SERVICE
w/ Seasonal Contract

? Shrub Trimming
? Gutter Cleaning

-------------------------------
EARLY BIRD SPECIAL
ON SHRUB TRIMMING

20% OFF

Gutter Cleaning

R.M. CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
Professional Building & Remodeling

Accredited Rated A+
Licensed Contractor Free Estimates

847-630-1281

We Fix Code Violations
Insurance Damage

24 Hr Emergency Service

Structual /Storm /Water

Doors /Windows /Roofing

Cedar /Wood, Siding, Fascia &Soffitis

Vinyl/Aluminum

Seamless Gutters & Downspouts

Stairs /Decks /Porches /Railings

Add’ns /Basements /Bths /

Framing /Walls

Rough &Trim

Installs /Mill Work /Cabinets

Flooring /Wood /Vinyl /Ceramic

Bathtub Resurfacing

Rayscape
Landscaping
Hauling • Grading

Seeding • Sod • Plants
Design and Install
• Brick Patios

• RetainingWalls
• TreeWork&

StumpGrinding
• Tree&BushTrimming

• Cleanups

708-899-5718
rrayscape@yahoo.com

30Years of Quality Service Power Washing

VINNY’S
PLUMBING
& SEWER

• HOT WATER HEATERS
• GARBAGE DISPOSAL
• SUMP PUMPS
• EJECTOR PUMPS
• CLEAN OUTS
• BATTERY BACKUP

SYSTEMS
• PUMPS & BOILERS
• NEW BATHROOMS
• NEW CONSTRUCTION
• Power Rodding
Main Lines
Sink Lines
Tubs

• Power Jetting

NO JOB
TOO SMALL

FREE
ESTIMATES
Reasonable

Rates
$25 OFF

Sump Pumps

$50 OFF
Injector Pumps

Friendy Service
WATER HEATER

SPECIALS
Insured & Bonded

630-392-0429
Lic: 058-176546

Blacktopping & Paving

ACTION CONCRETE
& CONSTRUCTION
FALL SPECIAL

15% OFF LABOR
Residential Specialist

Patios, Sidewalks, Driveways, Brick
Paving, Stamped Concrete,
All Types of Concrete Work
Decorative Retaining Walls,

Decorative Natural Stone Patios &
Walkways, Custom Decks Bobcat
Service, Bathrooms, Kitchens,

Basements Guaranteed Quality Work

No Job is Too Small
FREE ESTIMATES
30 Years Exp.

Lic. & Insured

630-401-9632

ACTION
HOME

IMPROVEMENT
COMPLETE

REMODELING

• All Types of
Drywall Work

• All Types of
Flooring
Installations, Etc.

• Kitchens,
Bathrooms,
Basements

• Custom Built Decks
• Interior / Exterior

Painting
• Siding, Windows

and Doors

Guaranteed
Quality Work

FALL SPECIAL
15% OFF LABOR

FREE ESTIMATES

No Job is Too Small

630-401-9632

PRO
ELECTRIC, ETC.
? ELECTRICAL
? CARPENTRY
? PLUMBING
? ETC.

ONE CALL FOR ALL
MOPE59@YAHOO.COM

331-218-8737
FOR FREE ESTIMATE

STEVE
Professional
Painting

NWSuburbs
20YearsExp.

847-707-0672

Gutter Cleaning

POLISH
HANDYMAN
REMODELING

REPAIR
FREE ESTIMATES

Bogdan
847-274-2805

TABER BUILDERS, INC.
•Driveways - Patios
•Walkways - Additions
•Stamped & Dyed Designs
•Foundation Crack Repair
•Concrete Sealing
•Removal & Replacement
•Residential & Commercial
•Bonded & Insured

Free Estimates
35 Years Experience

630-761-1634
www.taberbuilders.com

MEND SERVICES
• Gutter Cleaning
• Gutter Screening
• Repairs
• Installations

Credit Cards Accepted

847-951-2632

Deck Maintenance

Garcia
Concrete
All Types of Concrete

Asphalt & Brick
Pavers, Driveways,
Patios, Walkways,

Stairs, Stoops,
Garage Floors, Curbs,

Parking Lots,
Retaining Walls
Bobcat Services

Lic, Insured & Bonded

847-321-0541

STANLEY PAINTERS
Int./Ext. Painting
15% OFF

25 Yrs Experience
• Carpentry
• Wallpaper Hanging
• Handyman Service
• Water Damage Spc
• Power Washing
• Gutter Cleaning
NO JOB TOO SMALL!

847-928-1556

MIDWEST
GUTTER CLEANING

& SCREENING
• ICE DAM

ROOF RAKING
• GUTTERS FLUSHED
• GUTTER REPAIRS
• DEBRIS HAUL AWAY
• SCRAP METAL

630-873-9884
www.midwestguttercleaner.net

The Retainer
Wall Guys

(630)880-5296
(630)788-8978

? Brick Paving
Starting @ $15 sq ft

• Driveways
• Patios
• Sidewalks
• Retaining Walls

Insured & Bonded
Specializing in Retainer Walls

6 Year Warranty on Labor
CALL NOW FOR

FALL SPECIALS!!!

Fencing

GRASS
JOCKEY
LANDSCAPING

FREE EST. ? SR. DISC.

(630)880-LAWN
(5296)

MEMBER OF ANGIE’S LIST

CALL FOR
WEEKLY LAWN
MAINTENANCE

1 FREE SERVICE
WITH SEASONAL CONTRACT
25% OFF
Fall Cleanups

• Aeration Starting @ $35
25% OFF

SERVICES BELOW
• Mulch (all colors)

• Sod • Seed
• Brick Paving

• Sprinkler System
Repairs & Installs

WE WILL MATCH OR BEAT
ANY WRITTEN PRICE FOR

ANY LAWN SERVICE

Plumbing & Heating

Mike’s
Creative
Touch

Painting & Staining
Services

Wallpaper Removal
All Types of

Drywall Repairs
Light Carpentry
Bathroom Remodeling
WE DO SMALL JOBS

Over 30 Yrs.
Experience
Quality Work
Done Right

Senior Discounts
& Free Estimates

630-653-6969

Landscaping

HOT
ROCKS
PAVING
Asphalt &
Concrete

Commercial
Residential

FREE ESTIMATES

847-404-4655

$200
OFF

Seniors & Vets



 
NORTH AURORA VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, November 7, 2022 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Village Board meeting was conducted live remotely 

via telecommunications. 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
SILENT PRAYER - MEDITATION – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Mark Carroll, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark Guethle, 
Trustee Mike Lowery, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Community 
& Economic Development Director Mike Toth, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Public Works Director 
John Laskowski, Police Chief Joe DeLeo.  
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS –  
 
PRESENTATION-Presentation by Lauterbach & Amen Regarding the Village’s 2022 Audit Process 
Finance Director Paprocki introduced Brad Porter from Lauterbach & Amen to present regarding the 
2022 Audit. 
Brad Porter provided a recap of the 2021-2022 audit cycle.  He commended Director Paprocki and the 
Finance team on their seamless communication with Lauterbach & Amen throughout the audit process.   
Porter went on to mention the Statement on Auditing Standard with no disagreements or difficulties noted 
during the auditing process.  The Village was also awarded the Certificate of Achievement Award for the 
audit period ending May 31, 2021. 
Porter stated that the Village was issued an Unmodified Opinion on the financial statements provided to 
Lauterbach & Amen. 
Porter went on to highlight additional important information within the audit report. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Village Board Minutes dated 10/17/2022; Committee of the Whole Minutes dated 10/17/2022 
2. Interim Bills List Dated 10/18/2022 in the Amount of $500.00 
3. Bills List Dated 11/07/2022 in the Amount of $515,859.98 
4. License Agreement with CBS for Berman Tower Livestream 
5. Approval of MFT Resolution Hereby Appropriating $50,000.00 of Motor Fuel Tax Funds for 

Purpose of Maintaining Streets and Highways Under Applicable Provisions of Illinois Highway 
Code 

6. Approval of Salt Purchase through the Illinois Central Management System’s Bureau of Strategic 
Sourcing in the Amount of $237,210.00 with the Option of Spending $284,652 Pending Severe 
Weather Conditions 

7. Travel and Expenses for Business Purposes in the Amount of $50.00 
8. Approval of Ordinance Establishing Special Service Are No. 45 in the Village of North Aurora 

(Opus I-88 Corporate Park)  
 



Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Lowery. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Carroll – 
yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval of an Ordinance Amending the North Aurora Code Section 5.08.350 to Increase 
the Number of Class G Liquor Licenses Authorized in the Village of North Aurora 

 
Administrator Bosco explained that the Mobil gas station located at 329 Lincolnway had changed 
ownership and was looking to acquire a Class G-Gas Station Liquor License. 
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Niedzwiedz and seconded by Trustee Salazar. Roll Call Vote:  
Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

2. Approval of Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as of May 31, 2022 and Other 
Financial Reporting Documents 

 
Director Paprocki stated that the agenda item was for the approval of the audit report that had just been 
discussed.   
Paprocki presented key points from the audit report to the Village Board.  He dissected the Balance Sheet 
to provide more thorough insight of the Village’s funds. 
Mayor Gaffino congratulated Paprocki on a job well done and spoke about the pride that the Board has in 
the Village’s financial position.   
Trustee Salazar commended Paprocki on a stellar job. 
  
Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz. Roll Call Vote:  
Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee 
Carroll – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

3. Approval of Estimate of 2022 Tax Levy for Purposes of Truth in Taxation 
 
Director Paprocki explained that the agenda item was for the approval of the estimate for tax levy 
purposes, which will then be published as a notice in the newspapers and then will return before the 
Board at the first meeting in December to officially approve.   
Paprocki stated that based on the last Committee of the Whole discussion, the Village is going to levy 
zero percent increase, the introduction of new construction is estimated to bring in an additional $23,355 
of new money.  Included in the levy estimate was the Library’s $2,017,000, a 3.8% levy over their last 
request.  
Paprocki also spoke about SSA levy amounts for Willow Lakes and Waterford Oaks. 
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz. Roll Call Vote:  
Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee 
Carroll – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

4. Approval of 2023 Annual Contribution to IMLRMA in the Amount of $332,089.76 
 
 



Director Paprocki stated that the agenda item was for coverage renewal of the Village’s workers 
compensation and liability policy for 2023.  The total policy came in at $335,424 or a 7% increase over 
the previous year.  IMLRMA was offering a one percent discount if paid by November 18. 
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Carroll. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Carroll – 
yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

5. Approval to Purchase Three 2023 Ford Utility AWD Patrol Vehicles from Morrow Bros. 
Ford in the Amount of $130,196.00 

 
Chief DeLeo was seeking the approval to purchase three vehicles from Morrow Bros. located in 
Greenfield, IL.  Morrow Bros. won the state bid pricing for the Ford vehicles and is a state bid vendor that 
the Village has purchased vehicles from in the past.   
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Lowery. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Carroll – 
yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

6. Approval of Resolution Approving a Land Swap Agreement With the Southern Kane 
County Training Association for Property on Which to Construct a New Public Works 
Facility 

 
Village Attorney Drendel explained that the first step in the process of a land exchange with private 
entities, in accordance with the State of Illinois Municipal Code, would be to sign an agreement with the 
SKCTA for the land swap.  Both parties will have a lengthy period of time for due diligence, which 
would also include determining the actual size of the land swap based on the amount of land that will be 
needed for the new Public Works building.  A legal description will need to be developed before the 
statutory process to begin. 
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Carroll and seconded by Trustee Salazar. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Carroll – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – 
yes, Trustee Salazar – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

7. Approval to Award Ridge Road Strom Sewer Lining Project to Technologies USA, LLC in 
the Amount of $132,187.00 

 
Director Laskowski reminded the Board about the process of removing roots from the Ridge Road storm 
sewer between Lincoln Valley and townhomes on Ridge Road.  The roots have been cleared out, the next 
step in the process was to line the storm sewer.  Four bids were received for the lining, the base bid for 
600 feet of lining and an alternate bid of the initial 600 feet plus an additional 300 feet for sewer lines that 
weren’t as bad as the initial 600 feet but could pose a problem in the future.  The low bid for the base and 
alternate bids was $132, 187 which is $17,000 more than budgeted.  However staff feels this route would 
be more cost effective in the long run.   
Trustee Niedzwiedz asked if asked Director Laskowski if the lining will effectively solve the issue.  
Director Laskowski stated that in his experience the lining solves the issue, the concern is that some of the 
trees at this location are very invasive and for this reason the sewer line will be reviewed periodically and 
if the trees continue to be an issue, the property owner may have to be contacted for either potentially root 
pruning or tree removal.   



Motion for approval made by Trustee Lowery and seconded by Trustee Curtis. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Curtis –
yes, Trustee Guethle – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

8. Approval of Ordinance Approving the Acquisition of the Property Located at 23 N. 
Lincolnway and Contract for Acquisition of the Property in the Village of North Aurora 

Director Toth stated that the Village was intending to purchase the property located at 23 N. Lincolnway, 
for the purpose of a land swap with the Fire Protection District for the construction of a new fire station.  
There was a signed contract with the property owner of 23 N. Lincolnway for $780,000 and a closing date 
of January 6, 2023.  There would be a post-closing possession agreement allowing the current property 
owner to stay at that location until June 2, 2023 with a 30 day option to stay on. The Village will retain 
the right to access the property for the sake of due diligence and the current property owner will maintain 
insurance until the Village takes possession.   
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Salazar and seconded by Trustee Lowery. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Salazar – yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, 
Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
VILLAGE PRESIDENT – Mayor Gaffino commented on the leaf pickup program, and complemented 
the Public Works staff for their hard work. 
 
TRUSTEES COMMENTS – Trustee Carroll commented on the Obregon purchase and the forward 
momentum of Block One.   
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – Administrator Bosco reminded the Board about the Veterans’ Day 
memorial program held on Friday, November 1, 11am at the Veteran’s Memorial on Willow Way. 
Bosco also commented on a memo included in the meeting packet from Director Laskowski regarding 
staff moving forward with an architect for the new public works facility.  He stated that it will be a 
significant process and a commitment of about $105,000 but necessary to move forward with the final 
design of the layout.  Bosco wanted to ensure the Board that at certain points in the process, things will 
come back to the Board for review and approval before moving forward.   
 
ATTORNEY’S REPORT – None 
 
VILLAGE DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Finance – None 
2. Community Development – None 
3. Police – Chief DeLeo said that the police therapy dog, Indy, will be arriving at the Police Station on 

December 12 for training and will be a member of the department moving forward and will be 
introduced to the community with a meet and greet at the police station. 

4. Public Works – None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz. All in favor.  
Motion approved. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Jessi Watkins 
Village Clerk  



 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, November 7, 2022 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Village Board meeting was conducted live remotely 

via telecommunications. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Mark Carroll, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark Guethle, 
Trustee Mike Lowery, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Community 
& Economic Development Director Mike Toth, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Public Works Director 
John Laskowski, Police Chief Joe DeLeo.  
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS – None 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS - None 
 
DISCUSSION 
 

1. Petition #22-05: Woodman’s Warehouse Addition 
Jim Arneson of FoxArneson Construction was on hand to present regarding the Woodman’s proposed 
warehouse expansion.  Arneson stated that FoxArneson had been working with Woodman’s since 1983.  
He explained that Woodman’s does not have any centralized distribution centers, instead each of the 
Woodman’s stores has a significant amount of warehouse space and Woodman’s own trucking fleet 
redistributes the inventory between the stores.  Due to recent distribution issues, Woodman’s has begun 
building more warehouse space on to locations that can accommodate expansions.  Woodman’s was 
looking to add 67,000 square feet to their existing store, totaling just over 300,000 square feet.  The 
proposed plan called for matching the existing structure.  Mr. Arneson went on to explain in more detail 
how they plan on achieving that. 

Mr. Arneson addressed traffic issues that the Plan Commission had mentioned. 

Mr. Arneson spoke about the PUD deviations of the exterior lighting as well as the parking that had been 
proposed.  He stated that the lighting that had been called for in the PUD was outdated and that they 
preferred to use LED lighting.  The PUD called for a parking ratio that aligned with accounting for 
customers, however the additional warehouse space was not intended for customer access. 

Paul McIlheran, civil engineer from raSmith detailed the site plan for the Village Board.  McIlheran stated 
that they will be working with the Village to update the site’s storm water management.  He also spoke 
about the landscaping surrounding the new structure. 

Director Toth commented that the deviations of the lighting and parking were a Special Use requiring a 
Public Hearing which was held before the Plan Commission Meeting on November 1, 2022. 

Trustee Curtis stated that she was concerned about the aesthetics of the entirety of the building, including 
the existing structure.  Mr. Arneson explained that the current building was the model that all Woodman’s 
stores adopt, however they would not be opposed to looking in to changes. 



Trustee Lowery asked for clarification on the changes to the rear of the building.  Mr. McIlheran stated 
that the throughway behind the building would be widened to meet standards.  There was discussion 
about a concern brought up at the Plan Commission meeting about traffic issues behind the Woodman’s 
building as well as at the parcel pick-up area. 

The Village Board were in favor of the expansion. 

2. Silo Lighting Concepts  

Administrator Bosco reminded the Board about the history of the silo (Berman Tower) 
restoration/lighting project which began in 2018 with the activation of the lighting in December 2020.  He 
stated that about a year ago, the Board asked if anything further could be done with the lighting, perhaps 
animation.  Bosco said that since then staff had worked on creating more lighting thematic options and 
reached out to Schuler and Shook, the lighting consultants used during the initial part of the project, for 
pricing and lighting options which they estimate to be $75,000-$150,000.   

Administrator Bosco presented animated lighting options offered by Shuler and Shook.  He also presented 
the Board with renderings of the original concept options along with the original pricing information.  
These option included a deck around the silo structure, a playground utilizing the existing topography of 
the land, and conversion of the silo to an observation tower.  Bosco spoke about the specifics of each of 
these concepts as well as the original estimates of the enhancements. 

Bosco asked the Board for feedback about whether or not they were interested in pursuing the animated 
lighting.  He also asked if the Board would be interested in moving forward with any of the original 
concept plans or if they were content with the silo as it was. 

Trustee Curtis stated that she is content with the way the silo is and does not want to invest any additional 
money in the project.  She explained that the Fox Valley Park District is investing in improvements at 
their parks along the river north of the silo and would be in competition with the Village’s silo.  
Additionally, she stated that she believed that animating the lights could be a distraction to drivers. 

Trustee Salazar commented that if the Village invested in some of the original concept plans, such as 
seating, walkways or a playground, it could create an area for people to visit.  She said it would also be 
complementary to the Block One area.  She would not be interested in upgrading the lighting. 

Administrator Bosco spoke about the original idea of incorporating the concepts being that the 
improvements would create a destination for visitors as opposed to just a beacon that the lighted silo 
creates.  Bosco also reminded the Board that the silo is located within a TIF district. 

Mayor Gaffino said he sees the silo as a landmark.  With North Aurora’s lack of a downtown area, he said 
that this project can become a destination that the Village can take ownership of and potentially tie in to 
the Block One area.   

Trustee Curtis stated that the silo is only lit at night and she does not anticipate people making the silo a 
destination point. 

Trustee Carroll expressed that he believed the only way that people will view the silo as a destination 
point is if it is converted to an observation tower. 

There was further discussion about regarding improvements to the silo and how that could or may not 
enhance the area. 

Administrator Bosco reminded the Board that there was also a redevelopment concept for the Riverfront 
Park area.  He explained that having a completed concept with cost estimates bodes better for attempting 
to win grants to assist in funding projects.  He suggested that the Board decide what to prioritize and to 
have a completed concept in an effort to receive grant funds. 



The Board discussed what they felt the priorities of the Village should be and offered different ideas for 
the area.  The consensus being that the silo and Riverfront Park would be brought up for discussion 
during the Village’s strategic planning. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION –  
1. Collective Bargaining 
2. Personnel 

 
ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Motion to adjourn to Executive Session made by Trustee Carroll and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz.  
All in favor.  Motion approved.   
 
RETURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Mark Carroll, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark Guethle, 
Trustee Mike Lowery, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Police Chief 
Joe DeLeo, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Attorney John Kelly.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion to adjourn made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Carroll.  All in favor.  Motion 
approved.   
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Jessi Watkins 
Village Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



To Be Paid Proof List

11/08/2022 -  4:29PM

ablaser

Printed:

User:

Accounts Payable

Batch: 00503.11.2022

Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

IML Risk Management Association

003210

 1,500.00IML Dues 01-410-4390 Dues & Meetings 10032022-01 10/3/2022 11/09/2022

 332,069.762023 Contribution 14-430-4944 Liability Coverage 10032022-02 10/3/2022 11/09/2022

 333,569.76 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Report Total:  333,569.76

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/08/2022 -  4:29 PM) Page 1

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003210
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003210
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033791266
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033791267


To Be Paid Proof List

11/16/2022 -  3:43PM

ablaser

Printed:

User:

Accounts Payable

Batch: 00502.11.2022

Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

Aaron Anderson

043760

 50.00Plan/ Zoning Commission Meeting 11/1/22 01-410-4016 Per Diem - Plan Commission 11012022 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 50.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Aflac

030540

 80.48AFLAC- Oct 2022 01-000-2053 AFLAC 424351 10/26/2022 11/21/2022

 80.48 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Alexander Negro

468235

 50.00Plan/ Zoning Commission Meeting 11/1/22 01-410-4016 Per Diem - Plan Commission 11012022 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 50.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Amalgamated Bank

024400

 475.00Fiscal Agent Fee 32-430-4709 Fiscal Agent Fees 11012022 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 475.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Anna Helene Tuohy

044040

 50.00Plan/ Zoning Commission Meeting 11/1/22 01-410-4016 Per Diem - Plan Commission 11012022 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 50.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Arms Unlimited Inc

468340

 1,850.00Less Lethal Shotguns 01-440-4383 Firearm Training AU21663 9/14/2022 11/21/2022

 1,850.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Asila Consulting Services LLC

468268

 5,000.00Block Of Support Hours 01-430-4280 Professional/Consulting Fees 06062022 6/6/2022 11/21/2022

 5,000.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Aurora Area Convention

003770

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/16/2022 -  3:43 PM) Page 1

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=043760
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=043760
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033783586
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=030540
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=030540
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033827875
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468235
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468235
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784473
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784647
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784464
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812749
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468268
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468268
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003770
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003770


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

 2,867.48NA Lodging Hotel Tax/ Sept 2022 15-430-4752 90% Tourism Council 11022022 11/2/2022 11/21/2022

 2,867.48 *Vendor TotalTotal:

B & F Construction

015600

 300.00Plan Review- 140 Hanson Blvd 01-441-4276 Inspection Services 60349 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 895.50Plan Review- 100 Hanson Blvd 01-441-4276 Inspection Services 60383 11/2/2022 11/21/2022

 1,195.50 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Borekci Real Estate, LLC

468158

 19,216.25NATC Rebate June 22 - Aug 22- Inline 100% 01-490-4781 Sales Tax Rebates 11102022 11/10/2022 11/21/2022

 19,216.25 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Brackett, Michael

005890

 50.00Plan/ Zoning Commission Meeting 11/1/22 01-410-4016 Per Diem - Plan Commission 11012022 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 50.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Camic Johnson, LTD.

03989

 350.00Legal Fees 01-440-4260 Legal 142 10/28/2022 11/21/2022

 350.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Carus Corporation

033300

 1,594.50HMO Chemicals- WTP 60-445-4437 Chemicals - Water Treatment SLS 1010426110/31/2022 11/21/2022

 1,104.00HMO Chemicals- ETP 60-445-4437 Chemicals - Water Treatment SLS 1010426210/31/2022 11/21/2022

 2,698.50 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Casey Equipment Co, Inc

010570

 492.60Fuel Foil Filters 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint P03666 10/21/2022 11/21/2022

 56.93Lift Ram (2) 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint P03715 11/2/2022 11/21/2022

 549.53 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Cintas Corporation

041590

 57.50Towel & Rug Cleaning- PW Garage 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 4135371372 10/25/2022 11/21/2022

 70.28First Aid Kit Supplies- PW Garage 01-445-4870 Equipment 5130350368 10/26/2022 11/21/2022

 127.78 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Commonwealth Edison

000330

 41.85Street Lights/ 1901 Orchard Gateway 10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles 0835082016 11/3/2022 11/21/2022

 8.88Street Lights/ 1197 Comiskey 10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles 0903075187 10/17/2022 11/21/2022

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/16/2022 -  3:43 PM) Page 2

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779204
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=015600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=015600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817882
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817881
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468158
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468158
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033810120
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=005890
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=005890
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784459
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=03989
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=03989
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784475
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812512
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812511
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010570
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010570
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784703
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779165
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041590
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041590
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033818086
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033818087
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000330
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000330
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809895
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784765


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

 19.56Street Lights/ 1051 Kettle Ave 10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles 1083133047 11/3/2022 11/21/2022

 8.88Street Lights/ 1193 Comiskey 10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles 1743032047 10/17/2022 11/21/2022

 79.17 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Core & Main

039040

 124.40Brass Fittings 60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. R815651 10/25/2022 11/21/2022

 124.40 *Vendor TotalTotal:

D&A Powertrain Components, INC

467649

 362.88Mud Flap 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 246757 10/26/2022 11/21/2022

 362.88 *Vendor TotalTotal:

DACRA Adjudication Systems

467842

 1,850.00Adjudication- Oct 2022 01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint DT 2022-10-2710/31/2022 11/21/2022

 1,850.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

David Arndt

047010

 143.75Travel Reimbursement 01-430-4370 Conferences & Travel 11032022 11/3/2022 11/21/2022

 143.75 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Donald E Morris Architect, PC

468287

 2,821.19Plan Review- Sept 2022 01-441-4276 Inspection Services 09302022 9/30/2022 11/21/2022

 2,425.40Plan Review- Oct 2022 01-441-4276 Inspection Services 10312022 10/22/2022 11/21/2022

 5,246.59 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Doug Botkin

047330

 50.00Plan/ Zoning Commission Meeting 11/1/22 01-410-4016 Per Diem - Plan Commission 11012022 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 50.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Drendel & Jansons Law Group

028580

 233.33Eng Srvcs- PW/ Sept 2022 01-445-4260 Legal 3144 10/30/2022 11/21/2022

 233.33 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Duke & Lee's Johnson's Garage & Towing, Inc.

045190

 726.71Steering Shaft- Truck #147 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 078272 10/25/2022 11/21/2022

 726.71 *Vendor TotalTotal:

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/16/2022 -  3:43 PM) Page 3

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809896
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784766
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817871
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467649
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467649
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779163
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467842
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467842
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779170
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817884
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468287
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468287
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779407
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812736
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047330
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047330
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784453
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028580
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028580
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784641
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=045190
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=045190
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779087


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

Dunn-Rite Window Cleaning Inc.

467922

 710.00Window Cleaning- VH/ Sept 2022 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 5448 10/27/2022 11/21/2022

 710.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Dynegy Energy Services

048750

 5,113.71Well #9 9/16 - 10/16 60-445-4662 Utility 146531122101-0110/19/2022 11/21/2022

 5,154.71Well #7 9/8 - 10/6 60-445-4662 Utility 146531122101-0210/19/2022 11/21/2022

 4,829.98Well #4/ WTP 9/7 - 10/5 60-445-4662 Utility 146531122101-0310/19/2022 11/21/2022

 1,118.13Well #5/ ETP 9/8 - 10/6 60-445-4662 Utility 146531122101-0410/19/2022 11/21/2022

 4,361.92Well #8 9/6 - 10/4 60-445-4662 Utility 146531122101-0510/19/2022 11/21/2022

 3,210.29Well #6 9/2 - 10/3 60-445-4662 Utility 146531122101-0610/19/2022 11/21/2022

 23,788.74 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Energenecs, Inc

035320

 9,490.01Antenna Replacement, Cable, Fittings 60-445-4565 Water Well Rpr & Mtce 0044616-IN 9/22/2022 11/21/2022

 9,490.01 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

467917

 278.75DART Fire Test 60-445-4255 Engineering 75399 10/21/2022 11/21/2022

 3,582.00LSLR Program 60-445-4255 Engineering 75400 10/21/2022 11/21/2022

 11,840.31Pedestrian Signal/ Randall & Ritter 21-456-4875 Capital Improvements 75401 10/21/2022 11/21/2022

 15,701.06 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Federal Express Corporation

009530

 64.26Postage 01-445-4505 Postage 7-926-69945 10/26/2022 11/21/2022

 64.26 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Feece Oil

031060

 6,452.98Mid-Grade Fuel 71-000-1340 Gas/Diesel Escrow 3931498 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 2,996.06Diesel Fuel 71-000-1340 Gas/Diesel Escrow 3931499 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 9,449.04 *Vendor TotalTotal:

FOX METRO WRD

045480

 82.24Sewer Bill- VH 7/31 - 9/30 01-445-4662 Utility N02-0164 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 21.42Sewer Bill- PW Garage  7/31 - 9/30 01-445-4662 Utility N02-5782 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 71.40Sewer Bill- PD 7/31 - 9/30 01-445-4662 Utility N02-5784 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 175.06 *Vendor TotalTotal:

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/16/2022 -  3:43 PM) Page 4

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467922
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467922
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033819152
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048750
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048750
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779196
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779197
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779198
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779199
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779201
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035320
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035320
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812732
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467917
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467917
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784644
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779334
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779333
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=009530
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=009530
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779141
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817759
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817760
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=045480
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=045480
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033828142
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033828141
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033828140


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

Frank Marshall Electric

028510

 1,233.00Light Repair- Riverfront Park 01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint 91388 10/24/2022 11/21/2022

 405.00Light Repair- VH Boardroom 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 91390 10/24/2022 11/21/2022

 1,638.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Hach Company

014100

 3,746.76New Hardness Analyzer- ETP 60-445-4870 Equipment 13307313 10/27/2022 11/21/2022

 3,746.76 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative

467637

 38,461.74Health Insurance- PD/ Nov 2022 01-440-4130 Health Insurance 11092022-01 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 5,900.65Health Insurance- Admin/ Nov 2022 01-430-4130 Health Insurance 11092022-02 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 3,655.30Health Insurance- PSEBA/ Nov 2022 01-430-4132 PSEBA Health Insurance 11092022-03 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 3,337.54Health Insurance- CommDev/ Nov 2022 01-441-4130 Health Insurance 11092022-04 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 14,537.37Health Insurance- PW/ Nov 2022 01-445-4130 Health Insurance 11092022-05 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 6,537.34Health Insurance- Water/ Nov 2022 60-445-4130 Health Insurance 11092022-06 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 1,957.99Health Insurance- Retirees/ Nov 2022 01-000-2055 Payroll Deductions 11092022-07 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 3,328.90Health Insurance- PD Pension/ Nov 2022 01-000-2055 Payroll Deductions 11092022-08 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 194.97Dental Insurance- Admin/ Nov 2022 01-430-4136 Dental Insurance 11092022-09 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 87.27Dental Insurance- CommDev/ Nov 2022 01-441-4136 Dental Insurance 11092022-10 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 961.56Dental Insurance- PD/ Nov 2022 01-441-4136 Dental Insurance 11092022-11 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 417.69Dental Insurance- PW/ Nov 2022 01-445-4136 Dental Insurance 11092022-12 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 170.61Dental Insurance- Water/ Nov 2022 60-445-4136 Dental Insurance 11092022-13 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 2,062.77Dental Insurance- Employee/ Nov 2022 01-000-2054 Insurance Employee Reimburse 11092022-14 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 100.80Life Insurance- PD/ Nov 2022 01-440-4135 Life Insurance 11092022-15 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 37.44Life Insurance- PW/ Nov 2022 01-445-4135 Life Insurance 11092022-16 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 17.28Life Insurance- Admin/ Nov 2022 01-430-4135 Life Insurance 11092022-17 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 14.40Life Insurance- CommDev/ Nov 2022 01-441-4135 Life Insurance 11092022-18 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 14.40Life Insurance- Water/ Nov 2022 60-445-4135 Life Insurance 11092022-19 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 747.65Vision/ Nov 2022 01-000-2056 VSP - Employee Contributions 11092022-20 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 418.07Voluntary Life/ Nov 2022 01-000-2052 Voluntary Life Insurance 11092022-21 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 82,961.74 *Vendor TotalTotal:

J & S Construction

029060

 11,006.25Water Main Repair- Oak and Winstor 60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 2207301 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 11,006.25 *Vendor TotalTotal:

K & D Sales & Service

468253

 15.90Chain Saw Bar 01-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 13584 10/7/2022 11/21/2022

 15.90 *Vendor TotalTotal:

KB Collision & Customs

046310

 550.00New Squad Equipment 01-440-4931 Vehicle Equip Fund Charges 271 11/8/2022 11/21/2022

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/16/2022 -  3:43 PM) Page 5

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779361
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033827838
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812715
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467637
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467637
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812782
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812783
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812784
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812785
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812786
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812787
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812788
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812789
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812790
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812791
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812792
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812793
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812794
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812795
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812796
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812797
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812809
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812810
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812811
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812812
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812813
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779454
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468253
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468253
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809772
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=046310
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=046310
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809686


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

 550.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Kiesler's Police Supply, Inc.

039910

 3,620.00Ammo 01-440-4383 Firearm Training IN201456 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 1,472.40Ammo 01-440-4383 Firearm Training IN201480 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 5,092.40 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Kimball Midwest

467916

 60.47Wipes, Thread ID 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 100435443 10/28/2022 11/21/2022

 60.47 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Layne Christensen Company

025170

 15,207.20Pump/ Motor Maintenance- Well #5 60-463-4875 Capital Improvements 2349844 10/19/2022 11/21/2022

 15,207.20 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Linde Gas & Equipment Inc

025120

 214.32Cutting Torch Oxygen Cylinder 01-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 32127854 10/29/2022 11/21/2022

 214.32 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Mark Bozik

042430

 50.00Plan/ Zoning Commission Meeting 11/1/22 01-410-4016 Per Diem - Plan Commission 11012022 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 50.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Menards

016070

 247.48Decoration Supplies 01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint 94685 10/25/2022 11/21/2022

 469.36Supplies For Repair Van 60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 94818 10/27/2022 11/21/2022

 32.67Swiffer And Cloths 01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies 95218 11/3/2022 11/21/2022

 61.23Fittings For Sampling 60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint 95235 11/3/2022 11/21/2022

 169.95Light Bulbs 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 95306 11/4/2022 11/21/2022

 639.68Folding Chairs (32) 01-445-4799 Misc. Expenditures 95480 11/7/2022 11/21/2022

 107.82Expandable Foam For Leaf Box Seal 01-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 95512 11/7/2022 11/21/2022

 1,728.19 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Metro West COG

032210

 50.00Metro West Meeting- Gaffino/ Sept 2022 01-410-4390 Dues & Meetings 4837-01 10/24/2022 11/21/2022

 50.00Metro West Meeting- Bosco/ Sept 2022 01-430-4390 Dues & Meetings 4837-02 10/24/2022 11/21/2022

 100.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/16/2022 -  3:43 PM) Page 6

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039910
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039910
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817722
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817721
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467916
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467916
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779139
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025170
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025170
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812751
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025120
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025120
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804807
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=042430
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=042430
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784458
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=016070
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=016070
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033827835
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817876
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779158
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817877
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809844
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809750
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809769
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032210
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032210
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033827872
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033827873


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

North Aurora NAPA, Inc.

038730

 4.47Fask Masks 01-445-4870 Equipment 399447 12/27/2021 11/21/2022

 142.90RainX Weather Bead 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 403420 2/16/2022 11/21/2022

 9.79Windshield Wash, Drain Pan 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 409955 5/3/2022 11/21/2022

 208.89Air Filters 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 411819 5/24/2022 11/21/2022

 20.60Oil Filter 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 411820 5/24/2022 11/21/2022

 10.06Hydraulic Filter 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 411821 5/24/2022 11/21/2022

 3.10Fuse Holder 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 412294 5/31/2022 11/21/2022

 30.28Spayer, Disk Brake Quiet & Brake 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 413175 6/9/2022 11/21/2022

 339.78Battery 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 415410 6/5/2022 11/21/2022

 910.37Brake Pad, Roter- 2012 Ram 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 417690 8/1/2022 11/21/2022

 73.28Battery Warrenty 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 417997 8/4/2022 11/21/2022

 10.28Rearview Mirror Pro, Air Freshner 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 418647 8/12/2022 11/21/2022

 2.23Spreader (3 Pak) 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 420224 8/31/2022 11/21/2022

 71.19Belt- 2000 Ford 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 420316 9/1/2021 11/21/2022

 57.8412V Battery, Air Freshener 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 421627-01 9/19/2022 11/21/2022

 179.80Squad Parts 01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 421627-02 9/19/2022 11/21/2022

 146.97Squad Parts 01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 422786 10/3/2022 11/21/2022

 12.64Fuse 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 423212 10/7/2021 11/21/2022

 441.79Squad Parts 01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 423420 10/11/2022 11/21/2022

 387.80Squad Parts 01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 423433 10/11/2022 11/21/2022

 26.41Horn- Truck #181 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 423645 10/13/2022 11/21/2022

 203.48Step Bar 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 423749 10/20/2022 11/21/2022

 56.07Sensor & Connector 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 424439 10/24/2021 11/21/2022

 17.22Fuel Cap Tether 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 424440 10/24/2021 11/21/2022

 36.47Electronic Cle 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 424656 10/26/2022 11/21/2022

 73.35Housing 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 424662 10/26/2021 11/21/2022

 51.49Worklight 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 424707 10/27/2022 11/21/2022

 128.36Calipar, Brake Parts 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 424714 10/27/2022 11/21/2022

 73.614 Piece Mechanics Set 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 424715 10/27/2021 11/21/2022

 117.07Squad Parts 01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 424740 10/27/2022 11/21/2022

 13.71Adapter Trailer Wire 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 424857 10/28/2021 11/21/2022

 3,861.30 *Vendor TotalTotal:

North East Multi-Regional

001520

 510.00Training- Robinson, Majerus 01-440-4380 Training 314255 11/9/2022 11/21/2022

 510.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Olsson Roofing Company, Inc.

042370

 1,793.00Roof Leak Repair- VH 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 22003235 10/28/2022 11/21/2022

 1,793.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Paddock Publications, Inc.

026910

 342.70SSA #45 Public Notice 01-430-4506 Publishing/Advertising 232087 10/24/2022 11/21/2022

 342.70 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Pitney Bowes Inc.

017470

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/16/2022 -  3:43 PM) Page 7

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804829
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804832
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804833
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804871
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804872
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804873
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804874
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804875
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804876
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804877
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804831
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804878
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033804830
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809739
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784635
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784636
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784639
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809740
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784638
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784637
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779121
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779118
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809743
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809744
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779120
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809747
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779122
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779119
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809745
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784640
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809746
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809684
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=042370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=042370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033828399
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=026910
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=026910
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779168
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=017470
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=017470


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

 452.13Postage Machine 01-440-4505 Postage 3105774730 10/25/2022 11/21/2022

 452.13 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Priority Products, Inc.

041340

 188.78Nuts, Fuses, Clamps 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 981625 10/21/2022 11/21/2022

 161.48Washers, Ties, Drill Bits 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 982270 11/4/2022 11/21/2022

 350.26 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Richard Newell

468236

 50.00Plan/ Zoning Commission Meeting 11/1/22 01-410-4016 Per Diem - Plan Commission 11012022 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 50.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

SavATree, LLC

468127

 9,892.00Tree Trimming 01-445-4532 Tree Service 11623981 10/12/2022 11/21/2022

 9,892.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Sebert Landscaping

032840

 1,157.00Mowing- SSA4 17-004-4533 Maintenance 248889-01 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 1,065.00Mowing- SSA8 17-008-4533 Maintenance 248889-02 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 331.00Mowing- SSA9 17-009-4533 Maintenance 248889-03 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 29.00Mowing- SSA11 17-011-4533 Maintenance 248889-04 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 4,092.00Mowing- Public Property 01-445-4531 Grass Cutting 248889-05 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 6,674.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Secretary of State

002690

 15.00Notary- McKiness 01-440-4799 Misc. 11042022 11/4/2022 11/21/2022

 15.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

SIT Service Dogs

468358

 6,000.00Comfort Dog 01-440-4799 Misc. Pawiffer - Indy10/24/2022 11/21/2022

 6,000.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Springbrook Software LLC

467920

 895.00Web Payment- Oct 2022 60-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint INV-011029 11/4/2022 11/21/2022

 895.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

The Needham Shop, Inc.

041000

 70.35Loader Light Repairs 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 70.35 10/4/2022 11/21/2022

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/16/2022 -  3:43 PM) Page 8

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784610
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779160
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809826
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468236
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468236
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784470
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468127
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468127
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033779335
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032840
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032840
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817786
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817787
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817788
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817789
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817790
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002690
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002690
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468358
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468358
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033827851
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467920
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467920
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033810137
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033809774


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

 70.35 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Thomas  Lenkart

032550

 50.00Plan/ Zoning Commission Meeting 11/1/22 01-410-4016 Per Diem - Plan Commission 11012022 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 50.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Treasurer, State of Illinois

009370

 132,701.19Airport/ Alder/ Ice Cream- Pay #4 Final 10-445-4875 Capital Improvements 124990 11/1/2022 11/21/2022

 132,701.19 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Uline, Inc

468220

 1,125.67Custodial Supplies 01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies 155507233 10/24/2022 11/21/2022

 1,125.67 *Vendor TotalTotal:

University of Illinois

002780

 500.00Training Class- Nordstrom 01-440-4383 Firearm Training UPI11202 10/26/2022 11/21/2022

 500.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Utility Dynamics Corporation

052560

 5,391.24LED Lighting Upgrades- Orchard Gateway 10-445-4661 Street Light Repair/Maint 1025-2913 10/25/2022 11/21/2022

 5,391.24 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Water Products Company

001170

 2,910.68Grease & Sleeves For WM Repair 60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 031004 11/2/2022 11/21/2022

 1,254.00Repair Clamp, Bolts, Fitting 60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 0312957 10/31/2022 11/21/2022

 4,164.68 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Williams Associates Architects, Ltd.

024930

 3,114.55Validation Phase 17-032-4533 Maintenance 0021313 10/26/2022 11/21/2022

 3,114.55 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Report Total:  403,129.82

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/16/2022 -  3:43 PM) Page 9

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032550
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032550
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784463
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=009370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=009370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812096
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468220
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468220
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817865
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002780
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002780
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033784607
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052560
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052560
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033817868
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001170
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001170
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812719
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812720
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024930
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024930
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0033812746


Village of North Aurora 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

To: 

 

President and Village Board of Trustees 

 

From: 

 

Jason Paprocki, Finance Director 

 

Date: 

 

November 21, 2022 

 

CC: 

 

Steven Bosco, Village Administrator 

 

RE: 

 

Ordinance Proposing Opus I-88 Special Service Area (SSA No. 45) 

 

The Village Board had previously approved SSA No. 45, however, we inadvertently did 

not hold a public hearing on this matter.  Notice of the public hearing was sent to the 

Daily Herald and notices were mailed to taxpayers of record.  Unfortunately, the actual 

public hearing was mistakenly left off the November 7, 2022 Village Board agenda.  The 

original ordinance proposing SSA No 45 was passed on September 19, 2022, with final 

approval needed within 60 days.  The November 21, 2022 Village Board meeting occurs 

greater than 60 days after the ordinance proposing SSA No. 45 was approved, therefore 

we will need to restart the process. 

 

Per section 8 of the Opus I-88 Corporate Park PUD Ordinance, the Village shall establish 

a back-up special service area for the purpose of maintaining the common facilities in the 

event the owner’s association and/or the property owners fail to do so.  Common 

facilities include:  stormwater detention and retention basins, stormwater sewer lines 

directly serving such basins, and surface drainage facilities; the landscaping located on 

the perimeter and common areas, including trees; any entry monuments; and any 

sidewalks.  The cost to maintain such common facilities by way of the back-up special 

service area shall be determined by the cost of contracted services approved by the 

Village pursuant to a public bidding process. 

 

Should the Village Board approve the Ordinance proposing SSA No. 45, the next step 

will include: 

 

 A public hearing before the Village Board, which may take place no later than 60 

days after the Ordinance proposing SSA No. 45 is approved. 

 Mail notices to the last taxpayers of record at least 10 days prior to the public 

hearing. 

 Publish notice in a newspaper of local circulation at least 15 days prior to the 

public hearing. 



ORDINANCE NO.                                    

 

AN ORDINANCE PROPOSING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF  

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 45 IN THE VILLAGE 

OF NORTH AURORA (OPUS 1-88 CORPORATE PARK) 

 

WHEREAS, a special use for a planned unit development was approved by the Village Board by 

Ordinance No. 2021-04-05-01, being an Ordinance Approving a Map Amendment and Special Use as an 

Industrial Planned Development for 67 Acres of Property to be Known as the Opus 1-88 Corporate Park in 

The Village of North Aurora (the “PUD Ordinance”), for property legally described the document attached 

hereto and referenced herein as Exhibit “A”, and that property being developed as the Opus 1-88 Corporate 

Park (the “Development”) has been annexed to the Village; and 

 WHEREAS, Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for an owners’ association 

have been or will be executed and recorded and will bind future owners within the subdivision in 

compliance with the PUD Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, the preliminary/final plat and a declaration of covenants, conditions and restrictions 

identify (or shall identify) certain special improvements referenced in the PUD Ordinance including all 

private drives, parking lots, retention and detention basins, water service facilities, sanitary sewer service 

facilities (onsite and offsite), storm sewer facilities (onsite and offsite), surface drainage facilities, and 

landscaping, including signs, and common area landscaping (hereinafter “Common Facilities”) that 

uniquely benefit the Opus 1-88 Corporate Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the declaration that is or will be recorded requires or shall require an owners’ 

association to pay the expense of maintenance, repair, replacement, taxes, administration and operation of 

the Common Facilities; and 

 WHEREAS, it is proper and necessary that a Special Service Area be established as a backup 

source of funding for purposes of maintenance, repair and replacement of the Common Facilities as 

provided in the PUD Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Ordinance will create Special Service Area No. 45 (Opus 1-88 

Corporate Park) providing a tax associated with the establishment of the service area to be levied; and 

 WHEREAS, the services to be provided are special and unique to the Opus 1-88 Corporate Park 

development and are in addition to services generally provided throughout the Village of North Aurora; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the owners’ association established or to be established by the developer shall be 

primarily responsible for the maintenance, repair, replacements, taxes, administration and operation of the 

Common Facilities, and the proposed special service shall be established as a backup source of funding; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Village has the authority to levy and impose taxes on property in special service 

areas to cover the cost of the special services to be provided pursuant to Article VII, Section 7, Part (6) of 

the 1970 Illinois constitution and 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et. seq. of the Illinois Municipal Code.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

North Aurora as follows:   



 

2 

1. The corporate authorities find as a fact the recitals set forth above. 

2. That a Special Service Area is hereby proposed for the Opus 1-88 Corporate Park as a backup 

source of funding for mowing of grass, fertilization and pest control of grass and other landscape materials; 

cleaning and maintenance of stormwater basins and channels, including such stormwater detention 

elements, and repair flushing and ongoing maintenance of storm sewer lines; customary repair, maintenance 

and rehabilitation of private drives, including pavement and curbs, maintenance and replacement of the 

landscaping, and any other maintenance, repair, restoration and administration of the special improvements 

and Common Facilities as more fully described in the PUD Ordinance and including the accrual of interest 

at the rate of 6 percent 6%) per annum from the date of expenditure until the date of collection by the 

Village of the SSA Back-Up funding and a ten percent (10%) administrative fee.   

3. That the time and place for a hearing on the proposed Special Service Area for Development shall 

be fixed within sixty (60) days after the adoption of this Ordinance and shall be subject to publication and 

mailing of required notices and any and all requirements imposed by law 

4. That the Special Service Area tax shall be imposed at a rate or amounts sufficient to produce 

revenues required to provide the special services, but in no event more than fifty cents ($0.50) per one 

hundred dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation, as equalized, of the taxable property, excluding all taxable 

personal property, per year located in the SSA.   

5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval by the 

President and passage of time as provided by law.   

 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this  

_____ day of _____________, 2022, A.D. 

 

 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this  

_____ day of _________________, 2022, A.D. 

 

 Mark Carroll  _________  Laura Curtis  _________ 

 

  Mark Guethle  _________     Mark Lowery   _________ 

 

 Todd Niedzwiedz _________   Carolyn Salazar  _________  

 Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois this                     day of _________ 2022, A.D. 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Village President 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Village Clerk 

 

 

  



 

3 

EXHIBIT A 

 

ORDINANCE PROPOSING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF  

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 45 IN THE VILLAGE 

OF NORTH AURORA (OPUS 1-88 CORPORATE PARK) 

 

TRACT 1 

 

PARCEL 1:  

THAT PART OF LOT 2 IN TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART 

OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF 

THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 

AUGUST 23, 1988 AS DOCUMENT 1928028, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 26 

SECONDS EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2, A DISTANCE OF 366.19 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST, 560.18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 

23 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST, 43.79 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF 

SAID LOT 2; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID 

SOUTHERLY LINE, 138.25 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE IN SAID SOUTHERLY LINE; 

THENCE WESTERLY AND SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE, BEING A 

CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, TANGENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, 

HAVING A RADIUS OF 230.00 FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 67 DEGREES 29 

MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST, A CHORD LENGTH OF 176.10 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 

180.71 FEET TO THE MOST SOUTHERLY SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE 

NORTH 45 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 41 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE 

OF SAID LOT 2, A DISTANCE OF 64.24 FEET TO THE MOST WESTERLY SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST 

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 2, A DISTANCE OF 622.22 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.  

 

PARCEL 2:  

THAT PART OF LOT 1 IN TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE RESUBDIVISION NO. 1 LYING 

EASTERLY AND NORTHEASTERLY OF THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOT 1, IN TOLLWAY PARK 

OF COMMERCE RESUBDIVISION NUMBER 2, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 

TRACT 2:  

 

THAT PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 38 

NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN KANE COUNTY, 

ILLINOIS, BEING BOUNDED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER 

OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 56 SECONDS 

EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 175.02 FEET TO THE 

NORTHWESTERN CORNER OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE VILLAGE OF 

NORTH AURORA AS DOCUMENT 1003704 IN THE OFFICE OF THE KANE COUNTY 

RECORDER; THENCE SOUTH 86 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 15 SECONDS EAST 100.29 FEET TO A 

POINT HERINAFTER REFERRED TO AS POINT “A”; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 26 

MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER 200.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 04 SECONDS WEST 

PERPENDICULAR TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 100.00 FEET TO THE 



 

4 

WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 56 

SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 942.57 FEET TO 

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; 

THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF 

THE NORTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1,005.85 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 40 SECONDS 

WEST PERPENDICUAR TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER 15.87 FEET; THENCE NORTH 37 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 11 SECONDS EAST 173.55 

FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST PERPENDICULAR TO 

THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 905.65 FEET TO A 

POINT LYING SOUTH 86 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 15 SECONDS EAST 1,007.69 FEET FROM THE 

AFORESAID POINT “A”; THENCE SOUTH 86 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 15 SECONDS EAST 

1,469.83 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERN LINE OF THE FORMER CHICAGO 

BURLINGTON AND QUINCY RAILROAD COMPANY PROPERTY; THENCE SOUTH 00 

DEGREES 39 MINUTES 04 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WESTERN LINE OF SAID FORMER 

RAILROAD COMPANY PROPERTY 936.34 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 

NORTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 

20 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER 1,567.98 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 1,468,048 SQUARE 

FEET OR 33.702 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 

 

TRACT 3: 

 

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 38 

NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN KANE COUNTY, 

ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 

SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST 

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 175.02 FEET TO THE 

NORTHWESTERN CORNER OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE VILLAGE OF 

NORTH AURORA AS DOCUMENT 1003704 IN THE OFFICE OF THE KANE COUNTY 

RECORDER; THENCE SOUTH 86 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 15 SECONDS EAST 100.29 FEET TO 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 26 

MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER 200.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 04 SECONDS WEST 

PERPENDICULAR TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 100.00 FEET TO THE 

WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 56 

SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 942.57 FEET TO 

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; 

THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF 

THE NORTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1,005.85 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 

DEGREES 52 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST PERPENDICUAR TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 

NORTH HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 15.87 FEET; THENCE NORTH 37 DEGREES 09 

MINUTES 11 SECONDS EAST 173.55 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 40 

SECONDS WEST PERPENDICULAR TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH HALF OF SAID 

SOUTHWEST QUARTER 905.65 FEET TO A POINT LYING SOUTH 86 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 

15 SECONDS EAST 1,007.69 FEET FROM THE POINT OF THE BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 86 

DEGREES 07 MINUTES 15 SECONDS WEST 1,007.69 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

CONTAINING 1,194,744 SQUARE FEET OR 27.428 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 



 
Memorandum 
 
To:   Village President and Village Board of Trustees   

Cc:      Steve Bosco, Village Administrator  

From: Natalie Stevens, Executive Assistant 

Date:  November 17, 2022 

Re:      The Rustic Fox Chris Kringle Holiday Market 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Attached is a Special Event Permit application submitted by Nicole Kolosowski on 
behalf of The Rustic Fox seeking a special events permit from the Village of North 
Aurora for an outdoor holiday market event spanning two consecutive days. 
 
The Rustic Fox is looking to host an outdoor holiday market at their location, 1790 
Towne Center Drive, on the dates of Saturday, December 3 from 10 am to 6 pm and 
Sunday, December 4, 2022 from 11 am – 5 pm. The event will host approximately 65 
vendors showcasing their Christmas crafts and also includes five food trucks. The 
event will have live performances by local musicians and Santa Claus will also be in 
attendance for photos.  
 
The event requires a Special Event permit due to the fact there will be multiple food 
trucks / food vendors at the event for a duration of more than two hours and Village 
Code only allows for one food vendor a day for a two hour window without a Special 
Event Permit along with the event taking place outside. Please see the attached 
layout map for the event. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









Additional description of event provided by The Rustic Fox: 

The December event will host a number of vendors showcasing their Christmas 
crafts. As of today we have a total of 65 vendors participating in the event including 
five food trucks. We will be featuring live performances by local musicians. Santa 
Claus will also be in attendance for photo ops. 

 



117'4"

132'7"

141'6"

127'10"

14
'3

"

15'6"

Store
Entrance

15

BATHROOMSSIDE DOOR
NO ENTRY

DUMPSTER

DO NOT USE

DOCK DOOR

TOWNE CENTER BLVD.

1611

22 24 27

28

29

31

30

21

17

262019

38

25

90

89

3534

54 53 5051

36

47

67

33 414037

49

39

4648

61

8

6059

9

62

52

716463 66 68 69

45

65

86

76

43

42

44

58

10

1

7

3

4

2

6

5

VENDOR 
CHECK IN

VENDOR 
CHECK IN

13 14 1812

55

32

81

79

80

75

83

84

82

77

78

74

56

57

73

70

23

72

87

Handicap
Parking

Handicap
Parking

Handicap
Parking

Handicap
Parking

88



      
 
 

Memorandum 
To:         Mark Gaffino, Village President & Board of Trustees 

Cc:     Steven Bosco, Village Administrator  

From:  Brandon Tonarelli, Village Engineer  

Date:  November 14, 2022 

Re:         Consideration of a Phase 2 Engineering Agreement with EEI for the Orchard 

Gateway STP Project in the amount of $295,891. 

 
The Village has received a proposal from EEI for the Phase 2 engineering services for the 
Orchard Gateway Project proposed for fiscal year 2024.  This project would include 
pavement rehabilitation of Orchard Gateway from Orchard Road to Randall Road.  It would 
also include the installation of a traffic signal and widening at the intersection of Hansen 
Boulevard and Orchard Gateway, replacing the existing four way stop sign.   
 
EEI has been performing Phase 1 engineering services for the project and is nearing the 
completion of this phase of design.  Part of the engineering completed during this phase was 
determining the need for additional right-of-way (ROW) or easements and completing an 
environmental study.  It has been determined that additional right-of-way and easements 
will be necessary near the intersection of Orchard Gateway and Hansen in order to 
accommodate the installation of the traffic signal equipment and widening the intersection 
for additional turn lanes.  The environmental testing and reporting determined that 
additional testing and reporting will be required during Phase 2 design. 
 
EEI’s proposal for Phase 2 engineering is in the amount of $295,891.  Included within their 
proposal is the use of two sub consultants.  Environmental testing and reporting services by 
Huff & Huff in the amount of $26,393.  Right-of-way acquisition services by Mathewson Land 
Services, Inc. in the amount of $63,800 which includes, following federal property acquisition 
requirements, titles, appraisals, property negotiations, and closings on three different 
parcels. EEI’s scope includes completing final engineering plans and specifications for the 
project.   
 
The Village had obtained federal funding for this project through the Kane County Council of 
Mayors (KKCOM) and Chicago Metropolitan Planning Agency (CMAP) in 2020 with partial 
funding from the federal Surface Transportation Project (STP) in the amount of $1,888,890.   
 



In 2022, Village staff requested additional funding for the project’s construction due to 
KKCOM showing an unobligated balance of funds for fiscal year 2024.  The Village was given 
an additional $179,167 in funding, bringing the total grant funds to $2,068,057.   
 
A summary of the estimated project cost and grant funds is shown in the table below: 
 Phase 1 Eng. Phase 2 Eng. ROW Construction Phase 3 Eng. 
Village Funds $244,266 $295,891 $285,000 $1,339,843 $340,800 
Grant Funds - - - $2,068,057 - 
Total $244,266 $295,891 $285,000 $3,407,900 $340,800 

 
Total Estimated Project Cost = $4,573,857 
Total Estimated Project Cost with Village Funds = $2,505,800 
 
The ROW, construction, and Phase 3 engineering are estimated costs at this time 
 
The Village Engineer and Public Works Director reviewed the professional services 
agreement prepared by EEI for the Phase 2 engineering services.  It was determined that the 
scope outlined in the agreement is sufficient to address the needs of the project. There is 
currently $245,000 budgeted for the project, with sufficient funds in the Capital Fund to cover 
the additional $55,891 so it is the Staff recommendation to enter into an agreement with EEI 
in the amount of $295,891. 
 
 
 



Agreement for Professional Services 
Orchard Gateway Boulevard Roadway Improvements - Phase II 

Village of North Aurora, IL 
 
  
THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the Village of North Aurora, hereinafter referred 
to as the "Village" or “OWNER” and Engineering Enterprises, Inc. hereinafter referred to 
as the "Contractor" or “ENGINEER” agrees as follows:  
 
A. Services:  
 
The Engineer shall furnish the necessary personnel, materials, equipment and expertise to 
make the necessary investigations, analysis and calculations along with exhibits, plans 
cost estimates and narrative, to complete all necessary engineering services to the Village 
as indicated on the included Attachment B. Services shall include Design Engineering for 
the roadway improvements on Orchard Gateway Boulevard and Hansen Boulevard as 
shown on Attachment E.  All engineering will be performed in accordance to all Village 
and Illinois Department of Transportation requirements. 
 
B. Term:   
 
Services will be provided beginning on the date of execution of this agreement and 
continuing, until terminated by either party upon 7 days written notice to the non-
terminating party or upon completion of the Services. Upon termination the Contractor 
shall be compensated for all work performed for the Village prior to termination.  
 
C. Compensation and maximum amounts due to Contractor: 
 
ENGINEER shall receive as compensation for all work and services to be performed 
herein, an amount based on the Estimated Level of Effort and Associated Cost included 
in Attachment C. Work and services will be paid for monthly based on the percentage of 
the project that is complete. The Fixed Fee amount for the Design Engineering for the 
project is $205,198.  The hourly rates for this project are shown in Attachment F. All 
payments will be made according to the Illinois State Prompt Payment Act and not less 
than once every thirty days. 
 
For outside services provided by other firms or subconsultants, the Village shall pay the 
ENGINEER the invoiced fee to the ENGINEER, plus 10%. Such outside services 
include, but are not limited to services to be provided by Huff & Huff, a Subsidiary of 
GZA and Mathewson Land Services, Inc.  Direct Expenses are estimated to be $90,693. 
 
D. Changes in Rates of Compensation: 
 
In the event that this contract extends beyond December 31, 2022, the contractor shall 
provide written notice of any change in the rates specified in Section C hereof (or on any 
attachments hereto) and said changes shall only be effective on and after January 1st of 



2023. In the event that any rate changes do occur, the new effective rates will not affect 
the established Fixed Fee amount. 
 
E. Ownership of Records and Documents: 
 
Contractor agrees that all books and records and other recorded information developed 
specifically in connection with this agreement shall remain the property of the Village. 
Contractor agrees to keep such information confidential and not to disclose or 
disseminate the information to third parties without the consent of the Village. This 
confidentiality shall not apply to material or information, which would otherwise be 
subject to public disclosure through the freedom of information act or if already 
previously disclosed by a third party. Upon termination of this agreement, Contractor 
agrees to return all such materials to the Village. The Village agrees not to modify any 
original documents produced by Contractor without contractors consent.  Modifications 
of any signed duplicate original document not authorized by ENGINEER will be at 
OWNER’s sole risk and without legal liability to the ENGINEER. Use of any 
incomplete, unsigned document will, likewise, be at the OWNER’s sole risk and without 
legal liability to the ENGINEER. 
 
F. Governing Law:  
 
This contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Illinois. Venue shall be in Kane County, Illinois. 
 
G. Independent Contractor:   
 
Contractor shall have sole control over the manner and means of providing the work and 
services performed under this agreement. The Village’s relationship to the Contractor 
under this agreement shall be that of an independent contractor. Contractor will not be 
considered an employee to the Village for any purpose.  
 
H. Certifications:   
 
Employment Status: The Contractor certifies that if any of its personnel are an employee 
of the State of Illinois, they have permission from their employer to perform the service.   
 
Anti-Bribery: The Contractor certifies it is not barred under 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 
500/50-5(a) - (d) from contracting as a result of a conviction for or admission of bribery 
or attempted bribery of an officer or employee of the State of Illinois or any other state.   
 
Loan Default: If the Contractor is an individual, the Contractor certifies that he/she is not 
in default for a period of six months or more in an amount of $600 or more on the 
repayment of any educational loan guaranteed by the Illinois State Scholarship 
Commission made by an Illinois institution of higher education or any other loan made 
from public funds for the purpose of financing higher education (5 ILCS 385/3).  
 



Felony Certification: The Contractor certifies that it is not barred pursuant to 30 Illinois 
Compiled Statutes 500/50-10 from conducting business with the State of Illinois or any 
agency as a result of being convicted of a felony.   
 
Barred from Contracting:  The Contractor certifies that it has not been barred from 
contracting as a result of a conviction for bid-rigging or bid rotating under 720 Illinois 
Compiled Statutes 5/33E or similar law of another state.   
 
Drug Free Workplace:  The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with the Drug 
Free Workplace Act (30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 580) as of the effective date of this 
contract.  The Drug Free Workplace Act requires, in part, that Contractors, with 25 or 
more employees  certify and agree to take steps to ensure a drug free workplace by 
informing employees of the  dangers of drug abuse, of the availability of any treatment or 
assistance program, of  prohibited activities and of sanctions that will be imposed for 
violations; and that individuals  with contracts certify that they will not engage in the 
manufacture, distribution, dispensation,  possession, or use of a controlled substance in 
the performance of the contract.   
 
Non-Discrimination, Certification, and Equal Employment Opportunity: The Contractor 
agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 
Illinois Compiled Statutes 5), the U.S. Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, Section  504 of the U.S. Rehabilitation Act and the rules applicable to each. The 
equal opportunity clause of Section 750.10 of the Illinois Department of Human Rights 
Rules is specifically incorporated herein.  The Contractor shall comply with Executive 
Order 11246, entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 
11375, and as supplemented by U.S.  Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. 
Chapter 60).  The Contractor agrees to incorporate this clause into all subcontracts under 
this Contract.  
 
International Boycott:  The Contractor certifies that neither it nor any substantially owned 
affiliated company is participating or shall participate in an international boycott in 
violation of the provisions of the U.S. Export Administration Act of 1979 or the 
regulations of the U.S.  Department of Commerce promulgated under that Act (30 ILCS 
582).   
 
Record Retention and Audits:  If 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 500/20-65 requires the 
Contractor (and any subcontractors) to maintain, for a period of 3 years after the later of 
the date of completion of this Contract or the date of final payment under the Contract, all 
books and records relating to the performance of the Contract and necessary to support 
amounts charged to the Village under the Contract. The Contract and all books and 
records related to the Contract shall be available for review and audit by the Village and 
the Illinois Auditor General. If this Contract is funded from contract/grant funds provided 
by the U.S.  Government, the Contract, books, and records shall be available for review 
and audit by the Comptroller General of the U.S. and/or the Inspector General of the 
federal sponsoring agency. The Contractor agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to 
provide full access to all relevant materials.  



 
United States Resident Certification: (This certification must be included in all contracts 
involving personal services by non-resident aliens and foreign entities in accordance with 
requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Services for withholding and reporting 
federal income taxes.) The Contractor certifies that he/she is a:   x  United States Citizen  
___ Resident Alien  ___ Non-Resident Alien  The Internal Revenue Service requires that 
taxes be withheld on payments made to non  resident aliens for the performance of 
personal services at the rate of 30%.   
 
Tax Payer Certification :  Under penalties of perjury, the Contractor certifies that its 
Federal Tax Payer Identification Number or Social Security Number is (provided 
separately)  and is  doing business as a (check one):  ___ Individual  ___ Real  Estate  
Agent  ___ Sole  Proprietorship  ___ Government  Entity     ___ Partnership  ___ Tax 
Exempt Organization (IRC 501(a) only)   x   Corporation  ___ Not for Profit Corporation  
___ Trust or Estate  ___ Medical and Health Care Services Provider Corp.   
 
I. Indemnification:   
 
Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Village and Village’s agents, servants, 
and employees against all loss, damage, and expense which it  may sustain or for which it 
will become liable on account of injury to or death of persons, or  on account of damage 
to or destruction of property resulting from the performance of work  under this 
agreement by Contractor or its Subcontractors, or due to or arising in any manner  from 
the wrongful act or negligence of Contractor or its Subcontractors of any employee of  
any of them. In the event that the either party shall bring any suit, cause of action or 
counterclaim against the other party, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing 
party the cost and expenses incurred to answer and/or defend such action, including 
reasonable attorney fees and court costs.  In no event shall the either party indemnify any 
other party for the consequences of that party’s negligence, including failure to follow the 
ENGINEER’s recommendations. 
 
 J. Insurance:   
 
The ENGINEER agrees that it has either attached a copy of all required insurance 
certificates or that said insurance is not required due to the nature and extent of the types 
of services rendered hereunder. (Not applicable as having been previously supplied) 
 
K. Additional Terms or Modification: 
 
The terms of this agreement shall be further modified as provided on the attached 
Exhibits. Except for those terms included on the Exhibits, no additional terms are 
included as a part of this agreement. All prior understandings and agreements between 
the parties are merged into this agreement, and this agreement may not be modified orally 
or in any manner other than by an agreement in writing signed by both parties.  In the 
event that any provisions of this agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, 





ATTACHMENT A 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Agreement: These Standard Terms and Conditions, together with the Professional Services 
Agreement, constitute the entire integrated agreement between the OWNER and Engineering 
Enterprises, Inc. (EEI) (hereinafter “Agreement”), and take precedence over any other provisions 
between the Parties. These terms may be amended, but only if both parties consent in writing. 

Standard of Care: In providing services under this Agreement, the ENGINEER will 
endeavor to perform in a matter consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised 
by members of the same profession currently practicing under same circumstances in the same 
locality.  ENGINEER makes no other warranties, express or implied, written or oral under this 
Agreement or otherwise, in connection with ENGINEER’S service. 

Construction Engineering and Inspection:  The ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, 
control, or have authority over any contractor work, nor have authority over or be responsible for 
the means, methods, techniques sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any 
contractor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety of the 
site, nor for any failure of a contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to such 
contractor’s furnishing and performing of its work. 

The ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes 
responsibility for contractor’s failure to furnish and perform the work in accordance with the 
contract documents. 

The ENGINEER is not responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or 
supplies, or any of their agents or employees or any other person at the site or otherwise 
furnishing or performing any work. 

Shop drawing and submittal review by the ENGINEER shall apply to only the items in the 
submissions and only for the purpose of assessing if upon installation or incorporation in the 
project work they are generally consistent with the construction documents.  OWNER agrees that 
the contractor is solely responsible for the submissions and for compliance with the construction 
documents.  OWNER further agrees that the ENGINEER’S review and action in relation to these 
submissions shall not constitute the provision of means, methods, techniques, sequencing or 
procedures of construction or extend or safety programs or precautions.  The ENGINEER’S 
consideration of a component does not constitute acceptance of the assembled items. 

The ENGINEER’S site observation during construction shall be at the times agreed upon in the 
Project Scope.  Through standard, reasonable means the ENGINEER will become generally 
familiar with observable completed work.  If the ENGINEER observes completed work that is 
inconsistent with the construction documents, that information shall be communicated to the 
contractor and OWNER for them to address. 

 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

 

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs: ENGINEER’S opinion of probable construction 
costs represents ENGINEER’S best and reasonable judgment as a professional engineer. 
OWNER acknowledges that ENGINEER has no control over construction costs of contractor’s 
methods of determining pricing, or over competitive bidding by contractors, or of market 
conditions or changes thereto. ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or 
actual construction costs will not vary from ENGINEER’S opinion of probable construction 
costs. 

Copies of Documents & Electronic Compatibility: Copies of Documents that may be 
relied upon by OWNER are limited to the printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are 
signed or sealed by the ENGINEER. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or of 
other types that are furnished by ENGINEER to OWNER are only for convenience of OWNER. 
Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user's 
sole risk. When transferring documents in electronic media format, ENGINEER makes no 
representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents resulting 
from the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware 
differing from those used by ENGINEER at the beginning of the project. 

Changed Conditions: If, during the term of this Agreement, circumstances or conditions 
that were not originally contemplated by or known to the ENGINEER are revealed, to the extent 
that they affect the scope of services, compensation, schedule, allocation of risks, or other 
material terms of this Agreement, the ENGINEER may call for renegotiation of appropriate 
portions of this Agreement. The ENGINEER shall notify the OWNER of the changed conditions 
necessitating renegotiation, and the ENGINEER and the OWNER shall promptly and in good 
faith enter into renegotiation of this Agreement to address the changed conditions. If terms 
cannot be agreed to, the parties agree that either party has the absolute right to terminate this 
Agreement, in accordance with the termination provision hereof. 

Hazardous Conditions: OWNER represents to ENGINEER that to the best of its 
knowledge no Hazardous Conditions (environmental or otherwise) exist on the project site. If a 
Hazardous Condition is encountered or alleged, ENGINEER shall have the obligation to notify 
OWNER and, to the extent of applicable Laws and Regulations, appropriate governmental 
officials. It is acknowledged by both parties that ENGINEER's scope of services does not include 
any services related to a Hazardous Condition. In the event ENGINEER or any other party 
encounters a Hazardous Condition, ENGINEER may, at its option and without liability for 
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of the 
project affected thereby until OWNER: (i) retains appropriate specialist consultant(s) or 
contractor(s) to identify and, as appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous 
Condition; and (ii) warrants that the project site is in full compliance with applicable Laws and 
Regulations.  

Consequential Damages: Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, neither the OWNER nor the ENGINEER, their respective 
officers, directors, partners, employees, contractors, or subcontractors shall be liable to the other 
or shall make any claim for any incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of or 



ATTACHMENT A 

 

connected in any way to the Project or to this Agreement. This mutual waiver of consequential 
damages shall include, but is not limited to, loss of use, loss of profit, loss of business, loss of 
income, loss of reputation, or any other consequential damages that either party may have 
incurred from any cause of action including negligence, strict liability, breach of contract, and 
breach of strict or implied warranty. Both the OWNER and the ENGINEER shall require similar 
waivers of consequential damages protecting all the entities or persons named herein in all 
contracts and subcontracts with others involved in this project. 

Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated for convenience, without cause, upon 
fourteen (14) days written notice of either party.  In the event of termination, the ENGINEER 
shall prepare a final invoice and be due compensation as set forth in the Professional Services 
Agreement for all costs incurred through the date of termination. 

Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause upon giving the other party not less than 
seven (7) calendar days’ written notice for the following reasons: 

(a) Substantial failure by the other party to comply with or perform in accordance 
with the terms of the Agreement and through no fault of the terminating party; 

(b) Assignment of the Agreement or transfer of the project without the prior written 
consent of the other party; 

(c) Suspension of the project or the ENGINEER’S services by the OWNER for a 
period of greater than ninety (90) calendar days, consecutive or in the aggregate. 

(d) Material changes in the conditions under which this Agreement was entered into, 
the scope of services or the nature of the project, and the failure of the parties to 
reach agreement on the compensation and schedule adjustments necessitated by 
such changes. 

Payment of Invoices:  Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing. 
 
Third Party Beneficiaries: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual 
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the OWNER or the 
ENGINEER. The ENGINEER’S services under this Agreement are being performed solely and 
exclusively for the OWNER’S benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any claim against 
the ENGINEER because of this Agreement or the performance or nonperformance of services 
hereunder. The OWNER and ENGINEER agree to require a similar provision in all contracts 
with contractors, subcontractors, vendors and other entities involved in this Project to carry out 
the intent of this provision. 

Force Majeure: Each Party shall be excused from the performance of its obligations under 
this Agreement to the extent that such performance is prevented by force majeure (defined 
below) and the nonperforming party promptly provides notice of such prevention to the other 
party. Such excuse shall be continued so long as the condition constituting force majeure 
continues. The party affected by such force majeure also shall notify the other party of the 



ATTACHMENT A 

 

anticipated duration of such force majeure, any actions being taken to avoid or minimize its 
effect after such occurrence, and shall take reasonable efforts to remove the condition 
constituting such force majeure. For purposes of this Agreement, “force majeure” shall include 
conditions beyond the control of the parties, including an act of God, acts of terrorism, voluntary 
or involuntary compliance with any regulation, law or order of any government, war, acts of war 
(whether war be declared or not), labor strike or lock-out, civil commotion, epidemic, failure or 
default of public utilities or common carriers, destruction of production facilities or materials by 
fire, earthquake, storm or like catastrophe. The payment of invoices due and owing hereunder 
shall in no event be delayed by the payer because of a force majeure affecting the payer. 

Additional Terms or Modification:  All prior understandings and agreements between 
the parties are merged into this Agreement, and this Agreement may not be modified orally or in 
any manner other than by an Agreement in writing signed by both parties.  In the event that any 
provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions shall be valid and binding on the parties. 

Assignment: Neither party to this Agreement shall transfer or assign any rights or duties under 
or interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. Subcontracting 
normally contemplated by the ENGINEER shall not be considered an assignment for purposes of 
this Agreement. 

Waiver: A party’s waiver of, or the failure or delay in enforcing any provision of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of 
that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement. 

Attorney’s Fees: In the event of any action or proceeding brought by either party against the 
other under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all 
costs and expenses including without limitation the reasonable fees of its attorneys in such action 
or proceeding, including costs of appeal, if any, in such amount as the Court may adjudge 
reasonable. 

Fiduciary Duty:  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create, nor shall it be construed to 
create, a fiduciary duty owed to either party to the other party.  EEI makes no warranty, express 
or implied, as to its professional services rendered.   

Headings: The headings used in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience 
only, and in no way define, limit, enlarge, modify, explain or define the text thereof nor affect 
the construction or interpretation of this Agreement. 

 

 



 

 

 
Orchard Gateway Boulevard Roadway Improvements - Phase II  

Engineering Services 
 

Attachment B – Scope of Services 
 

 
The Village of North Aurora (Village) requires Phase II Engineering services for the Orchard Gateway 
Boulevard Roadway Improvements.  The Village has applied for and received STP-L Federal Funding 
through the Kane Kendall Council of Mayors (KKCOM).  A project location map can be found in Attachment 
E of this proposal. 
 
The scope of the project includes a new traffic signal and widening to accommodate new auxiliary lanes at the 
intersection of Orchard Gateway Boulevard and Hansen Boulevard.  Pavement rehabilitation and resurfacing, 
ADA improvements as necessary and spot curb and gutter and sidewalk removal and replacement as 
necessary on Orchard Gateway Boulevard from Orchard Road to Randall Road. 
 
In order to successfully complete this project, various items will need to be addressed during Phase II 
engineering for this project.  Our proposed scope of services will include the following: 
 
Design Engineering: 

 Project Management, Coordination and Meetings 
o Project Comment Review Meetings (3 Meetings – 1 at Preliminary Plans, 1 at Prefinal Plans 

and 1 at Initial Final Plans) 
o Project Management 
o Project Coordination 
o Project Scheduling 

 Plats, Legal Descriptions and Property Acquisition – It is estimated that three (3) parcels will 
require Right-of-Way, Permanent Easements (ComEd ROW) and Temporary Easements.  
Some parcels will have both Right-of-Way and Temporary Easements. 

o Calculations 
o Boundary Field Survey 
o Plat of Highways for 3 parcels  
o Legal Descriptions for 3 parcels 
o QC/QA 
o Staking Row 
o Title Commitments, Documents and Later Dates for 3 parcels (Mathewson Right-of Way 

Company) 
o Property Appraisals for 3 parcels (Mathewson Right-of Way Company) 
o Appraisal Review for 3 parcels (Mathewson Right-of Way Company) 
o Negotiations for 3 parcels (Mathewson Right-of Way Company) 
o Closings and Certification for 3 parcels (Mathewson Right-of Way Company) 

 Additional Topographic Survey and Data Collection 
o Additional topographic survey required at the first driveway east of Hansen Boulevard to 

ensure ADA compliance for the sidewalk and driveway slopes on the south side of Orchard 
Gateway Boulevard 

o Additional survey throughout the project in order to complete the Phase II design. 
o Field verification of survey 

 PESA Validation, PSI and CCDD Coordination 
o Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment (PESA) Validation. (Huff and Huff) 



Orchard Gateway Boulevard Roadway Improvements - Phase II 
Village of North Aurora 
Professional Services Agreement 
Attachment B - Scope of Services 

 

 
 

o Preliminary Site Investigation (PSI) (Huff and Huff) 
o CCDD Documentation – LPC 662/663. (Huff and Huff) 
o Coordination of PESA Validation, PSI and CCDD tasks. (EEI) 

 Utility, KDOT and IDOT Coordination 
o Perform design J.U.L.I.E. in order to obtain the most up-to-date atlases from the utilities that 

have facilities within the project limits. 
o IDOT Phase II Kickoff Meeting 
o IDOT Coordination throughout Project Design 
o Obtain, review and inventory existing utility information to identify potential conflicts. 
o KDOT coordination regarding traffic signal interconnect for the intersections along Orchard 

Gateway Boulevard at Orchard Road, Hansen Boulevard and Towne Center Drive 
o KDOT coordination regarding project design 
o Coordination with all utilities as necessary 
o Submit Pre-Final, Initial Final and Final Plans to all utilities and IDOT. 

 Kane County Stormwater Permit 
o Completing all applications required for the Kane County Stormwater Permit 
o Providing any exhibits required for Kane County Stormwater Permit 

 Prefinal Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates (90% Complete) 
o Coordinate documentation for CCDD Management of soils. (Huff and Huff)  
o Develop Prefinal Plans including the following: 

 Title Sheet 
 General Notes 
 Summary of Quantities 
 Schedule of Earthwork Quantities 
 Existing and Proposed Typical Sections  
 Alignment, Ties and Benchmarks 
 Plan and Profile (1"=20') 
 ADA Details 
 Traffic Control Typical Sections 
 Suggested Construction Staging Plans 
 Erosion and Sediment Control Plans (1"=20') 
 Drainage and Utilities Plan and Profiles (1"=20') 
 Intersection Paving Plans (1"=10') 
 Pavement Marking, Signing & Landscaping Plan (1"=20') 
 Traffic Signal Plans 
 Cable Plans, Sequence of Operations and Schedule of Quantities for Traffic Signals 
 Traffic Signal Interconnect Plans and Interconnect Schematics 
 Traffic Signal Details 
 Project Details 
 Village Details 
 IDOT District One and IDOT Details 
 Cross Sections (@ 50 ft stations, 1"=10' horizontal, 1"=5' vertical) 

o Prepare bid package, and ancillary documents, including: 
 BLR12200 – Local Public Agency Formal Contract Proposal 
 BLR12200 A – Schedule of Prices 
 BLR12230 - Bid Bond Form 



Orchard Gateway Boulevard Roadway Improvements - Phase II 
Village of North Aurora 
Professional Services Agreement 
Attachment B - Scope of Services 

 

 
 

 BC57 - Affidavit of Availability 
 Index for Supplemental Specifications and Recurring Special Provisions 
 Check Sheet for Recurring Special Provisions 
 BLR11310 – Special Provisions 
 Bureau of Design and Environment Special Provisions/Check sheets 
 Prevailing Wage 

o Special Provisions in IDOT format 
 Project Special Provisions 
 Local Roads Special Provisions 
 District One Special Provisions 
 Village Provisions & Details 
 Status of Utilities 

o Calculate Quantities and prepare prefinal Cost Estimate 
 Quantities to be organized by funding source (if necessary) 
 BDE 213 – Estimate of Cost 

o Prepare BDE220A – Estimate of Time Required 
o Perform QC/QA review of prefinal plans, specifications, documents and cost estimate 
o Submit prefinal plans to the utility companies 
o Submit prefinal plans, estimate of cost, estimate of time and special provisions to the Village 

and IDOT for review. 
o Coordinate with the Village Staff on the final scope of improvements 

 Initial Final Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates 
o Prepare and provide disposition of prefinal plan comments to the Village and IDOT. 
o Update plans based on comments received from Village and IDOT on Prefinal Plans 
o Update summary of quantities, estimate of cost and estimate of time for initial final plan 

submittal. 
o Update special provisions for initial final plan submittal. 
o Perform QC/QA review of initial final plans, documents and cost estimate. 
o Submit initial final plans, estimate of cost, estimate of time and special provisions to IDOT, 

Village and utility companies for review. 
 Final Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates 

o Prepare and provide disposition of initial final plan comments to the Village and IDOT. 
o Update plans based on comments received on initial final plans. 
o Update summary of quantities, estimate of cost and estimate of time for final submittal. 
o Update special provisions for final submittal. 
o Perform QC/QA review of final plans, documents and cost estimate. 
o Submit final plans, estimate of cost, estimate of time and special provisions to IDOT, Village 

and utility companies. 
o After approval of the plans and specifications by the Village and IDOT, EEI shall provide 

IDOT with an electronic submittal for the contract letting as per IDOT requirements. 
 Bidding Support and Shop Drawing Review 

o Review shop drawings for traffic signal components. 
o Answer contractor questions during bidding. 

 
 
 



Orchard Gateway Boulevard Roadway Improvements - Phase II 
Village of North Aurora 
Professional Services Agreement 
Attachment B - Scope of Services 

 

 
 

Items not included in the scope: 
 Redesign of existing traffic signal systems and replacement of existing traffic signal equipment at the 

intersections of Orchard Gateway Boulevard and Orchard Road and Orchard Gateway Boulevard and 
Towne Center Drive.  Interconnect will be provided between these intersections. 

 Detour Plan 
 Design services by a landscape architect.  Only basic landscaping will be provided. 
 Design of private signs 
 Any special aesthetic features or treatments 
 Construction (Phase III) Engineering 
 Bidding, Letting and Contracting.  This will be performed by IDOT. 
 Topographic survey for driveways and roadways on the south side of Orchard Gateway Boulevard 

east of the first driveway east of Hansen Boulevard. 
 ADA design of the sidewalk and ADA ramps at all of the driveways and roadways on the south side 

of Orchard Gateway Boulevard east of the first driveway east of Hansen Boulevard.  



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 C
: 

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 L
E

V
E

L
 O

F
 E

F
F

O
R

T
 A

N
D

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

D
 C

O
S

T
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

   
   

   
  

 

C
LI

E
N

T
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

V
ill

ag
e 

of
 N

or
th

 A
ur

or
a

N
O

22
09

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 T
IT

LE
D

A
T

E
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
O

rc
ha

rd
 G

at
ew

ay
 B

ou
le

va
rd

 R
oa

dw
ay

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

-P
ha

se
 II

A
D

M
IN

R
O

LE
P

IC
S

P
M

S
P

E
 2

P
E

S
P

M
P

M
S

P
T

 2
S

P
T

 2
S

P
T

A
D

M
R

A
T

E
$2

28
$2

16
$1

83
$1

54
$2

16
$1

94
$1

59
$1

59
$1

49
$7

0
D

E
S

IG
N

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G

2.
1

2
   

   
   

   
80

   
   

   
 

16
   

   
   

 
4

   
   

   
   

2
   

   
   

   
10

4
   

   
 

21
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

2.
2

3
   

   
   

   
40

   
   

   
 

16
   

   
   

 
59

   
   

   
10

,9
52

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2.
3

2
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

2
   

   
   

   
18

   
   

   
 

10
   

   
   

 
34

   
   

   
6,

58
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

2.
4

16
   

   
   

 
8

   
   

   
   

8
   

   
   

   
4

   
   

   
   

8
   

   
   

   
44

   
   

   
7,

98
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

2.
5

4
   

   
   

   
8

   
   

   
   

8
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

22
   

   
   

3,
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
6

4
   

   
   

   
8

   
   

   
   

16
   

   
   

 
4

   
   

   
   

8
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

42
   

   
   

6,
76

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
7

2
   

   
   

   
40

   
   

   
 

11
8

   
   

  
21

2
   

   
  

20
   

   
   

 
11

2
   

   
  

50
4

   
   

 
83

,2
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2.
8

2
   

   
   

   
24

   
   

   
 

60
   

   
   

 
12

0
   

   
  

16
   

   
   

 
76

   
   

   
 

29
8

   
   

 
48

,9
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2.
9

8
   

   
   

   
16

   
   

   
 

32
   

   
   

 
8

   
   

   
   

2
   

   
   

   
66

   
   

   
10

,9
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2.
10

2
   

   
   

   
16

   
   

   
 

8
   

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

28
   

   
   

4,
73

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 T
as

k
 S

u
b

to
ta

l:
6

   
   

   
   

18
0

   
   

  
25

2
   

   
  

40
6

   
   

  
21

   
   

   
 

40
   

   
   

 
26

   
   

   
 

44
   

   
   

 
21

6
   

   
  

10
   

   
   

 
1,

20
1

   
 

20
5

,1
98

$ 
   

   
   

   

6
   

   
   

   
18

0
   

   
  

25
2

   
   

  
40

6
   

   
  

21
   

   
   

 
40

   
   

   
 

26
   

   
   

 
44

   
   

   
 

21
6

   
   

  
10

   
   

   
 

1,
20

1
   

 
20

5,
19

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

D
IR

E
C

T
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 

P
ri

nt
in

g/
S

ca
nn

in
g 

=
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
H

uf
f 

&
 H

uf
f 

(C
C

D
D

 &
 P

S
I)

 =
26

,3
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

M
at

he
w

so
n 

(R
O

W
 A

cq
ui

s.
) 

=
63

,8
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

D
IR

E
C

T
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 =

90
,6

93
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

L
A

B
O

R
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

E
E

I E
ng

in
. E

xp
en

se
s 

=
 

14
8,

88
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
E

E
I S

ur
ve

y 
E

xp
e

ns
es

 =
 

16
,4

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
E

E
I C

A
D

 E
xp

en
se

s 
=

 
39

,1
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

E
E

I A
dm

in
. E

xp
e

ns
es

 =
 

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
O

T
A

L
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

 =
20

5
,1

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
S

T
S

29
5

,8
91

$ 
   

   
   

   

52
 W

he
e

le
r 

R
oa

d,
 S

ug
a

r 
G

ro
ve

, I
L 

 6
0

55
4

  T
el

: 6
30

.4
66

.6
70

0 
 F

ax
: 6

30
.4

66
.6

70
1

  w
w

w
.e

ei
w

eb
.c

om

T
A

S
K

 
N

O
.

T
A

S
K

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
H

O
U

R
S

B
id

di
ng

 S
up

p
or

t a
n

d 
S

ho
p 

D
ra

w
in

g 
R

ev
ie

w

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 T
O

T
A

L
:

P
re

fin
al

 P
la

ns
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 E
st

im
at

es

In
iti

al
 F

in
al

 P
la

ns
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 E
st

im
at

es

F
in

al
 P

la
ns

, S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 a

n
d 

E
st

im
at

es

P
la

ts
, L

eg
al

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
A

cq
u

is
iti

on

A
dd

iti
on

al
 T

op
og

ra
ph

ic
 S

ur
ve

y 
an

d
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

U
til

ity
, K

D
O

T
 a

nd
 ID

O
T

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n

K
an

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 P

er
m

it

JW
C

10
/2

4/
22

C
O

S
T

P
E

S
A

 V
al

id
at

io
n,

 P
S

I a
nd

 C
C

D
D

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
M

ee
tin

gs

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
C

A
D

 D
R

A
F

T
IN

G



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 D
: 

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

C
LI

E
N

T
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

V
ill

ag
e 

of
 N

or
th

 A
ur

or
a

N
O

22
0

9
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 T

IT
LE

D
A

T
E

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

O
rc

ha
rd

 G
at

ew
ay

 B
ou

le
va

rd
 R

oa
dw

ay
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
-P

ha
se

 II
JW

C

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

JA
N

F
E

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

D
E

S
IG

N
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

2.
1

2.
2

2.
3

2.
4

2.
5

2.
6

2.
7

2.
8

2.
9

2.
10

 5
2 

W
he

e
le

r 
R

oa
d 

 S
ug

a
r 

G
ro

ve
, I

L 
 6

05
54

  T
el

: 6
30

.4
66

.6
70

0 
 F

ax
: 6

30
.4

66
.6

70
1

  w
w

w
.e

ei
w

eb
.c

om

P
ro

je
ct

 L
et

tin
g

B
id

di
ng

 S
up

p
or

t a
n

d 
S

ho
p 

D
ra

w
in

g 
R

ev
ie

w

T
A

S
K

 
N

O
.

T
A

S
K

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

K
an

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 P

er
m

it

P
la

ts
, L

eg
al

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
A

cq
u

is
iti

on
A

dd
iti

on
al

 T
op

og
ra

ph
ic

 S
ur

ve
y 

an
d

 D
at

a 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n

F
in

al
 P

la
ns

, S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 a

n
d 

E
st

im
at

es

20
24

9/
29

/2
2

U
til

ity
, K

D
O

T
 a

nd
 ID

O
T

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n

P
re

fin
al

 P
la

ns
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 E
st

im
at

es
In

iti
al

 F
in

al
 P

la
ns

, S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 E

st
im

at
es

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
M

ee
tin

gs

20
22

P
E

S
A

 V
al

id
at

io
n,

 P
S

I a
nd

 C
C

D
D

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n

20
23



Ga
rd

en
W

ay

Prair
ie Ct

Fo
xh

ill
Ln

Miller Dr

Hidden
Creek Ln

Fie
lds

ide

Ln

HearthstoneLn

Orchard Rd

Buckthorn Dr

East
Victoria Cir

White
Oak 

Dr

Pi
ne

hil
lDrCreekside Ct

Foxhill Ct

Ice Cr
ea

m 
Dr

I-88
W

To
Orch

ard
Rd

I-8
8E

 Fr
om

Or
ch

ard
 G

ate
wa

y B
lvd

Randall Rd

WindstoneDr
88

fro
m

ard

Rd

-88E to
ard RHansen Blvd

Deerpath Rd

Se
qu

oia
 D

r

Ai
rp

or
t R

d

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

En
te

rp
ris

es
, I

nc
.

52
 W

he
ele

r R
oa

d
Su

ga
r G

rov
e, 

Illi
no

is 6
05

54
(63

0)
46

6-6
70

0
ww

w.
ee

iwe
b.c

om

DA
TE

:

PR
OJ

EC
T N

O.
:

FIL
E:

PA
TH

:

BY
:

No
ve

mb
er 

20
20

NO
19

02

NO
19

02
_O

rch
ard

 G
atw

ay
 Bl

vd
.M

XD
H:

\G
IS

\P
UB

LIC
\N

OR
TH

 A
UR

OR
A\

MJ
T

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f N
or

th
 A

ur
or

a
25

 Ea
st 

Sta
te 

Str
ee

t
No

rth
 Au

ror
a, 

IL 
 60

54
2

63
0-8

97
-82

28
³

OR
CH

AR
D 

GA
TE

W
AY

 BO
UL

EV
AR

D 
RO

AD
W

AY
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 

AT
TA

CH
ME

NT
 E

PR
OJ

EC
T L

OC
AT

IO
N 

MA
P

1,0
00

0
1,0

00
50

0
Fe

et

Pr
oje

ct 
Lim

its

b

b

b

b

A

B

Le
ge

nd Ne
w 

Tra
ffic

 Si
gn

al
Ex

ist
ing

 G
IS 

RO
W

A.
PA

VE
M

EN
T 

R
EH

A
B

IL
IT

A
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 R

ES
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
N

EW
 T

R
A

FF
IC

 S
IG

N
A

L
N

EW
 A

U
XI

LI
A

R
Y 

LA
N

ES
 A

N
D

 W
ID

EN
IN

G
SP

OT
 C

UR
B 

AN
D OGU

TT
ER

 A
ND

 SI
DE

WA
LK

 R
EM

OV
AL

 AN
D 

RE
PL

AC
EM

EN
T

B.
PA

VE
M

EN
T 

R
EH

A
B

IL
IT

A
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 R

ES
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
 

d

  S
PO

T C
U

R
B

 A
N

D
 G

UT
TE

R 
RE

MO
VA

L A
ND

 R
EP

LA
CE

ME
NT

 

b

b



Standard Schedule of Charges 

January 1, 2022 

EMPLOYEE DESIGNATION CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATE 

  Senior Principal E-4 $228.00 

  Principal E-3 $223.00 

  Senior Project Manager E-2 $216.00 

  Project Manager E-1 $194.00 

  Senior Project Engineer/Planner/Surveyor II P-6 $183.00 

  Senior Project Engineer/Planner/Surveyor I   P-5 $170.00 

  Project Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-4 $154.00 

  Senior Engineer/Planner/Surveyor  P-3 $142.00 

  Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-2 $129.00 

  Associate Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-1 $116.00 

  Senior Project Technician II T-6 $159.00 

  Senior Project Technician I T-5 $149.00 

  Project Technician T-4 $139.00 

  Senior Technician  T-3 $129.00 

  Technician T-2 $116.00 

 Associate Technician T-1 $102.00 

  GIS Technician G-1         $105.00 

  Engineering/Land Surveying Intern I-1 $  79.00 

  Administrative Assistant A-3 $  70.00    

VEHICLES. REPROGRAPHICS, DIRECT COSTS, DRONE AND EXPERT TESTIMONY 
  Vehicle for Construction Observation $  15.00 
  In-House Scanning and Reproduction $0.25/Sq. Ft. (Black & White) 

$1.00/Sq. Ft. (Color) 
  Reimbursable Expenses (Direct Costs)  Cost 
  Services by Others (Direct Costs)              Cost + 10%  
  Unmanned Aircraft System / Unmanned Aerial Vehicle / Drone $ 206.00  
  Expert Testimony $ 258.00 

ATTACHMENT F



An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/V/H 

September 20, 2022  via email: JCwynar@eeiweb.com

Mr. Joseph W. Cwynar, P.E. 
Senior Project Manager 
Engineering Enterprises, Inc. 
52 Wheeler Road 
Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554 

Re: Phase II Environmental Services – Special Waste (PSI/CCDD) 
Orchard Gate Boulevard Improvements – Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Proposal No.: 81.P013097.23 

Dear Mr. Cwynar: 

Huff & Huff, Inc., a subsidiary of GZA, Inc. (GZA) is pleased to submit this proposal to 
Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (Client) for Phase II engineering services for the proposed 
improvements along Orchard Gate Boulevard in the Village of North Aurora, IL (Village). 
Specifically, Client has requested environmental services to assist with completion of the 
proposed roadway improvement project including a Preliminary Site Investigation (PSI), 
including documentation for consideration of acceptance of eligible materials at a clean 
construction or demolition debris (CCDD) facility. This proposal presents our project approach, 
the scope of services, cost, and schedule for completing the project.   

1. INTRODUCTION

We understand the Village applied for STP-L Federal Funding for this project (through KKCOM) 
and was selected to the recommended program list for the Roadways and Intersections 
category for FY2024.  The Village of North Aurora is planning roadway improvements to 
Orchard Gateway Boulevard between Orchard Road and North Randall Road including Area A 
with the addition of a traffic signal at the intersection of Orchard Gateway Boulevard and 
Hansen Boulevard; widening Orchard Gateway to add auxiliary lanes for the intersection of 
Orchard Gateway Boulevard and Hansen Boulevard; and Area B including performing a Local 
Agency Functional Overlay (LAFO resurfacing) for Orchard Gateway from Orchard Road to 
North Randall Road; and also completing spot curb and sidewalk removal and replacement 
throughout the corridor. 

Phase I environmental studies included completion of a tree survey in area of proposed 
widening only and for entire corridor included wetland delineation (May 11, 2021) and 
reporting (July 20, 201) with no impacts identified, a Preliminary Environmental Site 
Assessment (PESA), with one site identified as having a recognized environmental condition 
(REC) and/or as a potentially impacted property (PIP). 

It should be noted that historically IDOT has indicated PESAs require validation once 180 days 
have lapsed and a new PESA is required after 3 years have lapsed. However we understand 
they are currently validating PESAs every three (3) years, up to two (2) times, though it should 
be noted that is BDE and BLRS may still seek PESA Validations after 180 days have lapsed. 
Therefore, we have included a task for a PESA validation in case it becomes necessary to 
complete this task. 

ATTACHMENT G



September 20, 2022 
81.P013097.23 Ph II Environmental Services (PSI/CCDD)  

Orchard Gate Boulevard Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 2 

P:\FY2023\P013 - Transportation\EEI\North Aurora\Orchard Gateway\81.P013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II.docx

Proactive by Design

2.  SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task 1 – Preliminary Site Investigation (PSI) /CCDD 

It is anticipated that up to two (2) days of field effort will be required with up to five (5) soil borings within Area A with 
depths of five (5) to ten (10) feet depending on improvements to be performed with a drilling subcontractor and traffic 
control services (1 day) and up to twelve (12) hand auger soil borings within Area B to depths of two (2) feet deep, for a 
total of up to seventeen (17) total borings.   The borings will be advanced and soil samples collected for laboratory analysis 
to address sites identified as RECs/PIPs and for full project coverage of non-REC/PIP for soil disposal considerations, 
specifically at locations identified for proposed excavation. The depths of the soil borings will be dependent upon design 
details to account for depths of proposed disturbance. Consultant will finalize depths of planned borings prior to 
mobilization consistent with project plans as provided by Client, in conjunction with PESA findings. Currently it is estimated 
that borings will be advanced to depths ranging approximately 4 to 10 feet below ground surface. Samples will be collected 
in 2 to 5-foot intervals for field screening and select samples prepared for laboratory analysis as discussed below.  

A. Soil Borings and Soil Sampling 

It is anticipated that two (2) days of field effort will be required with up to seventeen (17) borings completed along the 
Project Corridor. The borings will be advanced and soil samples collected for laboratory analysis to address the PIPs/RECs 
for soil disposal considerations, specifically at locations identified for proposed excavations with up to one (1) sample per 
boring submitted for laboratory analysis.  

B. Analytical 

A total of seventeen (17) soil boring locations are proposed and we anticipate collecting one (1) sample for laboratory 
analysis from each boring. Up to twelve (12) of the soil samples will be analyzed for the contaminants of concern (COCs) 
per IDOT protocol, which include: 

 22 Total metals (Target Analyte List (TAL) minus Aluminum) 

 SPLP/TCLP Metals (8 RCRA and Be, Co, Cu, Fe, Mn, Ni, and Zn) 

 Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) 

 Semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs) 

 Soil pH 

The remaining five (5) soil borings are expected to only have soi pH analyzed. 

C. PSI Report Preparation 

A report summarizing the results of the soil sample collection activities and analytical results will be prepared.  This 
document will present information pertinent for the bidding documents regarding conditions of soils tested, handling and 
final disposition considerations. 



September 20, 2022 
81.P013097.23 Ph II Environmental Services (PSI/CCDD)  

Orchard Gate Boulevard Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 3 

P:\FY2023\P013 - Transportation\EEI\North Aurora\Orchard Gateway\81.P013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II.docx

Proactive by DesignD. CCDD (LPC-Form) Documentation 

The soil sample results will be compared to the Maximum Allowable Concentrations (MACs) associated with CCDD facility 
acceptance, including the soil pH range of 6.25 to 9.0. If results achieve the MAC values, GZA will prepare the LPC-663 
document that will be signed/stamped by the GZA. Any locations that do not achieve the MACs (including soil pH range) 
will be identified as exclusion zones, not acceptable for CCDD facility disposal. 

Task 2 – PESA Validation (if necessary) 

The previously completed PESA, dated July 30, 2021, will be updated within six months of the anticipated letting date to 
assess the current site conditions, as/if necessary. We encourage Client to contact their IDOT project manager associated 
with the project to ensure we complete this task if necessary.   

The PESA Update will include a new database search and include a site visit to assess current conditions.  For identifying 
new PIPs or confirming previously identified PIPs, the PESA Update process will follow general protocols contained within: 

 A Manual for Conducting Preliminary Environmental Site Assessments for Illinois Department of 
Transportation (IDOT) Highway Projects (Erdmann et al., 2012) 

 ASTM International (ASTM) standard 1527-13  

 The IDOTs Bureau of Design and Environment (BDE) Procedure Memorandum Number 10-07, Special Waste 
Procedures.  This memo was incorporated into Chapter 27-3 of the IDOT BDE Manual in June 2012. 

 IDOT Bureau of Local Roads and Streets (BLRS) Manual, Chapter 20-12, Special Waste, July 2013. 

 Public Act 96-1416 

 Clean Construction or Demolition Debris Fill Operations (CCDD) and Uncontaminated Soil Fill Operations: 
Amendments to 35 Illinois Administrative Code 1100.  Effective on August 27, 2012. 

A.  Historical Research 
The site's historical land use/ownership record will be developed from review of the previously completed PESA. 

B.  Site Evaluation 
Current environmental features and conditions of sites adjacent to the right-of-way/project area (local, non-IDOT 
jurisdiction) will be evaluated. A site walkover of potential right-of-way/project areas designated for excavation and/or 
acquisition will be conducted for first-hand evaluation of current environmental conditions within the project limits.  All 
of the features and conditions listed above will be investigated and, as appropriate, documented in photographs.  The 
land-use and housekeeping practices of adjacent properties also will be evaluated in accordance with ASTM protocols. 

C.  Records Review 
A records review will be conducted to determine potential environmental concerns within the study area.  It will include 
a search of standard state and federal environmental record databases in accordance with the specifications of ASTM 
standards.  This search is based on the outline of the study area. Specifically, Consultant will search each database to 
identify any potential sources requiring further investigation.  As appropriate, Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) requests 
will be filed with the IEPA to obtain additional data pertaining to identified sites.   

D.  Report Preparation 
One letter report summarizing the results of the evaluation will be prepared. The summary will reference the previous 
PESA and identify PIPs.  Figures identifying the revised project area and will be included in the letter report. 



September 20, 2022 
81.P013097.23 Ph II Environmental Services (PSI/CCDD)  

Orchard Gate Boulevard Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 4 

P:\FY2023\P013 - Transportation\EEI\North Aurora\Orchard Gateway\81.P013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II.docx

Proactive by Design

Task 3 – Project Administration  

Time under this task includes project administration and management activities that include cost and schedule tracking, 
coordination with Client on authorized activities, memo production and other in-house management activities, and 
project closeout. This task includes preparing a Health and Safety Plan as appropriate for the project and tasks. 

Task 4 – QA/QC

Time under this task includes QA/QC time for the reports as described above.   

2. LEVEL OF EFFORT AND SCHEDULE 

The PSI/CCDD scope will require approximately 8 weeks to complete and will commence within 2 days of the notice to 
proceed from the Client.   

3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

CONDITIONS OF ENGAGEMENT
The conditions of engagement are described in the attached Terms and Conditions for Professional Services.  GZA’s report 
will be prepared on behalf of and for the exclusive use of Client.  Client acknowledges and agrees that the report and the 
findings in the report shall not, in whole or in part, be disseminated or conveyed to any other party, or used or relied upon 
by any other party, in whole or in part, except for the specific purpose and to the specific parties alluded to above, without 
the written consent of GZA.  GZA would be pleased to discuss the conditions associated with any additional dissemination, 
use, or reliance by other parties. 

ACCEPTANCE

This agreement may be accepted by signing in the appropriate space below and returning one complete copy to GZA.  
Issuance of a Purchase Order implicitly acknowledges acceptance of this proposal.  This proposal is valid for a period of 30 
days from the date of issue.  

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal.  Please feel free to contact the undersigned at (630) 684-9100 
with any questions.    

Very truly yours, 

Huff & Huff, Inc. 

Jeremy J. Reynolds, P.G. 
Associate Principal 
Attachments: Terms and Conditions 



September 20, 2022 
81.P013097.23 Ph II Environmental Services (PSI/CCDD)  

Orchard Gate Boulevard Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 5 

P:\FY2023\P013 - Transportation\EEI\North Aurora\Orchard Gateway\81.P013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II.docx

Proactive by Design

This Proposal for Services, Schedule of Fees and Terms and Conditions for Professional Services are hereby accepted and 
executed by a duly authorized signatory, who by execution hereof, warrants that he/she has full authority to act for, in 
the name, and on behalf of . 

By:    Title:    

Printed/Typed Name:    Date:    

The Proposal for Services, Schedule of Fees and Terms and Conditions for Professional Services may be executed in two 
or more counterparts, each of which together shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument.  In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission or by an e-mail delivery 
of a document in “.pdf” format, each such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party executing the 
document, or on whose behalf each document is executed, with the same force and effect as if each such facsimile or 
“.pdf” signature were an original thereof. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Including Site Investigation, Remediation,  
Geotechnical, Construction, And Testing  

© 2022 by GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc. 

These Terms and Conditions, together with GZA’s Proposal, make up the Agreement between GZA and you, Client, named in the attached 

proposal. 

BEFORE SIGNING THE PROPOSAL, BE SURE YOU READ AND UNDERSTAND THE PARAGRAPHS ENTITLED "INDEMNIFICATION” AND 

"LIMITATION OF REMEDIES" WHICH DEAL WITH THE ALLOCATION OF RISK BETWEEN YOU AND GZA. 

1.  Services.  GZA will perform the services set forth in its Proposal and any amendments or change orders authorized by you.  Any request 

or direction from you that would require extra work or additional time for performance or would result in an increase in GZA's costs will be the 

subject of a negotiated amendment or change order. 

2.  Standard of Care; Warranties.  

a. GZA will perform the services with the degree of skill and care ordinarily exercised by qualified professionals performing the same type of 

services at the same time under similar conditions in the same or similar locality.   

b. GZA warrants that its construction services will be of good quality, free of faults and defects and in conformance with the Proposal.  

c. EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN SUBSECTIONS 2a AND 2b, ABOVE, NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTY 

OF MARKETABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, IS MADE OR INTENDED BY GZA’S PROPOSAL OR BY ANY OF GZA’S 

ORAL OR WRITTEN REPORTS.

d. GZA assigns to you any manufacturers' warranties of equipment or materials purchased from others, to the extent they are assignable, 

and your sole recourse will be against the manufacturer.  Full risk of loss of materials and equipment will pass to you upon delivery to the Site, 

and you will be responsible for insuring and otherwise protecting them against theft and damage. 

3.  Payment.



September 20, 2022 
81.P013097.23 Ph II Environmental Services (PSI/CCDD)  

Orchard Gate Boulevard Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 6 

P:\FY2023\P013 - Transportation\EEI\North Aurora\Orchard Gateway\81.P013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II.docx

Proactive by Designa. Except as otherwise stated in the Proposal, you will compensate GZA for the services at the rates set forth in the applicable Proposal, 

amendment or change order; reimburse its expenses, which will include a communication fee calculated as a percentage of labor invoiced; and 

pay any sales or similar taxes thereon.  

b. Any retainer specified in GZA’s Proposal shall be due prior to the start of services and will be applied to the final invoice for services. 

c. GZA will submit invoices periodically, and payment will be due within 20 days from invoice date.    Overdue payments will bear interest at 

1½ percent per month or, if lower, the maximum lawful rate.  GZA may terminate its services upon 10 days' written notice anytime your payment 

is overdue on this or any other project and you will pay for all services through termination, plus termination costs.  You will reimburse GZA's 

costs of collecting overdue invoices, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 

4.  Your Responsibilities.   

a. Except as otherwise agreed, you will secure the approvals, permits, licenses and consents necessary for performance of the services. If 

you are the owner or operator of the Site, you will provide GZA with all documents, plans, information concerning underground structures 

(including but not limited to utilities, conduits, pipes, and tanks), information related to hazardous materials or other environmental or 

geotechnical conditions at the Site and other information that may be pertinent to the services or, if you are not the owner or operator of the 

Site, you agree to make reasonable efforts to obtain these same documents and provide them to GZA.  Unless otherwise indicated in writing, 

GZA will be entitled to rely on documents and information you provide. 

b. If you use the services of a construction manager at the Site, you agree to use best and reasonable efforts to include in your 

agreement(s) with the construction contractor provisions obligating the latter: 

(i) to indemnify and hold harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by law, you and GZA, its officers, employees and principals, for or on 

account of any claims, liabilities, costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to the design or implementation of 

construction means, methods, procedures, techniques, and sequences of construction, including safety precautions or programs, of the 

contractor, or any of its subcontractors or any engineer engaged by it; 

(ii) to name you and GZA as additional insureds under general liability and builder's risk insurance coverages maintained by the contractor, 

or any of its subcontractors; and  

(iii) to require that all of its subcontractors agree and be bound to the obligations set forth in (i) and (ii) above. 

c. In the event that you are unable to secure such provisions in the agreement(s) with the construction contractor, you shall promptly 

notify GZA and GZA shall have the opportunity to negotiate with you reasonable substitute risk allocation and insurance indemnities and 

protections. 

5.  Right of Entry; Site Restoration.  You grant GZA and its subcontractor(s) permission to enter the Site to perform the services.  If you do 

not own the Site, you represent and warrant that the owner has granted permission for GZA to enter the Site and perform the services; you will 

provide reasonable verification on request; and you will indemnify GZA for any claims by the Site owner related to alleged trespass by GZA or 

its subcontractors. GZA will exercise reasonable care to limit damage to landscaping, paving, systems and structures at the Site that may occur 

and you agree to compensate GZA for any restoration it is asked to perform, unless otherwise indicated in the Proposal. 

6. Underground Facilities.  GZA's only responsibility under this Section will be to provide proper notification to the applicable state utility 

"Call-Before-You-Dig" program. You further agree to assume responsibility for and to defend, indemnify and hold harmless GZA with respect 

to personal injury and property damages due to GZA's interference with subterranean structures including but not limited to utilities, conduits, 

pipes, and tanks: 

(i) that are not correctly shown on any plans and information you or governmental authorities provide to GZA; or 

(ii) that are not correctly marked by the appropriate utility.  

7. Reliance.  The services, information, and other data furnished by you shall be at your expense, and GZA may rely upon all information 

and data that you furnish, including the accuracy and completeness thereof.  You acknowledge that the quality of the services provided by 

GZA is directly related to the accuracy and completeness of the information and data that you furnish to GZA. GZA’s REPORTS ARE 



September 20, 2022 
81.P013097.23 Ph II Environmental Services (PSI/CCDD)  

Orchard Gate Boulevard Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 7 

P:\FY2023\P013 - Transportation\EEI\North Aurora\Orchard Gateway\81.P013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II.docx

Proactive by DesignPREPARED FOR AND MADE AVAILABLE FOR YOUR SOLE USE. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT USE OF OR RELIANCE 

UPON THE REPORT OR THE FINDINGS IN THE REPORT BY ANY OTHER PARTY, OR FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT OR PURPOSE, 

SHALL BE AT YOUR OR SUCH OTHER PARTY’S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT ANY LIABILITY TO GZA. 

8. Lab Tests and Samples.  GZA is entitled to rely on the results of laboratory tests using generally accepted methodologies.  GZA may 

dispose of samples in accordance with applicable laws 30 days after submitting test results to you unless you request in writing for them to be 

returned to you or to be held longer, in which case you will compensate GZA for storage and/or shipping beyond 30 days. 

9. GZA Professionals.  GZA employees or consultants may act as licensed, certified or registered professionals (including but not limited to 

Professional Engineers, Licensed Site or Environmental Professionals, or Certified Industrial Hygienists collectively referred to in this section as 

“GZA Professionals”) whose duties may include the rendering of independent professional opinions. You acknowledge that a federal, state or 

local agency or other third party may audit the services of GZA or other contractor/consultant(s), which audit may require additional services, 

even though GZA and such GZA Professionals have each performed such services in accordance with the standard of care set forth herein. You 

agree to compensate GZA for all services performed in response to such an audit, or to meet additional requirements resulting from such an 

audit, at the rates set forth in the applicable Proposal, amendment or change order.  

10. Hazardous Materials; GZA “Not a Generator”.  Before any hazardous or contaminated materials are removed from the Site, you will 

sign manifests naming you as the generator of the waste (or, if you are not the generator, you will arrange for the generator to sign).  You will 

select the treatment or disposal facility to which any waste is taken.  GZA will not be the generator or owner of, nor will it possess, take title to, 

or assume legal liability for any hazardous or contaminated materials at or removed from the Site.  GZA will not have responsibility for or control 

of the Site or of operations or activities at the Site other than its own.  GZA will not undertake, arrange for or control the handling, treatment, 

storage, removal, shipment, transportation or disposal of any hazardous or contaminated materials at or removed from the Site, other than any 

laboratory samples it collects or tests. You agree to defend, indemnify and hold GZA harmless for any costs or liability incurred by GZA in 

defense of or in payment for any legal actions in which it is alleged that GZA is the owner, generator, treater, storer or disposer of hazardous 

waste. 

11. Limits on GZA's Responsibility.  GZA will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of contractors or others at the Site, except for its 

own subcontractors and employees.  GZA will not supervise, direct or assume control over or the authority to stop any contractor's work, nor 

shall GZA's professional activities nor the presence of GZA or its employees and subcontractors be construed to imply that GZA has authority 

over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction, for work site health or safety precautions 

or programs, or for any failure of contractors to comply with contracts, plans, specifications or laws.  Any opinions by GZA of probable costs of 

labor, materials, equipment or services to be furnished by others are strictly estimates and are not a guarantee that actual costs will be consistent 

with the estimates.  

12. Changed Conditions. 

a. You recognize the uncertainties related to environmental and geotechnical services, which often require a phased or exploratory 

approach, with the need for additional services becoming apparent during the initial services.  You also recognize that actual conditions 

encountered may vary significantly from those anticipated, that laws and regulations are subject to change, and that the requirements of 

regulatory authorities are often unpredictable. 

b. If changed or unanticipated conditions or delays make additional services necessary or result in additional costs or time for performance, 

GZA will notify you and the parties will negotiate appropriate changes to the scope of services, compensation and schedule. 

c. If no agreement can be reached, GZA will be entitled to terminate its services and to be equitably compensated for the services already 

performed. GZA will not be responsible for delays or failures to perform due to weather, labor disputes, intervention by or inability to get 

approvals from public authorities, acts or omissions on your part, or any other causes beyond GZA's reasonable control, and you will compensate 

GZA for any resulting increase in its costs.  

13.  Documents and Information.  All documents, data, calculations and work papers prepared or furnished by GZA are instruments of service 

and will remain GZA's property.  Designs, reports, data and other work product delivered to you are for your use only, for the limited purposes 

disclosed to GZA.  Any delayed use, use at another site, use on another project, or use by a third party will be at the user's sole risk, and without 

any liability to GZA. Any technology, methodology or technical information learned or developed by GZA will remain its property. Provided 



September 20, 2022 
81.P013097.23 Ph II Environmental Services (PSI/CCDD)  

Orchard Gate Boulevard Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 8 

P:\FY2023\P013 - Transportation\EEI\North Aurora\Orchard Gateway\81.P013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II.docx

Proactive by DesignGZA is not in default under this Agreement, GZA's designs will not be used to complete this project by others, except by written agreement 

relating to use, liability and compensation.   

14. Electronic Media.  In accepting and utilizing any drawings, reports and data on any form of electronic media generated by GZA, you 

covenant and agree that all such electronic files are instruments of service of GZA, who shall be deemed the author and shall retain all 

common law, statutory law and other rights, including copyrights.  In the event of a conflict between the signed documents prepared by 

GZA and electronic files, the signed documents shall govern. You agree not to reuse these electronic files, in whole or in part, for any purpose 

or project other than the project that is the subject of this Agreement.  Any transfer of these electronic files to others or reuse or 

modifications to such files by you without the prior written consent of GZA will be at the user’s sole risk and without any liability to GZA. 

15.  Confidentiality; Subpoenas.  Information about this Agreement and GZA's services and information you provide to GZA regarding your 

business and the Site, other than information available to the public and information acquired from third parties, will be maintained in 

confidence and will not be disclosed to others without your consent, except as GZA reasonably believes is necessary: (a) to perform its services; 

(b) to comply with professional standards to protect public health, safety and the environment; and (c) to comply with laws and court orders. 

GZA will make reasonable efforts to give you prior notice of any disclosure under (b) or (c) above.  Information available to the public and 

information acquired from third parties will not be considered confidential.  You will reimburse GZA for responding to any subpoena or 

governmental inquiry or audit related to the services, at the rates set forth in the applicable Proposal, amendment or change order.  

16. Insurance.  During performance of the services, GZA will maintain workers compensation, commercial general liability, automobile 

liability, and professional liability/contractor's pollution liability insurance. GZA will furnish you certificates of such insurance on request.  

17.  Indemnification.  You agree to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend GZA and its affiliates and subcontractors and their employees, 

officers, directors and agents (collectively referred to in this paragraph as "GZA") against all claims, suits, fines and penalties, including 

mandated cleanup costs and attorneys' fees and other costs of settlement and defense, which claims, suits, fines, penalties or costs arise out of 

or are related to this Agreement or the services, except to the extent they are caused by GZA’s negligence or willful misconduct. 

18.  Limitation of Remedies.

a. To the fullest extent permitted by law and notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, the aggregate liability of GZA 

and its affiliates and subcontractors and their employees, officers, directors and agents (collectively referred to in this paragraph as "GZA") for 

all claims arising out of this Agreement or the services is limited to $50,000 or, if greater, 10% of the compensation received by GZA under this 

Agreement. 

b. You may elect to increase the limit of liability by paying an additional fee, such fee to be negotiated prior to the execution of this 

Agreement. 

c. Any claim will be deemed waived unless received by GZA within one year of substantial completion of the services. 

d. GZA will not be liable for lost profits, loss of use of property, delays, or other special, indirect, incidental, consequential, punitive, 

exemplary, or multiple damages. 

e. GZA will not be liable to you or the Site owner for injuries or deaths suffered by GZA's or its subcontractors' employees.  

f. You will look solely to GZA for your remedy for any claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, including any claim arising out of or 

relating to alleged negligence or errors or omissions of any GZA principal, officer, employee or agent. 

19.  Disputes.

a. All disputes between you and GZA shall be subject to non-binding mediation. 

b. Either party may demand mediation by serving a written notice stating the essential nature of the dispute, the amount of time or money 

claimed, and requiring that the matter be mediated within forty-five (45) days of service of notice. 

c. The mediation shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its most recent Construction Mediation 

Rules, or by such other person or organization as the parties may agree upon. 



September 20, 2022 
81.P013097.23 Ph II Environmental Services (PSI/CCDD)  

Orchard Gate Boulevard Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 9 

P:\FY2023\P013 - Transportation\EEI\North Aurora\Orchard Gateway\81.P013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II.docx

Proactive by Designd. No action or suit may be commenced unless mediation has occurred but did not resolve the dispute, or unless a statute of limitation period 

would expire if suit were not filed prior to such forty-five (45) days after service of notice. 

20.  Miscellaneous.

a. Illinois law shall govern this Agreement.  

b. The above terms and conditions regarding Limitation of Remedies and Indemnification shall survive the completion of the services under 

this Agreement and the termination of the contract for any cause. 

c. Any amendment to these Terms and Conditions must be in writing and signed by both parties.  

d. Having received these Terms and Conditions, your oral authorization to commence services, your actions, or your use of the Report or 

Work Product constitutes your acceptance of them. 

e. This Agreement supersedes any contract terms, purchase orders or other documents issued by you. 

f. Neither party may assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or duties hereunder without the written consent of the other party. 

g. Your failure or the failure of your successors or assigns to receive payment or reimbursement from any other party for any reason 

whatsoever shall not absolve you, your successors or assigns of any obligation to pay any sum to GZA under this agreement. 

h. These Terms and Conditions shall govern over any inconsistent terms in GZA’s Proposal.  

i. The provisions of this Agreement are severable; if any provision is unenforceable it shall be appropriately limited and given effect to the 

extent it is enforceable. 

j. The covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall apply to, inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto 

and upon their respective successors and assigns. 



Ga
rd

en
W

ay

Prair
ie Ct

Fo
xh

ill
Ln

Miller Dr

Hidden
Creek Ln

Fie
lds

ide

Ln

HearthstoneLn

Orchard Rd

Buckthorn Dr

East
Victoria Cir

White
Oak 

Dr

Pi
ne

hil
lDrCreekside Ct

Foxhill Ct

Ice Cr
ea

m 
Dr

I-88
W

To
Orch

ard
Rd

I-8
8E

 Fr
om

Or
ch

ard
 G

ate
wa

y B
lvd

Randall Rd

WindstoneDr
88

fro
m

ard

Rd

-88E to
ard RHansen Blvd

Deerpath Rd

Se
qu

oia
 D

r

Ai
rp

or
t R

d

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

En
te

rp
ris

es
, I

nc
.

52
 W

he
ele

r R
oa

d
Su

ga
r G

rov
e, 

Illi
no

is 6
05

54
(63

0)
46

6-6
70

0
ww

w.
ee

iwe
b.c

om

DA
TE

:

PR
OJ

EC
T N

O.
:

FIL
E:

PA
TH

:

BY
:

No
ve

mb
er 

20
20

NO
19

02

NO
19

02
_O

rch
ard

 G
atw

ay
 Bl

vd
.M

XD
H:

\G
IS

\P
UB

LIC
\N

OR
TH

 A
UR

OR
A\

MJ
T

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f N
or

th
 A

ur
or

a
25

 Ea
st 

Sta
te 

Str
ee

t
No

rth
 Au

ror
a, 

IL 
 60

54
2

63
0-8

97
-82

28
³

OR
CH

AR
D 

GA
TE

W
AY

 BO
UL

EV
AR

D
RO

AD
W

AY
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
AT

TA
CH

ME
NT

 D
PR

OJ
EC

T L
OC

AT
IO

N 
MA

P

1,0
00

0
1,0

00
50

0
Fe

et

Pr
oje

ct 
Lim

its

b

b

b

b

A

B

Le
ge

nd Ne
w 

Tra
ffic

 Si
gn

al
Ex

ist
ing

 G
IS 

RO
W

A.
PA

VE
M

EN
T 

R
EH

A
B

IL
IT

A
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 R

ES
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
N

EW
 T

R
A

FF
IC

 S
IG

N
A

L 
N

EW
 A

U
XI

LI
A

R
Y 

LA
N

ES
 A

N
D

 W
ID

EN
IN

G
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  S

PO
T C

UR
B 

AN
D OGU

TT
ER

 A
ND

 SI
DE

WA
LK

 R
EM

OV
AL

 AN
D 

RE
PL

AC
EM

EN
T  

    
 

B.
 P

A
VE

M
EN

T 
R

EH
A

B
IL

IT
A

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 R
ES

U
R

FA
C

IN
G

 
  S

PO
T C

U
R

B
 A

N
D

 G
U dTT

ER
 A

ND
 SI

DE
WA

LK
 R

EM
OV

AL
 AN

D 
RE

PL
AC

EM
EN

T 

b

b





L
o

c
a

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 A
g

e
n

c
y

C
o

u
n

ty
S

e
c

ti
o

n
 N

u
m

b
e

r

P
ri

m
e

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

(F
ir

m
) 

N
a

m
e

P
re

p
a

re
d

 B
y

D
a

te

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
n

t 
/ 

S
u

b
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

N
a

m
e

J
o

b
 N

u
m

b
e

r

R
e

m
a

rk
s

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 T
E

R
M

 
1
2

M
O

N
T

H
S

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

 R
A

T
E

 
1
8
2
.4

2
%

S
T

A
R

T
 D

A
T

E
 

1
0
/1

/2
0
2
2

C
O

M
P

L
E

X
IT

Y
 F

A
C

T
O

R
 

0

R
A

IS
E

 D
A

T
E

 
3
/1

/2
0
2
3

%
 O

F
 R

A
IS

E
 

2
.0

0
%

E
N

D
 D

A
T

E
 

9
/3

0
/2

0
2
3

Y
e

a
r

F
ir

s
t 

D
a

te
L

a
s

t 
D

a
te

M
o

n
th

s

%
 o

f 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

t

0
1

0
/1

/2
0

2
2

3
/1

/2
0

2
3

5
4

1
.6

7
%

1
3

/2
/2

0
2

3
1

0
/1

/2
0

2
3

7
5

9
.5

0
%

T
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
e

s
c

a
la

ti
o

n
 =

1
.1

7
%

E
S

C
A

L
A

T
IO

N
 P

E
R

 Y
E

A
R

P
A

Y
R

O
L

L
 E

S
C

A
L

A
T

IO
N

 T
A

B
L

E

E
X

H
IB

IT
 D

C
O

S
T

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 (
C

E
C

S
) 

W
O

R
K

S
H

E
E

T

F
IX

E
D

 R
A

IS
E

V
ill

a
g

e
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
 A

u
ro

ra
K

a
n
e

2
1
-0

0
0
5
7
-0

0
-C

H

E
n
g

in
e
e
ri
n
g

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
, 

In
c
.

J
J
R

9
/1

9
/2

0
2
2

H
u
ff

 &
 H

u
ff

, 
In

c
. 

/ 
G

Z
A

, 
In

c
.

N
o

te
: 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 n

a
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

th
e

 C
E

C
S

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

fo
r.

  
T

h
is

 n
a

m
e

 a
p

p
e

a
rs

 a
t 

th
e

 t
o

p
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 t
a

b
.

P
ri
n
te

d
 9

/2
0
/2

0
2
2
 1

2
:4

8
 P

M

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

1
3

B
L
R

 0
5
5
1
4
 (

R
e
v
. 
0
5
/2

7
/2

2
)

E
S

C
A

L
A

T
IO

N



Local Public Agency County Section Number
Village of North Aurora 21-00057-00-CH

Consultant / Subconsultant Name Job Number

MAXIMUM  PAYROLL RATE 78.00

ESCALATION FACTOR 1.17%

IDOT

CLASSIFICATION PAYROLL RATES CALCULATED RATE
ON FILE

Associate Principal III $76.69 $77.58

Associate Principal II $69.75 $70.56

Associate Principal I $63.91 $64.66

Seniort Consultant II $77.36 $78.00

Senior Consultant I $43.81 $44.32

Senior Project Manager III $66.11 $66.88

Senior Project Manager II $53.81 $54.44

Senior Project Manager I $50.82 $51.41

Senior Landscape Architect $57.23 $57.90

Senior Planning PM $53.97 $54.60

Senior Technical  Specialist I $50.61 $51.20

Senior Scientist PM II $53.71 $54.34

Senior Technical Scientist $51.13 $51.73

Scientist PM II $48.38 $48.94

Scientist PM I $42.00 $42.49

Assistant PM Scientist $35.09 $35.50

Environmental Engineer PM I $46.21 $46.75

Geotechnical Engineer PM I $43.14 $43.64

Architect PM $48.56 $49.13

Assistant PM Engineert I $42.02 $42.51

Engineer II $29.21 $29.55

Engineer I $32.16 $32.54

Scientist E1 $29.75 $30.10

Technical  Graphics Technician $25.15 $25.44

Administrative  Manager $46.64 $47.18

Senior Administrative Assistant $32.81 $33.19

Lead  Word Processor $40.46 $40.93

EXHIBIT D COST ESTIMATE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES (CECS) WORKSHEET FIXED RAISE

PAYROLL RATES 

Kane

Huff & Huff, Inc. / GZA, Inc.

Printed 9/20/2022 12:48 PM

Page 2 of 13

BLR 05514 (Rev. 05/27/22) 

RATES



Local Public Agency County Section Number

Village of North Aurora Kane 21-00057-00-CH

Consultant / Subconsultant Name Job Number

NAME Direct Labor Total

Contribution to Prime 

Consultant

Total 0.00 0.00

Huff & Huff, Inc. / GZA, Inc.

NOTE: Only subconsultants who fill out a cost estimate that splits out direct labor may be listed on 

this sheet.  

SUBCONSULTANTS
EXHIBIT D COST ESTIMATE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES (CECS) WORKSHEET

Printed 9/20/2022 12:48 PM

Page 3 of 13

BLR 05514 (Rev. 05/27/22) 

SUBS



Local Public Agency County Section Number

Consultant / Subconsultant Name Job Number

QUANTITY

CONTRACT 

RATE TOTAL

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

240 $0.63 $150.00

$0.00

$0.00

8 $3.40 $27.20

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

1 $2,750.00 $2,750.00

12 $623.33 $7,479.96

$0.00

1 $150.00 $150.00

2 $30.00 $60.00

2 $100.00 $200.00

1 $100.00 $100.00

$12,917.16

DIRECT COSTS WORKSHEET

Village of North Aurora Kane 21-00057-00-CH

Huff & Huff, Inc. / GZA, Inc.

List ALL direct costs required for this project.  Those not listed on the form will not be eligible for reimbursement by the LPA on this project.

EXHIBIT D COST ESTIMATE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES (CECS) WORKSHEET

ITEM ALLOWABLE

Lodging

(per GOVERNOR'S TRAVEL CONTROL BOARD)

Actual Cost 

(Up to state rate maximum)

Lodging Taxes and Fees

(per GOVERNOR'S TRAVEL CONTROL BOARD)
Actual Cost

Air Fare
Coach rate, actual cost, requires minimum two weeks' 

notice, with prior IDOT approval

Vehicle Mileage

(per GOVERNOR'S TRAVEL CONTROL BOARD)
Up to state rate maximum

Vehicle Owned or Leased $32.50/half day (4 hours or less) or $65/full day

Vehicle Rental Actual Cost (Up to $55/day)

Tolls Actual Cost

Parking Actual Cost

Overtime Premium portion (Submit supporting documentation)

Shift Differential Actual Cost (Based on firm's policy)

Overnight Delivery/Postage/Courier Service Actual Cost (Submit supporting documentation)

Copies of Deliverables/Mylars (In-house) Actual Cost (Submit supporting documentation)

Copies of Deliverables/Mylars (Outside) Actual Cost (Submit supporting documentation)

Project Specific Insurance Actual Cost

Monuments (Permanent) Actual Cost

Photo Processing Actual Cost

2-Way Radio (Survey or Phase III Only) Actual Cost

Telephone Usage (Traffic System Monitoring Only) Actual Cost

CADD Actual Cost (Max $15/hour)

Web Site Actual Cost (Submit supporting documentation)

Advertisements Actual Cost (Submit supporting documentation)

Public Meeting Facility Rental Actual Cost (Submit supporting documentation)

Public Meeting Exhibits/Renderings & Equipment Actual Cost (Submit supporting documentation)

Recording Fees Actual Cost

Transcriptions (specific to project) Actual Cost

Courthouse Fees Actual Cost

Storm Sewer Cleaning and Televising Actual Cost (Requires 2-3 quotes with IDOT approval)

Traffic Control and Protection Actual Cost (Requires 2-3 quotes with IDOT approval)

Aerial Photography and Mapping Actual Cost (Requires 2-3 quotes with IDOT approval)

Utliity Exploratory Trenching Actual Cost (Requires 2-3 quotes with IDOT approval)

Testing of Soil Samples Actual Cost

Lab Services Actual Cost (Provide breakdown of each cost)

Equipment and/or Specialized Equipment Rental Actual Cost (Requires 2-3 quotes with IDOT approval)

Database Package Actual Cost

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS: 

Field Kit Expendible Materials Daily Rate

PID Daily Rate

GPS to locate borings Daily Rate

Printed 9/20/2022 12:48 PM

Page 4 of 13

BLR 05514 (Rev. 05/27/22) 

DIRECT COSTS 



L
o

c
a

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 A
g

e
n

c
y

C
o

u
n

ty
S

e
c

ti
o

n
 N

u
m

b
e

r

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
n

t 
/ 

S
u

b
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

N
a

m
e

J
o

b
 N

u
m

b
e

r

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

 R
A

T
E

1
8

2
.4

2
%

0

T
A

S
K

S
T

A
F

F
 H

O
U

R
S

P
A

Y
R

O
L

L
O

V
E

R
H

E
A

D
 &

 F
R

IN
G

E
 

B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
D

IR
E

C
T

 C
O

S
T

S
F

IX
E

D
 F

E
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 B

Y
 

O
T

H
E

R
S

T
O

T
A

L
%

 O
F

 G
R

A
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L

T
a
s
k
 1

: 
P

S
I 
/ 

C
C

D
D

6
7
.5

2
,3

3
6

4
,2

6
1

$
1
2
,9

1
7
.1

6
7
7
1

2
0
,2

8
5

8
4
.5

4
%

T
a
s
k
 2

: 
P

E
S

A
 V

a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 (

if
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

)
1
9

6
4
6

1
,1

7
9

2
1
3

2
,0

3
8

8
.4

9
%

T
a
s
k
 3

: 
P

ro
je

c
t 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o

n
4

2
0
2

3
6
8

6
7

6
3
7

2
.6

5
%

T
a
s
k
 4

: 
Q

A
Q

C
4
.5

3
2
8

5
9
8

1
0
8

1
,0

3
4

4
.3

1
%

S
u

b
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
n

t 
D

L
0

-

T
O

T
A

L
S

9
5

3
,5

1
2

6
,4

0
6

1
2
,9

1
7

1
,1

5
9

-
2
3
,9

9
4

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
,9

1
8

C
O

M
P

L
E

X
IT

Y
 F

A
C

T
O

R

V
ill

a
g

e
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
 A

u
ro

ra
K

a
n

e
2
1

-0
0

0
5
7

-0
0
-C

H

E
X

H
IB

IT
 D

 C
O

S
T

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 (
C

E
C

S
) 

W
O

R
K

S
H

E
E

T

C
O

S
T

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 W

O
R

K
S

H
E

E
T

H
u
ff

 &
 H

u
ff

, 
In

c
. 

/ 
G

Z
A

, 
In

c
.

P
ri
n
te

d
 9

/2
0
/2

0
2
2
 1

2
:4

8
 P

M

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 

1
3

B
L
R

 0
5
5
1
4
 (

R
e
v
. 
0
5
/2

7
/2

2
)

C
O

S
T

 E
S

T



HUFF & HUFF, INC.
SUMMARY OF DIRECT COSTS

DIRECT

Task 1 - PSI/CCDD
Trips 60 miles x 3 x 0.625$      = 112.50$          
Tolls 6 x 3.40$        = 20.40$            
Field Kit 1 day x 2 x 30.00$      = 60.00$            
PID 1 day x 2 x 100.00$    = 200.00$          
GPS 1 day x 1 x 100.00$    = 100.00$          
VOC 1 ea x 12 x 90.00$      = 1,080.00$       
SVOCs 1 ea x 12 x 155.00$    = 1,860.00$       
Total Metals 1 ea x 12 x 125.00$    = 1,500.00$       
TCLP Metals 1 ea x 12 x 125.00$    = 1,500.00$       
SPLP Metals 1 ea x 12 x 120.00$    = 1,440.00$       
pH 1 ea x 5 x 20.00$      = 100.00$          
total cost per sample 623.33$    = -$                

Task Total 7,972.90$       

Task 2 - PESA Validation (if necessary)
Trips 60 miles x 1 x 0.625$      = 37.50$            
Tolls 2 x 3.40$        = 6.80$              
Database Package 1 x 150.00$    = 150.00$          

Task Total 194.30$          

Task 3 - Project Administration
0 x -$          = -$                

Task Total -$                

Task 4 - QAQC
0 x -$          = -$                

Task Total -$                

GRAND TOTAL 8,167.20$       

F:\Proposal-FY2023\EEI\North Aurora\[81.P013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate Ph II IDOT Direct Costs.xls]Direct Costs

Project:  EEI - Orchard Gateway Ph II - N. Aurora



HUFF & HUFF, INC.
SUMMARY OF SERVICES BY OTHERS

OUTSIDE

Task 1 - PSI/CCDD
Driller (day) 1 x 2,750.00$  = 2,750.00$     
Traffic Control (day) 1 x 2,000.00$  = 2,000.00$     

0 x -$           = -$              
Task Total 4,750.00$     

Task 2 - PESA Validation (if necessary)
0 x -$           = -$              

Task Total -$              

Task 3 - Project Administration
0 x -$           = -$              

Task Total -$              

Task 4 - QAQC
0 x -$           = -$              

Task Total -$              

GRAND TOTAL 4,750.00$     

F:\Proposal-FY2023\EEI\North Aurora\[81.P0013097.23 EEI N Aurora Orchard Gate PhII BLR 05514 CECS.xlsm]DIRECT COSTS

Project:  EEI - Orchard Gateway Ph II - N. Aurora



ATTACHMENT H
































	22-11-21 Village Board Agenda
	Petition 22-05 Willard's Corner Annexation Agreement First Amendment + Memo
	#22-05 Annexation Agreement Public Hearing Notice
	Draft First Amendment to the Willards Corner Annexation Agreement
	Newspaper Public Hearing Notice

	22-11-07 Village Board Minutes
	22-11-07 COW Minutes
	Interim Bills List 22-11-09
	Bills List 22-11-21
	Proposing SSA #45 + Memo
	Ordinance
	Exhibit A


	Rustic Fox Chris Kringle Holiday Special Event + Memo
	Special Event Permit Application
	Additional description of event provided by The Rustic Fox
	Holiday Map Key

	Engineering Agreement with EEI for Orchard Gateway STP Project + Memo
	2022-11-15 Orchard Gateway Boulvard Roadway Imp-Phase II-Proposal-EEI Si..1
	1 - Agreement for Professional Services
	2 - Attachment A - Standard Terms and Conditions - 7-1-22 Public - NO2209
	3 - Attachment B - Scope of Services - NO2209
	4 - Attachment C - Estimated Level of Effort and Associated Cost NO2209
	5 - Attachment D - Estimated Project Schedule NO2209
	6 - Attachment E - Project Location Map NO2209
	7 - Attachment F - SSOC 2022
	VEHICLES. REPROGRAPHICS, DIRECT COSTS, DRONE AND EXPERT TESTIMONY

	8 - Attachment G - Huff and Huff N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II
	9 - Attachment H - Mathewson N Aurora Orchard Gate Phase II






